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Reports Iltems

() 2019 Business Report.
Explanation: Please refer to paé to 18 (Attachment 1) of this handbook fahe 2019
Business Report.

(1 2019 Supervisorodos Audit Report.
Explanation: Please refer to pag@(Attachment 2) of this handbook for the 28 per vi sor
Audit Report.

(1) 2019 Surplus Distribution in Cash Dividends Report.
Explanation:

1. According to Articles 24 under the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Board of Directors is authorized to pay the entire or partial dividends and bonus to
be distributed in the form of cash by a resolution and shall report the same to the
Sharehol dersd Meeting.

2. The ®mpany has allocated a90368a00ferhteel der s
distribution of cash dividends of NT$1.36 per share. The cash dividend is
calculated up to one New Taiwan Dollar (digits after the decimal point to be
ignored) according to the distributioproportion, and for the total number of
fractional amounts less than one New Taiwan Dollar, numbers ta&eatecimal
point will be adjusted in descending order, and the account number will be adjusted
from the former to the later, until meeting the tadsstribution amount of cash
dividend.

3. The surplus distribution of the Company has been passed by the resolution of the
Board of Directors, and the Chairman is authorized to otherwise determine matters
related tathe ex-dividend base date. The surplustdisition is calculated based on
66,300,000 shares theissue of the Company on the date of passing the resolution
by the Board of Directors. Subsequently, in case of changée ghare capital of
the Company and causing impaain the number of outstding shares, and
thereby causing changes in yields of Shareholders that require amendments, the
Chairman is fully authorized for such matters.



(IV)  Treasury Share Implementation Report
Explanation: The buyback of the Companyos
Buyback Tranche 15t
Purpose of the Buyback To transfer shares to employees
Actual Buyback Period February3, 2020 to Marct0,2020
Estimated Number of Buyback 3,000,000 ordinary shares
Estimated Price Range for the Buyback NT$27 to NT$55 per share
Actual Category and Number of Share Bought B3,000,000 ordinary shares
Actual Price of Bought Back Shares NT$110,852,705
Average Buyback Price Per Share NT$36.95
Number of Shares Cancelled and Transferred |0 share
Accumulated Number of Shareholdingtive 3,000,000 ordinary shares
Company
Percentage of Accumulated Number of 4.33%
Shareholding in the Company on Number of Tot
Issued Shares
(V) Amendments to the AProcedures for Share
Explanation:

1y

According to the requireents of the Securities and Futures Bureau, Financial

Supervisory Commission, to accurately define other matters of rights and
obligations related to the Company and employees, it is proposed to make

amendments to th

of the Company.

AfiProcedures for

e NPr oc e dsufreers

Buyback

and

Please refer to pagé8 to 69 (Attachment 11) of the Handbook for the
Shar e

st

E

tf oo r E ngphlaor

Tr an



Items for Acknowledgment

The first cas€Promsed by the Board of Directors)
Cause: 2019 Biness Report, Individual Financial Statemeamtd Consolidated Financial

Statement.

Explanation:

1. The 2019 individual financial statement and consolidated financial statement of the
Company have been audited by JEFF CHEN and HUANG, HI3HUN,
accountantdrom Deloitte & Touche, and an unqualified opinion report has been
issued for the record. And after the business report has also been audited by the
supervisor, the written audit report has been issued.

2. Please refer to padkb to 18 (Attachment 1), pge 20 to 39 (Attachment 3) of this
manual for the business report., accoun
statements.

3. ltis hereby proposed &hareholderfor acknowledgment.

Resolution:

The second case (Prged by the Board of Directors)
Cause: 209 surplus distribution.
Explanation:

1. The 2019 surplus distribution of the Company has been passed by the resolution of
the Board of Directors and audited by the supervispisase refer to pagé0
(Attachment 4) of this manual.

2. ltis hereby proposed &hareholderdgor acknowledgment.

3. Resolution:



Items for Discussion and Election
The first case (Pragsed by the Board of Directors)

Cause: Amendments to the fAArticles of Associ g
Explanation:
1. 1t is planned to make amendménb$ tbet ke
due to the relocation of the headgess and the establishment of the Audit
Committee.

2. Please refer to pagdl to 45 (Attachment 5) for the comparison table on
amendments to the Articles of Association.
3. ltis hereby proposed &harehtersfor makingthedecision.
Resolution:

The second case (Praged by the Board of Directors)
Cause: Amendments to tiBirector and Supervisor Election Measures
Explanation:
1. 1t i s pl anned t o m&dkeetor anchSopedrmsom Elestiont ot
Measure8 o f the Company and cDrectorgidedtiont he n
Measure6 due to the establieemhment of the AL
2. Please refer to pagd6 to 48 (Attachment 6) for the comparison table on
amendments to th@irector and Supervisor Election Measuoes.
3. ltis hereby proposed &hareholderfor makingthedecision.
Resolution:

The third caseRroposedy the Board oDirectors)
Cause: Amendments to the ARul es of Procedur e

Explanation:

1. 1t i s planned t o nRulesof Rrovedural foreSharebolddrsd t h
Meetingp of the Company due to the establi
amendments to the Company Act, and the adoptionadting for TWSE/TPEX
listed companies.

2. Please refer to pagd9 to 53 (Attachment 7) for the comparison table on
amendments to th@Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' Meetings

3. ltis hereby proposed &hareholderfor makingthe decision.

Resolution:



The fourth case (Praged by the Board of Directors)
Cause: Amendments to the "Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets."
Explanation:
1. 1t is planned t o Rrackdaresdan&cqaldionerDisgosakob t h e
Asset9#¥ of the Company due to the establist
2. Please refer to pagé4 to 63 (Attachment 8) for the comparison table on
amendments to the AProcedures for Acqui
3. ltis hereby propa=d toshareholderfor makingthedecision.
Resolution:

The fifth case (Prapsed by the Board of Directors)
Cause: Amendments to the fAiProcedures of Makir
Explanation:
1. 1t is planned t o MadeduresaomdaRgdEndorsementdnd t h e
Guarantee of the Company due to the establi
2. Please refer to g& 64 to 65 (Attachment9) for the comparison table on
amendments to the AProcedures of Making
3. ltis hereby proposkto shareholderfor makingthedecision.
Resolution:

The sixth case (Proged by the Board of Directors)
Cause: Amendments the "Procedures of Granting of Loans."
Explanation:
1. 1t is planned to make amendments to the
Company due to the establishment of the Audit Committee.
2. Please refer to pagé6 to 67 (Attachnent 10) for the comparisotable on
amendments to the AProcedures of Grant.
3. ltis hereby proposed &hareholderfor makingthedecision.
Resolution:



The seventh case (Puged by the Board of Directors)

CauseProposal for a capital increase in cash by a privateplant of ordinary shares

Explanation:

1. In response to the intense competition within the industry and to the Company's future
development, the Company intends to improve the Company's operating performance and
increase our working capital for the capital a timely basisThe Company intends to
propose at the shareholders' meetingwthoriz the Board of Directors to carry out the
capital increase in cash by way of a private placement of ordinary shares in due course
subject to the market condition atlie actual capital and operating requirements of the
Company according to Article 48 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Digections
for Public Companies Conducting Private Placements of Secliriliee explanations are
as follows.

2. The basis andationality of the pricing for the ordinary shares under the private placement
(1) The reference price shall be no less than the higher of the two following calculation

bases:

(@) The simple average closing price of thkelinary shares for either the 1, 3, or 5
business days before the price determination date, after adjustment for any
distribution of stock dividends, cash dividends or capital reduction.

(b) The simple average closing price of the common shares of the TWSE listed or
TPEX listed company for the 30 busiss days before the price determination date,
after adjustment for any distribution of stock dividends, cash dividends, or capital
reduction.

(2) The issue price per share for the private placement shall be no less than 80% of the
reference price. Upon the app v a | of the sharehol der sé6 me
will be authorized to determine the actual price for the private placement, which shall
be no less than 80% of the reference price.

(3) Rationality of the pricing: Except for considering the thyeartransfer restriction for
private placement under the Securities and Exchange Act, the determination of the
abovementioned issue price is determined according to relevant laws and regulations
and the closing price for ordinary shares, which shall be rabkan

4 The actual pricing date Upon the approva
are authorized to determine the actual pricing date, subject to the status of
communication with specific persons in the future.

3. The method for selecting specipersons:
(1) The targets for the private placement and the selection of specific persons shall comply
with Article 43-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act and the requirements under Letter
(91) TarCarZheng(Yi)-Zi No. 0910003455 issued by the former Sewmsitand
Futures Supervisory Commission, Ministry of Finance issued on June 13, 2002.
(2) Selecting method and purpose for places, the necessity, and estimated effect:
8



(@) Selecting method and purpose for places: The private placement of the resolution
may introdue private funds to strengthen our capital structure. The introduction
of strategic investors may help the Company to conduct diversified operations and
may improve shareholders' interests effectively. Therefore, the introduction of
strategic investors wilhelp the Company reinforce its competitive strength or
create shareholders' interests as the priority.

(b) Necessity: To take the initiative for creating profiting sources and competitive
niche, the Company intends to proactively seek proper strategicars/ésthelp
the Company expand its existing product lines, develop new product lines, and
conduct diversified operations. Therefore, for the benefit of the Company's
sustainable operations and development, the private placement of the resolution
for the irtroduction of strategic investors is necessary.

(c) Estimated effects: The Company intends to introduce strategic investors through
the private placement, which facilitates the securing of-teng, stable funds,
expansion of existing product lines, develan of new product lines, and
conducting diversified operations, and may effectively increase shareholders'
interests. Therefore, helping the Company in reinforcing its competitive strength
is the priority for introducing strategic investors. It is expectbat, the
experiences, technologies, knowledge, or channels of such investors, either
individuals or legal persons, will help the Company in improving its technologies
and quality, cost reduction, efficiency increase, market expansion, by way of
vertical integration or horizontal integration within the industry, or cooperation in
R&D for commodities or development of markets, so as to improve our
sharehol dersé interests.

(d) Currently, there is no confirmed strategic investor.

4. The necessary reasons for cortthgprivate placement:
(1) Reasons for naadoptinga public offering

Considering the timeliness, convenientssuing costs, feasibility, stability of equity,

and uncertainties of the capital market, it may be difficult to obtain the required capital

within a short period for fundraising by way of a public offering; therefore, the

Company decided to conduct the capital increase in cash by way of a private placement

of ordinary shares.

(2) Limit on private placement

The private placement for ordinary shares Ishal conducted with a limit of up to

20,000,0000rdinary shares within one year from the day of resolution made at the

sharehol dersd meeting in one to three bat
(3) Use of the funds raised by the private placement and the anticipated benefits

The use offunds raised in batchesd the anticipated benefigse for increasing the

working capital and the repayment of bank borrowings, so as to respond to the changes

in the industry and strengthen the operating condition and competitiveness of the
9



9.

Company. ltis estimated to improve our financial structure and allow the Company to
record stable growth in its operations,
interests.

The Company estimates the cap for the private placement shal,6@0,000ordinary

shar es. It is proposed to the sharehol dersbéo
private placement within one year from t he
meeting in one to three batches, which will also improve the mobility aribility for the
fundraising of the Company effectively. Currently, the management team of the Company is
holding the majority of its shares; therefore, the shareholding ratio of places after the private
placement shall not cause any change in the rigmamagement.

The rights and obligations of ordinary shares under the private placement shall be the same
as the issued ordinary shares of the Company; however, according to the Securities and
Exchange Act, apart from the transfer condition set out irclard38 of the Securities and
Exchange Act, within three years from the
for the private placement, the share certificate may not-beldeAfter three years from the

del i very date of ertfibate, the BoamaohDirécwrs s huhorezed to
determine whether tobtain a letter issued by tlsock exchangacknowledging that the
securities meet the standards for listing before it may file with the FSC for retroactive
handling of public issuare proceduresand apply for the listing and dealings subject to the
condition thereof.

For the primary content of the private placement, except for the pricing ratio of the private
placement, it is proposed to the shareholders to authorize the BoardreatoB to
determine the number of shares issued under the private placement, the issue price, the issue
conditions, the fundraising amount, or other unaddressed matters subject to the market
conditions and the operating requirements of the Company acgord relevant
requirements of the competent authority. Subsequently, where any amendment is required
due to the changes in laws and regulations, opinions from the competent authority, or the
changes in the objective environment, it is proposed to thee¢har! der sd meet
authorize the Board of Directors the full discretion.

To accord with the private placement of ordinary shares, upon passing the proposal for the
private placement, it I's proposed to fthe s
the Company or personnel designated by the Chairman to manage matters related to the
private placement of ordinary shares.

It is hereby proposed &hareholderfor making the decision.

Resolution:

10



The eighth case (Proposed by Board of Directors)
Cause Reelectionof all Directors.

Explanation:

1. The term of the current Directors and Supervisors shall expire on June 21, 2020, and
reel ection of all Directors shalll be carri e
current Directors and Supergis s s hal | end at the compl et
Meeting.

2. According to the requirements under the Letter@uanZhengFaZi No. 10703452331
issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission on December 19, 2018, and Ardoté 14
the Securitiesrad Exchange Act, the Company established an Audit Committee instead of
Supervisors. The Audit Committee comprises of all Independent Directors.

3. Pursuant to Article 15 of the Articles of /
be adopted for thelection of seven Directors (including 3 Independent Directors) shall be
elected, for a term of three years, from June 24, 2020 to June 23, 2023.

4. The election of Directors shall be managed according to the requirements under Article
1921 of the Company &t and Article 15 of the Articl e:c
nomination system shall be adopted. The list of DireCamdidatesias been reviewed and
passed by the Board of Directors of the Company on May 12, 2020. It is hereby specified
relevantinformation as follows:

Number of
Type of . . . .
. Name of Nominee Education Experience Current Title Shares Held
Nominee .
(Unit: Share)
Chairman of Ezconn
Corporation
Chairman of eGtran
Chairman of eGtran Corp. Corp..
. Chairman of Gtran
Chairman of Gtran Inc. Inc
DII’EC'[OI’. of FlipChip Director of FlipChip
International Inc. .
. . . International Inc.
Director of Spatial Digital . .
Systems Inc Director of Spatial
EGTRAN LL.D., Law | Director of SHC Consolidated Dlgltal Systems Inc.
. CORPORATION Director of SHC
Director .~ | Schoo| HarvardjInvestors LLC . 3,565,741
Representative: Universit Chairman of TriMax & Consolidated Investo
CHEN, STEVE y ; LLC
Companies, LLC .
. Chairman of TiMax
Chairman of DNA Asset .
& Companies, LLC
Management LLC .
. . Chairman of Oak
Director of StemBios Tech :
. Analytics Inc.
Independenbirector of . .
) Director of StemBio
Sercomm Corporation
Tech
Independent Directd
of Sercomm
Corporation
SHC Department of|Founder of Ernst & Young  |Supervisor oEzconn
. CONSOLIDATED | Accountancy, | Director of eGtran Corp. Corporation
D
irector INVESTORS LLC | National Cheng Independent Director of Supervisor of 2,175,812
Representative: KO|Kung Uniersity|Avermedia Technologies, Inc. [Formosan United

11



YUAN-YU Supervisor of Tung Ho Steel |Corporation
Enterprise Corp. Supervisor of
Supervisor of First Life Knowledge Sharing
Insurance Co., Ltd. Technology Inc.
Photoelectric
TRANSNATIONAL | Industrial R&D
INVESTMENT Mastern_. . . .
Representative:AN, | National Taipei ' P P
CHING-YING University of
Technology
- Department of .
Jia Jiu Investment Cg . . President of Ezconn
Ltd Accountancy |Director and Eecutive Vice Corporation
Director N and Statistics, |President of Ezconn (Ningbo) | _. P 840,000
Representative: Hsing Wu  |Corporation Director of Ezconn
CHANG, YING-HUA | _ "9 P (Ningbo) Corporation
Business Scoo
Vice President of
Enflex Corporation
Independent Directd
of Eurocharm
EMBA, National ., . . . . ) . [Holdings Co., Ltd.
Independen L Chief Financial Officer of Entir T
.p PENG,HSIEH-JU Chiao Tung ! ! : : : Independent Directd 9,683
Director . . Technology Cq Ltd. .
University of Ezconn Corporatio
Member of the
Remuneration
Committee, Ezconn
Corporation
Emeritus Professor
and Adjunct Professg
at National
. . _|Professor at the Institute of . . .
Ph.D. in Physis, . SS r. St Yang-Ming University|
L Biophotonics and the Head of )
Independen California . . Lo Adjunc Professor a
) CHIU, ERHTE . Biophotonics Interdisciplinary . -
Director Institute of . National Cheng Kung
Research Center, National . . 3
Technology vanaMina Universit University
gMing y Adjunct Professor a
National Taiwan
Normal University
President of Calgent
Dean of the Taipei Medical Biotechnology Co.,
University Office of Business |Ltd.
Development Special Assistant for
°P HUANG, HUI-WEN | Taiwan 9y : oty -
Director Universit Ltd. President of Diligent
y Ji Zhi Hospital Management |Biotechnology Inc.
Consultancy Co., Ltd. President of Taipei
President of Lu Xing Business|Shi Da Pharmaceutic
Co., Ltd. Biotechnology Co.,
Ltd.

5. ltis hereby proposed s&hareholderfor making the decision.

Making TheElection

Resolution:
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The ninth case (Proposed by Board of Directors)
Cause: The release of roompetition restrictions on newly elected directors.
Explanation:

1. It is handled pursuant to ParagraphAtticle 209 of Company Act, "For the behavior of
Director conducted for himself/herself or other people within the business scope of the
Company, important contents of such behavior shall be described to the Shareholders'
Meeting to acquire the permissio

2. Certain Directors of the Company invest in or operate the company with the same or similar
business scope as the Company; it is planned to propose to the Shareholders' Meeting to
approve the waiver of necompetition for newly elected Directors in aotance with
Article 209 of the Company Act.

Items for release of necompetition are as follows:

Title Name Current Post in Other Companies
Chairman ofGtran Corp.

Chairman ofGtran Inc.

Director of FlipChip International Inc.
Director of Spatial Digital Systems Inc.
Director CHEN, STEVE |Director of SHC Consolidated Investors LLC
Chairman ofTfriMax & Companies, LLC
Chairman oDNA Asset Management LLC
Director of StemBios Tech

Independent Director @ddercomm Corporation

Supervisoof Formosan United Corporation

Director KO, YUAN-YU Supervisor oKnowledge Sharing Technology Inc
- CHANG, , . .
Director YING-HUA Director ofLight Mater TechnologyNingbo) INC.
Vice President oEnflex Corporation
Independent Director dgurocharm Holdings Co.,
PENG, Ltd.

IndependenbDirector Supervisor oEntire Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
Director of ICometrue Company Limited
Independent Director of Wafer Works (Shanghai)

Corporation

HSIEH-JU

President ofCalgent Biotechnology Caltd.

Special Assistant for the PresidentTafipei Medical
HUANG, University

HUI-WEN President oDiligent Biotechnology Inc.
President of Taipei Shi DRharmaceutical

BiotechnologyCo., Ltd.

IndependenbDirector

3. ltis hereby proposed &hareholderfor making the decision.
Resolution:

13



Ad Hoc Motion

Adjournment
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Attachment 1
Business Report

|. Business conditions in 2019
() Results of implementinthe business plan

In 2019, the consolidated net operating income is 234,158
thousand, representing a ye@aryear decrease of 14%, arieetconsolidated
operating margin i44.3%%, representing a yean-year decrease of 3%, the
consolidated net operating loss is N'B#85thousand, the consolidated net
loss after tax is NT#9,278thousand, the consolidated losses per share after
tax is NT$.28 The net value per share is N2&21.

(I) Financial revenue and expenditure and profitability analysis
1. Financial revenue and expenditure

In 2019, the consolidated net operating incowes NT$2,424,15
thousand, reduced by NT$380,948 thousand coedpawrith the
NT$2,805,106 thousand in 2018. In the aspect of earnings, in 2019, the
consolidated net loss after tax is NT$19,278 thousand, reduced by
NT$173,673 thousand comgatwith the NT$154,395 thousand in 2018.

2. Profitability analysis

Analysis item 2018 2019
Return on assets (%) | 4.99% | -0.52%

Net profit ratio (%) 5.50% | -0.80%

Basic earnigs per share
(NT$) 2.23 (0.28)

Notes: It is calculated according to the consolidated financial
statement in 2019.

g Return on equity (%) | 7.35% | -0.95%
& |Proportionint PAINY | 187106 | -2.81%
= aictup profit

Z P I (9 Net profit 0
S capital (%) before tax 31.20%6 | -0.90%
>

Q

<

@,

(7]

(Il R&D status
A. 1High-frequency connector product lines

Products researched, developednd manufactured by the
Company are mostly higliequency connectors, and we have strict
requirements on both stability and reliability of products. All kinds of
products are mainly applied in cable TV and cable broadband industries,
in responthg to rapid industry development, apart from continuously
improving the capability of product design and development by making
the best of own resources and actively participating in the technical
research with research institutions, the technology R&D team of the
Company also actively joins product standards assocgtimasters the
latest product standard specification, develops and renovates all kinds of
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products by planning, and acquires certifications from safety
specification units of various countries and customers, so as to take a
leading role in the industry drkeep in line with product requirements

of global customers.

In the aspect of product expansion, increase the predagout in
the new compressed coaxial connector, optoelectronic integrated
products, higkfrequency isolator, coaxial filter, high shdelg jumper
wire and new base station hiffiequency connector; in the aspect of
improving production efficiency, promote lean plan throughout the plant
and introduce intelligent production and assembly manner, effectively
improve production efficiency anglield; and in the aspect of talent
training, continue to implement educational training in each department
to strengthen the centripetal force of employees and training on
multi-skilled workers.

B. Optical Communications Business Group

Research and developmt of the Company mainly aim at three
application markets, namely applications in fixed broadband, data,center
and 5G forward and afterward network. In fixed broadband application,
the products developed include the X@&N BOSA onboard solution,
the XGSPON ONU transceiver under mass production, and the
10GEPON/XGSPON OLT optical transceiver module that has
completed sample presentation. Products planned to be newly developed
include the combo PON that is capable of coexisting with GPON
IXG-PON for flexble upgrading and application to fiberthe-home, in
industrial network connection, there are also many &N ONU
mini sticks with extensive application scenarios.

In the data center application, there are QSS#4 AOC and
transceiver modute that hae been developed and introduced in
production, aiming at the requirements of improving Ethernet interface
from 25Gps to the new standard 50Gps, and upgrading the data center
from 100Gbps to 400Gbps. Besides, R&D projects under planning
include 400G QSHPD SR8, SFP28R, and QSFP56R AOC optical
transceiver module. Ima single longdistan@ mode optical fiber
transmission scheme, what is expected to be finished is the DML
QSFP28LR4 product solution; its price is more competitive than the
traditional EML (BFP28LRA4.

In 5G forward and afterward network application, products under
development and related to forward network include SHHR&nd
SFP28BiDi optical transceiver module, for afterward network, it is the
XGS-PON mini ONU stick can be applied to smakll afterward
transmission, allowing the small cell to utilize the existing passive fiber
network for afterward transmission.

Furthermore, in order to accelerate the development of aforesaid
products, the R&D team continues to improve the reinforcenrent
high-frequency circuit design, integration of software and hardware,
packagingand testing capacity and manpower.

16



[I. Summary of 2020 business plan
() Business policy

1. Stabilize existing customer base and develop new customers in target
industries, and expdmmarket share.

2. Continuously promote standardized products and enhance the
commonality of each product to provide customers the design of
costeffectiveness and convenience.

3. Strengthen human resources cultivation and implement performance
appraisal.

4. At the stage of new product research and development, integrate the
customer requirements and manufacturing technology of key component
suppliers to shorten the time of research and developnaed
effectively reduce the cost.

5. Ensure product quality and improgestomer satisfaction.

6. Continuously introduce the production of automation equipment to
increase production efficiency and reduce laborscost

(II) Business target
1. High-frequency Connector Business Group
The target otheexpected business sales volum21§,873,558tems.
2. Optical Communications Business Group
The target otheexpected business sales volum83g051,054tems.

(1) Important production and sales policies

1. Production policy: continuous optimization tife production process,
improvement of produmn yield, and shortening product delivery,
forming the production system of economic scale and cost rationality by
vertical integration.

2. Sales policy: actively establish marketing strategic alliance or
partnership with key customers, spare no effortrtorte core products
and carry out marketing project management with the orientation of
customer requirements. Besides, fully master the market trend and
consumption trend, so as to promptly respond to diversified product
requirements of customers.

[ll. Future development strategy of the Company
() High-frequency Connector Business Group

It is set witha development unit for professional precision mold and
automated assembly equipment, responsible for the design and
manufacturing of precision mold and automatesdembly equipment,

and introduces mass production. Regarding the time of product research
and development and the degree of-setitrol of key technologies, the
Company has been taking a leading position in the industry domestically.
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(I) Optical Communicatins Business Group

In the longterm development strategy, the Company will improve internal
technical competence towards the extension of vertical integration and
develop products towards market diversification according to market and
technology trensl The Company will keep up with the driving factors for
the market, such as the effecttioé application of 5G wireless internet, data
center, clougand edge computing on demand for hggeed transceivers.
Furthermore, the Company would extend the oppdrasbf photoelectric
fabrication technologies in other application maskstich as laser scanning
and medical fields. The cultivation and acquisition of new technologies will
be madce through technicalcooperation with domestic and overseas
customers andlomestic research institutions in relevant industries. The
Company will establish stable and competitive product technologies.
Regarding

In the aspect of technical R&D personnel and organization, apart from
recruiting senior R&D personnel continuously,ettCompany will also
provide professional #service training to strengthen the professional skill
and project management capability of existing R&D personnel.

IV. Impact ofthe external competitive environment, regulatory environmand overall
operation emironment

Due to the continual trade war between China and the U.S. and the vertical
integration of certain competitors, the low price competition has become increasingly
competitive, and the Company will also continuously face the severe challenges in the
acquisition cost of key materials, inventory control and production efficiency, but the
management team and all employees of the Company will adhere to the spirit of
relentless fighting to break through the steep difficulty and adversity, spare no effort
to accomplish the annual growth mission and target of the company, creating the
maximum profits for all shareholders and the company.

ChairmanCHEN, STEVE

PresidenZHANG, YING-HUA

Accounting Supervisor CHUANG, KU@AN
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Attachment 2

EZconn Corporat i on 2019 Supervis
Report

Among the 2019 business report, individual financial statement, consolidated
financial statementand surplus distributigretc. of the Company prepared

and submitted by Board of Directors, the individual financiateshent and

the consolidated financial statement has been jointly auditedEby CHEN

and HUANG, HSIUCHUN, accountants from Deloitte & Touche, and audit
report has been issued, after we have examined the aforesaid business report,
individual financial sattement, consolidated financial statememd surplus
distribution etc., we have found no discrepancy, it is hereby issued this report

pursuant to Article 219 of Company Act for supervision.

Sincerely submitted to

EZconn Corporation 2020 General Megtin

Supervisor: KO, YUAN-YU (Signature)
Supervisor: CHIEN, CHIH-CHENG (Signature)
Supervisor: LAI, WEN-HSIEN (Signature)

March 20, 2020
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Attachment 3

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORSG6 REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
EZconn Corporation

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financi al st af
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the yeaentiseh and the notes to

the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of Decemisdr, 2019 and 2018, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the finaricetatements for the year ended December 31, 2019 in
accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing, and Attestation of Financial Statements by
Certified Public Accountants, Rule No. 1090360805 issued by the Financial Supervisory
Commission of the Replic of China on February 25, 2020, and auditing standards generally
accepted in the Republic of China. We conducted our audit of the financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018 in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing aratiéitest

of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted
in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Audi torsd Responsi bi l i ialiSatemeftosection bfeour epod.We ar@ f t h
independent of the Company in accordance with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified
Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance witlthese requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most sigrificance
our audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinitimese matters.

Key audit matters of the Companyds financi al st
stated as follows:

Impairment of Trade Receivables

As of December 31, 20109, the Companyodswahr ade r
dol Il ars (ANTS$ 0 $392,08thousand (retl of allowanseT for impairment loss of
NT$132,904 thousand). Since the provision for impairment of trade receivables is based on
management 6s subj ective | udgme nbies, ihisidentfiefdfaze ct e d
one of the key audit matters.

Please refer to Notes 4, 5 and 9 to the financial statements for the accounting policy, critical
accounting estimates and judgements, and details of the information about trade receivables.

20



The audt procedures we performed in response to the above key audit matter included the
following:

1. We obtained an understanding of the design of the key controls over trade receivables and we
tested the operating effectiveness of such controls.

2. We obtaired an understanding of the accounting policy on impairment of trade receivables,
and we reviewed the rate of impairment loss in prior years to assess the reasonableness of the
allowance for impairment loss calculated by management for the current year.

3. We assessed the reasonableness of the allowance for impairment loss by verifying the accuracy
of the related report.

4. We reviewed the collection of individually material trade receivable balances after balance
sheet date to assess whether any addltimoaision is needed.

Impairment of Inventory

As of December 31, 2019, t he $3a9@82thousar@gnetiom vent o
provision for inventory value decline of I$94,896thousand). Please refer to Notes 4, 5 and 10 to
the financial steements for the details of the information.

The Company s i nventories are stated at the | ower of
net realizable wvalue is affected by managemer
fluctuating demand rad rapid changes in technology, inventories may become-ralaving or

obsolete. Therefore, it has been identified as a key audit matter.

The audit procedures we performed in response to the above key audit matter included the
following:

1. We obtained annderstanding of the design of the controls over valuation of inventory and we
tested the operating effectiveness of such controls.

2. We obtained an understanding of the reasonableness of the accounting policy on inventory
write-downs, and tested theiag of inventory and verified that the valuation of inventory
confirmed with the Companyds policy.

3. We compared the carrying values to the latest sales invoices of sample items to assess whether
they were measured at the lower of cost or net realizalhle.

4. We observed physical inventory count and assessed the physical condition of inventory to
evaluate the adequacy of inventory provisions of obsolete and damaged goods.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Finzal
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers, and for such internal control as manmnt determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

I n preparing the financi al statement s, manage.l
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
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and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternatite dmso.

Those charged with governance, including the supervisors, are responsible for overseeing the
Companybés financi al reporting process.

Auditorsd Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Our objectives are to obtain reasonaldsusance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from materi al mi sstatement , whet her d
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is noteeguara

that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, iddally or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic o
China, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audibqedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as frad may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the cirdantes, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Companyobs

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made byagement.

4., Concl ude on t he appropriateness of manageme
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubteon tCo mpany 6s abi |
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditorsd report to
if such disclosures are inadequate,modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audi t evidence obtained up to the date of 0
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentatjostructure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate auditidence regarding the financial information of entities
or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the audit. We remain
solely responsile for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
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in internal control that we ideifif during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonabliidagiit to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for thengsst December

31, 2019 and are therefore the key audit matte
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matherukd not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the mpodaraChredergul ti ng
Chen and HsiChun Huang.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

March 20,2020

Notice to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position,
financial performane and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards,
procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those genepifgdap the
Republic of China.

For the convenience of reader s, the independen
statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used

in the Republic of China. Ithere is any conflict between the English version and the original
Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the GClhamgsage
independent auditorsodé report and the financi al
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EZCONN CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2019 2018
ASSETS Amount % Amount %
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 6) $ 745,091 25 $ 880,592 27
Financial asets at amortized costurrent (Notes 4 and 8) 12,892 1 13,426 -
Notes receivable from unrelated parties (Notes 4, 5 and 9) 1,455 - 2,109 -
Trade receivables from unrelated parties (Notes 4, 5 and 9) 392,086 13 557,015 17
Trade receivables from related parties (Notes 4, 5, 9 and 27) 57 - 7 -
Other receivables (Notes 4, 5 and 9) 12,323 - 13,921 1
Current tax assets (Notes 4 and 23) - - 1,690 -
Inventorieg(Notes 4, 5 and 10) 309,682 10 407,290 12
Prepayments and other current assets 2,786 - 1,814 -
Total current assets 1,476,372 49 1,877,864 57
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incoomecurrent (Notes 4 and ° 37,715 1 42,018 1
Financial assets at amortized cosbrrcurrent (Notes 4, 8 and 28) 2,225 - 2,202 -
Investments amunted for using equity method (Notes 4 and 11) 941,519 32 1,167,077 35
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4, 12 and 27) 393,593 13 121,173 4
Right-of-use assets (Notes 3, 4 and 13) 43,036 2 - -
Intangble assets (Notes 4 and 14) 4,035 - 6,957 -
Deferred tax assets (Notes 4, 5 and 23) 89,804 3 79,992 3
Prepayments for equipment 9,596 - 2,122 -
Refundable deposits 3,206 - 3,038 -
Total norcurrent assets 1,524,729 51 1,424,579 43
TOTAL $ 3,001,101 100 $ 3,302,443 100
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Shortterm borrowings (Note 15) $ 390,000 13 220,000 7
Notes payable (Note 16) 324 - 379 -
Trade payables to unrelated parties (Note 16) 183,575 6 342,122 10
Trade payables to related parties (Notes 16 and 27) 158,912 5 291,155 9
Other payables (Notes 17 and 27) 79,329 3 118,992 4
Current tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 23) 16,741 1 - -
Provisions- current (Notes 4 and 18) 8,055 - 8,055 -
Lease liaHities - current (Notes 3, 4, 13 and 27) 11,424 - - -
Other current liabilities (Notes 4 and 21) 56,618 2 44,810 1
Total current liabilities 904,978 30 1,025,513 31
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 23) 47,604 2 86,597 3
Lease liabilities non-current (Notes 3, 4, 13 and 27) 31,783 1 - -
Net defined benefit liabilities (Notes 4 and 19) 61411 2 71,566 2
Guarantee deposits received 400 - 400 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 141,198 5 158,563 5
Total liabilities 1,046,176 35 1,184,076 36
EQUITY (Notes 4 and 20)
Ordinary shares 693,000 23 660,000 20
Capital surplus 234,872 8 234,872 7
Legal reserve 233,370 8 217,931 7
Special reserve 64,280 2 50,573 1
Unappropriated earnings 832,383 28 1,019,271 31
Other equity (102,980 4 (64,280 (2
Total equity 1,954,925 65 2,118,367 64
TOTAL 3,001,101 100 3,302,443 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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EZCONN CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Exept Earnings/(Loss)Per Share)

2019 2018
Amount % Amount %
NET REVENUE (Notes 4, 5, 21 and 27) $ 2,173,335 100 $ 2,494,537 100
COST OF REVENUE (Notes 10, 19, 22 and 27) 1,941,986 89 2,160,471 87
GROSS PROFIT 231,349 11 334,066 13
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 9, 19, 22 and 27)
Selling and marketing expenses 58,452 3 57,273 2
General and administratiexpenses 92,104 4 144,804 6
Research and development expenses 108,161 5 110,005 5
Total operating expenses 258,717 12 312,082 13
OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPNSES
(Note 9) - - 64,841 3
(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (27,369 (1) 86,825 3
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
(Notes 4, 11 and 22)
Other income 11,163 - 10,923 -
Other gains and losses (11,092 D 40,477 2
Share of profit or loss of subsidiaries 18,695 1 52,258 2
Finance costs (3,589 - (2,262 -
Total noroperating incomand expenses 15,181 - 101,396 4
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (12,187 (1) 188,221 7
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4, 5 and 23) 7,091 - 33,826 1
NET (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (19,279 (@D} 154,395 6
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME /(LOSS)
(Notes 4, 7, 19 and 23)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently tc
profit or loss:
Remeasuresnt of defined benefit plans (8,080 - 3,332 -
Unrealized loss on investments in equity
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (4,303 - ©)] -
(Continued)
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EZCONN CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings/(Los$er Share)

2019 2018
Amount % Amount %
Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified subsequently poofit or loss 2,476 - (400 -
(9,907 - 2,929 -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to pi
or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations (44,0723 2 (20,732 -
Income tax relating to items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 8,815 - 3,980 -
(35,25% (2) (16,752 -
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net ¢
income tax (45,169 (2 (13,829 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR
THE YEAR $ (64,449 3 $ 140,573 6
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARENote 29)
Basic ($_0.28 $ 2.23
Diluted ($_0.28 $ 2.2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. (Concluded)
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EZCONN CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Share Capital (Note 20)

Share (In
Thousands)
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2018 66,000

Effect of retrospective application -

Amount

$ 660,000

Capital Surplus
(Note 20)

$ 234,872

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2018 AS RESTATED 66,000
Appropriation of 2017 earnings
Legal reserve -
Special reserve -
Cash dividends distributed by the Company -

Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2018 -

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended
December 31, 2018, net of income tax -

660,000

234,872

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended
Decembe 31, 2018 -

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2018 AS RESTATED

Appropriation of 2018 earnings
Legal reserve -
Special reserve -
Cash dividends distributed by the Company
Share distributed by the Company

Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2019 -

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended
December 31, 2019, net of income tax -

660,000

33,000

234,872

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended
December 31, 2019 -

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2019 69,300

$ 693,000

$ 234,872

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Other Equity (Notes4 and 20)

Unrealized
Gain (Loss) on
Financial
Exchange Assets at Fair
Differences on Value Through
Retained Earnings (Notes 20) Translating Other
Unappropriated Foreign Comprehensive
Legal Reserve Special Reserve Earnings Total Operations Income Total Total Equity
$ 213,230 $ 35,315 $ 992,547 $ 1,241,092 $ (50,573 $ - $ (50,573 $ 2,085,391
- - 21,243 21,243 - 3,160 3,160 24,403
213,230 35,315 1,013,790 1,262,335 (50,573 3,10 (47,413 2,109,794
4,701 - (4,701 - - - - -
- 15,258 (15,259 - - - - -
- - (132,000 (132,000 - - - (132,000
- - 154,395 154,395 - - - 154,395
- - 3,045 3,045 (16,753 (116 (16,8679 (13,823
- - 157,440 157,440 (16,752 (116 (16,86% 140,573
217,931 50,573 1,019,271 1,287,775 (67,329 3,044 (64,280 2,118,367
15,439 - (15,439 - - - - -
- 13,707 (13,7079 - - - - -
- - (99,000 (99,000 - - - (99,000
- - (33,000 (33,0009 - - - -
- - (19,279 (19,279 - - - (19,279
- - (6,469 (6,469 (35,259 (3,443 (38,700 (45,169
- - (25,7429 (25,7429 (35,257 (3.443 (38,700 (64,442
$ 233,370 $ 64,280 $ 832,383 $ 1,130,033 $ (102,58) $ (399 $ (102,980 $ 1,954,925
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EZCONN CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollas)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expenses
Amortization expenses
Expected credit Iasreversed on trade receivables
Finance costs
Interest income
Share of profit of subsidiaries
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Write-downs of inventories
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Notes receivable
Trade receivables from unrelated parties
Trade receivables from related pest
Other receivables
Inventories
Prepayments and other current assets
Notes payable
Trade payables to unrelated parties
Trade payables to related parties
Other payables
Other current liabilities
Net defined benefit liability
Cash (used in)/generated from oftienas
Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of financial assets at amortized cost
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at amortized cost
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipme
Payments for property, plant and equipment
(Increase)/decrease in refundable deposits
Payments for intangible assets
Dividends received from subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from shetéerm borrowings
Repayments of shetérm borrowings

28

2019 2018
(12,187 $ 188,221
50,175 32,033
5,239 6,778
(949 (65,772
3,586 2,262
(11,093 (10,396
(18,695 (52,259
(115 709
2,912 2,255
654 1,760
165,878 (53,279
(50 33
887 (2,222
94,696 (103,462
(972 846
(55 (131,548
(158,547 243602
(132,243 (11,987
(38,955 25,026
11,808 (30,186
(18,235 (1,779
(56,259 40,646
11,802 10,005
(3,512 (2,316
(26,179 (970
(74,143 47,365
(16,299 (33,0423
16,809 40,089
13 -
(316,744 (30,088
(168 150
(2,037 (7,359
200302 -
(118,123 (30,245
2,500,000 2,410,000
(2,339000 (2,410,000
(Continued)



EZCONN CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2019 2018
Repayment of the principal of lease liabilities $ (14,239 -
Dividends paid to owners of the Company (99,000 (132,000
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities 56,765 (132,000
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (135,502} (114,880
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR 880,592 995,472
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR $ 745,091 880,592
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. (Conclude)
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| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORSS6 REPORT

TheBoard of Directors andraréholders
EZconn Corporation

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of EZwponatiorand its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the cbdated balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and
2018, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows fc
the years then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2019 aad@@$8
consolidated financial pfarmance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International AccountingSisid\S),

IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by the
Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audiff the consolidated financial statemefassthe year ended December 31, 2019

in accordance with the Regulations Governing Audjtargl Attestation of Financial Statements by
Certified Public Accountant&Rule No. 1090360805 issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission

of the Republic of Chinan February 25, 202@nd auditing standards generally accepted in the
Republic of ChinaWe conducted our audf the consolidatetinancial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2018 accordance with thRegulations Governing Auditing and Attagon of

Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in the
Republicof ChinaOur responsibilities under those stan
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Conslzlted Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public
Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accadance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were sigmiéisance in our

audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, andevdo not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit mattersf theG r o ucpn8didated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2019 are stated as follows:

Impairment of Trade Receivalsle

As of December 31, 2019, tidroupd sadd receivables, which are presented in New Taiwan gollar
(ANT$0), a mds6,436ttmasand et &f allwance for impairment loss of N3%220

t housand). Since the provision for i mpairment
subjective jldgment and affected by credit risks on receivables, it is identified as one of the key audit
matters.

Please refer to Notes 4, 5 adtb the consolidated financial statements for the accounting policy
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critical accounting estimates and judgements,datdils of the informatiombout trade receivables.
The audit procedures we performed in response to the above key audit matter included the following:

1. We obtained an understanding of the design of the key controls over trade receivables and we
testedthe operating effectiveness of such controls.

2. We obtained an understanding of the accounting policy on impairment of trade receivables, and w
reviewed the rate of impairment loss in prior years to assess the reasonableness of the allowance
for impaiment loss calculated by management for the current year.

3. We assessed the reasonableness of the allowance for impairment loss by verifying the accuracy o
the related report.

4. We reviewed the collection of individually material trade receivable bataafter balance sheet
date to assess whether any additional provision is needed.

Impairment of Inventory

As of December 31, 2019, t hed60BmR6thaupadds(neiohvent or
provision for inventory value decline of NT42,043thousad). Please refer to Notes 4, 5 afidd
the consolidated financial statements for the details of the information.

The Group6s i nateheloveerof oo or aet realizable aahrel estimation of net
realizable valués affected by managme nt 6s subjective judgement.
demand and rapid changes in technology, inventories may becommeling or obsolete. Therefore,
it has been identified as a key audit matter.

The audit procedures we performed in responsieg@bove key audit matter included the following:

1. We obtained an understanding of the design of the controls over valuation of inventory and we
tested the operating effectiveness of such controls.

2. We obtained an understanding of the reasonaldesfdbe accounting policy on inventory
write-downs, and tested the aging of inventory and verified that the valuation of inventory
conformed with the Groupds policy.

3. We compared the carrying values to the latest sales invoices of sample itemsstavhefiesr
they were measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

4. We observed physical inventory count and assessed the physical condition of inventory to evaluat
the adequacy of inventory provisions of obsolete and damaged goods.

Other Matt er

We have also audited the parent company only financial statements of EZconn Corporation as of and
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Goveance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Isuers and the IFRS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial
Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated fistateraents that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Groupdbs ability to conti nue a,Snateers glatedrioggoilgonc er
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquide
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including thegpse r vi sor s, are responsi bl
financial reporting process.

Audi torso6 Responsibilities for the Audit of t

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Stateroients

as a whole are free from materi al mi sstat emen
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted iooadance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregateptiidy c

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, we exercisprofessional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedesponsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud mayvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedure
that are appropriate in the circumstantes,not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Groupbs internal contr c

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4, Concl ude on the appropriateness of managemer
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may c allitytosdantqueiad a goiregicancert.o u |
I f we conclude that a materi al uncertainty e
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequateto modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
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the date of our auditorsodé report. However, f
to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentatj@tructure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficiet and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statement:
We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performarice gfoup audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significaciedefes in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relatemships

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters the
were of most significance in the atudf the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2019 and are therefore the key a
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or wherenmebxtare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partisenn the audit resulting in this independenttwudir s 6 r e pHungt ar e
Chenand HsiuChun Huang.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

March 20, 2020

Notice to Readers

The accompanyingonsolidatedinancial statements are interdlenly to present theonsolidatedinancial
position,financial performancend cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards,ggocedur
and practices to audit suaonsolidatedinancial statements are those generally applied in the Republic of
China.

For the convenience of readers,thend e pendent a u dactompasyihgonselpaied finanaiad d t h
statementdiave been tranated into English from the original Chinese versgweparedand used in the

Republic of Chinalf there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any
difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chitesguagdandependenauditordreport and
consolidatedinancial statements shall prevail.
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EZCONN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2019AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

34

2019 2018
ASSETS Amount % Amount
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 6) $1,095,468 37  $1,225,360 38
Financial assets at amortized costirrent (Notes 4 and 8) 59,606 2 61,357 2
Notes receivable (Notes 4, B9) 11,248 - 16,879 -
Trade receivables from unrelated parties (Notes 4, 5 and 9) 456,436 15 632,666 19
Trade receivables from related parties (Notes 4, 5, 9 and 28) 57 - 7 -
Other receivables (Notes 3 and 9) 16,154 1 18,516 1
Current tax assets (Notes 4 and 24) 3,893 - 1,690 -
Inventories (Notes 4, 5 and 10) 460,526 15 695,272 21
Prepayments and other current assets (Note 3, 13, and 15) 12,201 1 19,140 1
Total current assets 2,115,589 71 2,670,887 82
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incoomecurrent (Notes
4 and 7) 37,715 1 42,018 1
Financial assets at amortized cosbncurrent (Notes 4, 8 and 29) 2,225 - 2,202 -
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4, 12 and 28) 637,785 21 395,581 12
Right-of-use assets (Note 3, Ach13) 66,809 2 - -
Intangible assets (Notes 4 and 14) 8,743 - 10,532 1
Deferred tax assets (Notes 4, 5 and 24) 103,585 4 91,549 3
Prepayments for equipment 13,305 1 3,997 -
Refundable degsits 3,326 - 3,163 -
Long-term prepayments for leases (Note 3,13 and 15) - - 23,353 1
Total noncurrent assets 873,493 29 572,395 18
TOTAL $2,989,082 100 $3,243,282 100
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Shortterm borrowings (Note 16) $ 390,000 13 $ 220,000 7
Notes payable (Note 17) 324 - 379 -
Trade payable@Note 17) 252,267 9 483,545 15
Other payables (Note 18) 135,814 5 183,703 6
Current tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 24) 17,519 1 6,060 -
Provisions- current (Notes 4 and 19) 8,055 - 8,055 -
Lease liabilities current (Note 3, 4 and 13) 12,364 - -
Other current liabilities (Notes 4 and 22) 68,668 56,551 2
Total current liabilities 885,011 30 958,293 30
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 24) 47,604 2 86,597 3
Lease liabilities non-current (Note 3, 4 and 13) 32,215 1 - -
Net defined benefit liabilities (Notes 4 and 20) 61411 2 71,566 2
Other norcurrent liabilities 7,916 - 8,459 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 149,146 5 166,622 5
Total liabilities 1,034,157 35 1,124,945 35
EQUITY (Notes 4 and 21)
Ordinary shares 693,000 23 660,000 20
Capital surplus 234,872 8 234,872 7
Legal reserve 233,370 8 217,931 7
Special reserve 64,280 2 50,573 2
Unappropriated earnings 832,383 28 1,019,271 31
Other equity (102,980 4 (64,280 2
Total equity 1,954,925 65 2,118,367 65
TOTAL $2,989,082 100 $3,243,282 100



EZCONN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars Except Earningg(Loss)Per Share

2019 2018
Amount % Amount %

NET REVENUE (Notes 4, 5, 22 and 28) $2,424,158 100 $2,805,106 100
COST OF REVENUE (Notes 1@0 and 23) 2,076,513 86 2,326,365 83
GROSS PROFIT 347,645 14 478,741 17
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 9, 20, 23 and

28)

Selling and marketing expenses 73,467 3 73,260 3

General and administrative expenses 167,725 7 218,398 8

Research and development expenses 125,938 5 122,297 4

Total operating expenses 367,130 15 413,955 15

OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND

EXPENSES (Note 9) - - 64,841 2
(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (19,485 QD 129,627 4
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

(Notes 4, 13 and 23)

Other income 18,304 1 14,993 1

Other gains and losses (1,295 - 63,688 2

Finance costs (3,738 - (2,419 -

Total noroperating income and expense: 13,271 1 76,265 3

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (6,219 - 205,892 7
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4, 5 and 24) 13,064 1 51,497 2
NET (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (19,278 (1) 154,395 5

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
(Notes 4, 7, 21 and 24)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequent
to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (8,080 - 3,332 -
Unrealized loss on investments in equity
instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income (4,303 - (©)) -
Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 2,476 - (400 -

(Continued)
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EZCONN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars Except Earningg(Loss)Per Share

2019 2018
Amount % Amount %
(9,909 - 2,929 -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreigt
operations (44,072 (2 (20,732 -
Income ta relating to items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 8,815 - 3,980 -
(35,257 (2 (16,759 -
Other comprehensive loss for the year, n
of income tax (45,169 (2 (13,823 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
FOR THE YEAR $ (64,449 (3 $ 140,573 5
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 25)
Basic $ (0.28 $ 234
Diluted $ (0.28 $ 233

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statemef@oncluded)
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EZCONN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019AND 2018

(In Thousands of NewTaiwan Dollars)

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2018
Effect of retrospective application

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2018 AS
RESTATED

Appropriation of 2017 earnings
Legal reserve
Special Reserve
Cash dividends distributed by the Company

Net loss for the year ended December 31, 201€

Other comprehensé&vincome (loss) for the year
ended December 31, 2018, net of income tax

Total comprehensive inene (loss) for the year
ended December 31, 2018

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2018 AS
RESTATED

Appropriation of 2018 earnings
Legal reseve
Special reserve
Cash dividends distributed by the Company
Share dividends distributed by the Company

Net los for the year ended December 31, 2019

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the yeau
ended December 31, 28Inet of income tax

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year
ended December 32019

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

Other Equity (Notes 4 and 21)

Unrealized
Gain (Loss)
Exchange on Financial
Differences Assets at
on Fair
Share Capital (Note 21) Capital Retained Earnings (Notes 21) Translating Value
Unappropria
Share (In Surplus Special - Foreign Comprehen
Legal
Thousands) Amount (Note 22) Reserve Reserve ted Earnings Total Operations  sive Income Total Total Equity
66,000 $ 660,000 $ 234872 $ 213230 $ 35315 $ 992547 $1,241,092 $ (50,573 $ - $ (50,573 $2,085,391
- - - - - 21,243 21,243 - 3,160 3,160 24,403
66,000 660,000 234,872 213,230 35,315 1,013,B0 1,262,335 (50,573 3,160 (47,413 2,109,794
- - - 4,701 - (4,700 - - - - -
- - - - 15,258 (15,258 - - - - -
- - - - - (132,000 (132,000 - - - (132,000
- - - - - 154,395 154,395 - - - 154,395
- - - - - 3,045 3,045 (16,752 (116 (16,867 (13,8229
- - - - - 157,440 157,440 (16,75) (116 (16,867 140,573
66,000 660,000 234,872 217,931 50,573 1,019,271 1,287,775 (67,329 3,044 (64,280 2,118,367
- - - 15,439 - (15,439 - - - - -
- - - - 13,707 (13,707 - - - - -
- - - - - (99,000 (99,0009 - - - (99,000
3,300 33,000 - - - (33,000 (33,000 - - - -
- - - - - (19,279 (219,279 - - - (19,279
- - - - - (6,469 (6,469 (35,25% (3,443 (38,700 (45,169
- - - - - (25,742 (25,742 (35,257 (3,443 (38,700 (64,442
69,300 $ 693,000 $ 234872 $ 233370 $ 64280 $ 832,383 $1,130,033 $ (102,58) $ (399 $ (102,980 $1,954,925

The accompanying notes are an integral part otdmsolidatedinancial statements.
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EZCONN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/income before income tax $ (6,219 $ 205,892
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expenses 87,789 67,170
Amortization expenses 5,658 7,158
Expected credit loss reversed on trade receivables (949 (65,772
Amortization of prepayments for leases - 707
Finance costs 3,738 2,416
Interest income (16,701 (23,710
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 195 1,736
Write-downs of inventories 14,053 2,255
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Notes receivable 5,631 12,660
Trade receivables from unatéd parties 180,474 (60,952
Trade receivables from related parties (50 33
Other receivables 2,182 (3,500
Inventories 222,607 (174,562
Prepayments and other current assets 6,245 (7,525
Notes payable (55) (131,549
Trade payables (231,279 305,934
Other payables (46,919 21,416
Other current liabilities 12,117 (31,369
Net defined benefit liability (18,235 (1,779
Cash generated from operations 220,288 136,670
Interest received 16,881 13,320
Interest paid (3,669 (2,470
Income tax paid (44,289 (1,635
Net cash generated from operating activities 189,221 145,885
CASH FLOWS FROM INESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of financial assets at amortized cost (79,686 (97,929
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at amortized cost 79,873 104,025
Payments for property, plant and equipment (334,749 (63,189
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 13 1,060
(Increase)/decrease in refundable deposits (168 160
Payments for intangible assets (3,753 (9,185
Net cash used in investing activities (338,470 (65,055
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from shetéerm borrowings 2,500,000 2,410,000
Repayments of shetérm borrowings (2,330,000 (2,410,000
Repayment of the principal portion of lease lidies (15,1779 -
Decrease in other nesurrent liabilities (543 (380
(Continued)
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EZCONN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019AND 2018
(In Thousands of New TaiwanDollars)

Dividends paid to owners of the Company
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON THE
BALANCE OF CASH HELD IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF
THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE
YEAR

2019 2018
$ (99,000 $ (132,000
55,280 (132,380
(35,923 (11,467
(129,893 (63,017
1,225,360 1,288,377
$1,095468  $1,225.360

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Attachment 4

EZconn Corporation /with stamp/
Surplus Distribution Statement

2019

Opening undistributed surplus 858,123,862
Actuarial gains (losses) listed into reserved (6,464,161)
surplus
Undistributed surplus after adjustment 851,659,701
Net loss of the term (19,277,804)
Allocation of special surplus reserve punsue (38,700,513)
to law
Distributable surplus of the term 793,681,384
Distribution item

Cash dividend (90,168,000)
Ending undistributed surplus 703,513,384

ChairmanCHEN, STEVE Managerial officerZHANG, Accounting Supetisor:
(seal) YING-HUA (seal) CHUANG, KUO-AN (seal)
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Attachment 5

EZcon

Compari son

Tabl

n Corporation
e on Amendmen

ts to

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

Article
3

The company setbe parent compan
in Taipei City, when necessathe
branch may be incorporated both |

home and abroad with the board
resolution and approval difie
competent authority.

The company setbe parent company in
New Taipei City, when necessary; the
branch may be incorporated both at hof
and abroad wit the board resolution anc
approval otthe competent authority.

According to
the
reallocation
of the parent

company.

Chapte

Directors and Supervisors

Directors andsupervisersthe Audit

Committee

Deleted the
term
fisuper v
according to
the
establifment
of the Audit
Committee.

Article
15

The Company sets five to nine
directors and two to three supervist
with three years aheterm of office,

they will be elected by the

Shareholders' Meeting from the
persons with disposing capacity, al

reappoinment is acceptable if

re-elected.

Among the aforesaid seats of direct
the number of independeditectors
shall be at least two and no less th

onefifth of the total seats of director
The candidate nomination system

prescribed in 1 of Article 1Dof
Company Act will be adopted for th
election of independent directors.

Relevant matters regarding the
acceptance and announcement etq

the nomination of independent dired

candidates shall be handled pursua
the Company Act, Securities Excluga
Act and relevant laws and decree|
Independent directors and
nonrindependent directors shall bg
elected concurrently, and election
quota will be calculated separately
The total shareholding ratio of all
directors and supervisors of the

Company are subgt to the regulatior

of securities regulatory authority.

The Company sets five to nine directersd
two-to-three-superviserswith three years
of theterm of office, they will be elected
the Shareholders' Meeting from the pers
with disposing capaty, and reappointmer
is acceptable if relected.

Among the aforesaid seats of directors,
number of independedirectorsshall be af
least two and no less than eiiféh of the

total seats of directors. The candidate
nomination system as prescribedli of
Article 192 of Company Act will be adopt
for the election of independent director
Relevant matters regarding the accepta
and announcement etc. of the nominatio
independent director candidates shall |
handled pursuant to the Company Act
Securities Exchange Act and relevant |3
and decrees. Independent directors ar
non-independent directors shall be elect
concurrently, and election quota will bq
calculated separately.
The total shareholding ratio of all directg
and-supervisorsof theCompany are
subject to the regulations of securities
regulatory authority.

Deleted the
term
fisuper v
and relevant
wordings
according to
the
establishmen
of the Audit
Committee.

Article
151

For the election of directors and
supervisors, every shaseall have thi

For the election of directoend-
supervisors every share shall have the ri

right to vote equivalent to the numi

to vote equivalent to the number of direc|

Deleted the
term

fisuper v

-41-
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Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

of directors and supervisors should

elected, it may elect one person

intensively or elect several person

respectively, and the ones represen
votes will be elected.

and-supenrvisersshould be elected, it ma

elect one person intensively or elect sev
persons respectively, and the ones
representing votes will be elected.

according to
the
establishmen
of the Audit
Committee.

Article
16

When the director's number of
vacancies reaches to etterd of the
total number or all supervisors are
removed, the Board of Directors sh
convenethelntei m Shar ¢

Meeting within thirty days fothe

by-election, and the term of office
thereof is limited to make up the tef
of office of the original directors or|
supervisors. After public offering by
the CompanytheBoard of Directors
shall convenehe Interim
Sharehol der so
days fortheby-election.

The Company may buy liability
insurance for the directors and
supervisors within their term of offic
for the compensation liability shall &
borne within their scopes of busine
exeaition.

M

When the director's number of vacancis
reaches to onthird of the total number o
all supervisoersindependent directorsare

removed, the Board of Directors shall
convene the Interi
within thirty days forthe by-election, and
the term of office thereof is limited to ma|
up the term of office of the original direct(
or supervisors. After public offering by th
Companythe Board of Directors shall
convene the Interi
within sixty days forthe by-electim.
The Company may buy liability insurancg
for the directorand-superviserswithin
their term of office for the compensatio
liability shall be borne within their scopes
business execution.
When the term of the directors expire an(
by-election may be aranged in time,
extend the directo
the assuming of office by the reelected
directors.

Deleted the
term
Asuper
and relevant
wordings
according to
the
establishmen
of the Audit
Committee.

Article
17

Directors may establisime Board of
Directors, and one Chairman and g
Deputy Chairman may be mutually
elected with the consent of the
majority of attending directors in th
meeting attended by more than
two-thirds of the directors, and the
Chairman acts on behalf of the
Compalry externallyWhen the
Chairman cannot exercise its functi
and power when on leave or for g
reason, its proxy shall be handlec
pursuant to Article 208 of Compan
Act.

Each director and supervisor may |
notified in writing, by email or fax
when conveninghe Board of
Directors Meeting.

When a director cannot attend thq
Board of Directors Meeting for som
reason, he/she may issue the pro;
statement and list the authorizatio
scope in the subject of convocation
appoint other directsito attend, but
onedirector can only represent on

Directors may establish the Board of
Directors, and one Chairman and ong
Deputy Chairman may be mutually elect
with the consent of the majority of attend
directors in the meeting attended by mg
than twathirds of the directors, and the
Chairman acts on behalf of the Compa
externally.When the Chairman cannot
exercise its function and power when g
leave or for agason, its proxy shall be
handled pursuant to Article 208 of Comp
Act.

Each directoand-supervisermay be
notified in writing, by email or fax when
convening the Board of Directors Meetir
When a director cannot attend the Boarg
Directors Meetingdr some reason, he/sli
may issue the proxy statement and list {
authorization scope in the subject of

convocation to appoint other direcido
attend, but one director can only repres

one other director.

If a director attenslthe meeting via videot
shall be deemed as attending in perso

Deleted the
term
Asuper
according to
the
establishmen
of the Audit
Committee.
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Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of

amendment
other director.
If a director attenslthe meeting via
video, it shall be deemed as attend
in person.
Article | The supervisor set by the Company Fhe-supervisorset-by-the Companyis| State the
19 responsible for supervising all | respoensible-forsupervising-al-businessg composition
businesses of the Company pursua| eofthe-Company-pursuanttotaws-and of the
laws anddecrees. But aftehepublic | decrees-—Butaftethepublicoffering- | Co mp a n
offering, when the Company is settif whenr—t+-he—GCompany—+ Audit
the AAudit CommiGCemmi—tteed—pursuan|Commitee.
of Article 14 of Securities Exchang| Securities-Exchange-Act-there-is-ho-hee|
Act, there is no need to set the |to-setthe-supervisor-ifthe-supervisorha
supervisor; if the supervisor has be been-set-helshe-willberemoved-certain
set, he/she will be removed certain vpon—the—establi
upont he establ i sl Commitee—andprovisionsonthe
Committee and provisions on the| supervisorhereof-willalsolose-effect
supervisor hereof will also lose effe mmediately
immediately. Regarding-the-headecountthe term-of
Regarding the headcoutiieterm of ice; ion; !
office, function and power, rules of| precedure-ete—ofthe Audit Committeeit
procedureetc. oftheAudit shal-be-otherwise formulated-inthe
Committee, it shall be otherwise Audit-Committee- Organizational
formulated in the Audit Committeel  Regulationspursuantto-the Publie
Organizational Regulations pursuan Cempany-AuditCommittee-Authority-
the Public Company Audit Committy Exercising-Measures.
Authority Exercising Measures. | Funections-and-powers-of-the-supervisor
Functions and powers of the are-as-follows:
supervisor are as follows: 1. Supervise the execution of corporat
1. Supervise the execution of business.
corporate business. 2—Investigatethe business-and-finaneig
2. Investigatehebusiness and conditions-of-the-company.
financial conditions of the company 3—Audit-al-kinds-of- the-book-of tables
3. Audit all kinds ofthebook of orforms-prepared-by-the Board-of
tables or forms prepared bye Board Directors and proposed to the
of Directors and proposed to the Shareholders"Meeting.
Shareholders' Meeting. 4. Other functions and powers granted
4. Other functions and powers | ir-accordance-with-the-provisions-othe-
granted in accordance with the Company-Act:

provisions othe Company Act.

The Company established its Audit
Committee according to Article 144 of
the Securities and Exchange Actwhich
comprised of all Independent Directors.

The Committee is responsible for
executing the function of supervisors
required by the Company Act, the
Securities and Exchange Act, and other
laws and regulations. Members, the
exercise of functions, and othematters of
the Audit Committee to be observed sha
comply with relevant laws and
regulations, and the organization

regulation shall be otherwise formulated
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Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of

amendment
by the Board of Directors.
To strengthen the supervisory function
and reinforce the management
medanisms, other functional committees
may be established in due course
according to the requirements of the
Company.
Article Fortheexecution of duties of the | Fortheexeaition of duties of the Compar Deleted the
20 |[Company by directors and supervis by directorsand-supervisersof the term
of the Company, regardless of | Company, regardless of operating profitfi s u p e r
operating profit or loss, the Compal loss, the Company shall pay regular | according to
shall pay regular compensations sy compensations such as transportatior the
as transportation allowance and |allowance and remuneratiogtc., and Boarestablishmen
remunerationetc., and Board of |of Directors is authorized tetermine thei| of the Audit
Directors is authorized to determin remuneration based on their degree g Committee.
their remuneration based on theilparticipation in and value adlfie contributior]
degree of partipation in and value qto the company operation and by referrin
the contribution to the company | thenormal standard of the industry. Whg
operation and by referring the surplus is available, compensation will |
normal standard of the industry. WH  otherwise distributed aording to the
surplus is available, compensation \ provisions of Article 24 hereof.
be otherwise distributed according
the provisions of Article 24 hereof,
Article | At the close of each fiscal year, th|At the close of each fiscal year, the Boar{ Deleted the
23 Board of Directors of the Compan) Directors of the Company shall prepare term
shall prepare the following book o] following book of tables or formand- i super
tables or forms and forward the sar|  ferward-the-same-to-supervisersfor | accordingo
to supervisors for auditing thirty day auditing-thirty-days-before-convenng-the the
before convening the General Meet| GeneralMeeting,and submit the same flestablishmen
and submit the same to the Genell the General Meeting for acknowledgme| of the Audit
Meeting for acknowledgment according to the legal process. Committee.
according to the legal process. (1) Business report;
(1) Business report; (2) Financial statements; and
(2) Financial statements; @n (3) Surplus distribution or loss efetting
(3) Surplus distribution or loss
off-setting proposals.
Article If profits are available upon final | If profits are available upon final settlemq Deletedthe
24 settlement every year, the Compal every year, the Company shall allocate term
shall allocate no less than five perc lessthanfive@r cent as d{isuper
as empl oyeeds c (compensationand no more than five per| according to
more than five percent as director g as directoand-supervisetd S € 0 mp the
S u p e r vompeosatidrs after |after distribution per resolution of the Bogestablishmen
distribution per resolution of the Bog of Directors, taxes shall be paid pursuan of the Audit
of Directors, taxes shall be paid | law, and then ten percent shall be allocg Committee.

pursuant to law, and then ten perct
shall be allocated as the statutory
surplus reserve, but it may be
exempted if the statutory surplus
reserve has already eed the total
paid-up capital of the company; afte
the balance thereof has been alloc
or revolved as special surplus rese

as the staitory surplus reserve, but it mg
be exempted if the statutory surplus rese
has already reached the total pajcapita
of the company; after the balance therg
has been allocated or revolved as speq
surplus reserve pursuant to laws and deg
or regulations othe competent authority,
then it will be accumulated into the
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Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

pursuant to laws and decrees or|
regulations othe competent authority
then it will be accumulated into the
undistributed stplus, and Board of
Directors may prepare surplus
distribution proposal to propose tq
Shareholders' Meeting for distributig
of reservation per resolution.
If the Company had accumulated
losses in previous year, if profits al
available in the current yeand beforq
allocating employee's compensatic
and director and supervisor's
compensation, the losses shall by
covered first, and the balance ther¢
will be allocated according to the
proportions mentioned in precedin
paragraph; besidg
compensation is distributed by stocl
in cash, the objects of distribution
include the employees of affiliateg
companies meeting certain conditio|

undistributed surplus, and Board of
Directors may prepare surplus distributi
proposal to propose to Shareholders
Meeting for distribution of reservation p¢4
resolution.
If the Company had accumulated losseq
theprevious year, if profits are available
the current year and before allocating
employee's compensation and diregiag-
superviser's compensation, the losses sk
be covered first, and the balance thereof
beallocated according to the proportion
mentioned in preceding paragraph; besi
when empl oyeeobs
distributed by stock or in cash, the object
distribution include the employees of
affiliated companies meeting certain
conditions.

Article
28

These Atrticles of Associationas

concluded on August 21, 1996.

The first amendment was made o

December 9, 2002.

The second amendment was made

December 24, 2002.

The third amendment was made ¢
June 30, 2003.

The fourth amendment was made
June 30, 2004.

The fifth amendment was made o
August 1, 2005.

The sixth amendment was made (

September 3, 2007.

The seventh amendment was made

November 15, 2012.

The eighth amendment was made (

December 7, 2012.

The ninth amendment was made (

May 13, 2013.

The tenth amendment was made |

May 15, 2015.

The eleventh amendment was mad;

June 21, 2016.

These Articles of Association was conclu
on August 21, 1996.
The first amendment was made on
December 9, 2002.
The second amendment was made o
December 24, 2002.
The third amendment was made on Jund
2003.
The fourth amendment was made on Ju
30, 2004.
The fifth amendment was made on Aug
1, 2005.
The sixth amendmémvas made on
September 3, 2007.
The seventh amendment was made o
November 15, 2012.
The eighth amendment was made on
December 7, 2012.
The ninth amendment was made on May
2013.
The tenth amendment was made on May
2015.
The eleventh amendment wasde on Jun
21, 2016.
The twelfth amendment was made on J
10, 2019.
The thirteenttamendment was made ot

June 24, 2020.

Added the
date and timeq
of amendment
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Attachment 6

Compari son

Tabl

EZconn Corporation
e on Amen

d mesnotrs Bloe ctthieo ni

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of amendment

Director and Supervisor Electio
Measures

Director and Supervisor Electio
Measures

The Company has established t
Audit Committee to replace the
function of supervisors.

Article 1

Unless otherwise prescribed b}
laws and decrees or Articles of
Association, the election of
directors and supervisors of the
Company be handled according
these Measures.

Article 1

Unless otherwise prescribed b}
laws and decrees or Articles of
Assocation, the election of
directors and supervisors of thg
Company be handled according
these Measures.

The Company has established t
Audit Committee to replace the
function of supervisors.

Article 3

The supervisor of the Company

shall meet the followig
conditions:

1. Integrity and dependability,
2. Unbiased judgment.
3. Professional knowledge.
4. Rich experience.
5. Ability to readfinancial

statements.

Apart from meeting the conditior
mentioned irthe preceding
paragraph, among all supervisor
the Company, there shall be at le
one supervisor is the professior
accounting or financial personng

Article 3

The supervisor of the Company

shall meet the following
conditions:

1. Integrity and dependability.
2. Unbiased judgment.
3. Professional knowdge.
4. Rich experience.
5. Ability to readfinancial

statements.

Apart from meeting the conditior
mentioned irthe preceding
paragraph, among all supervisor
the Company, there shall be at le
one supervisor is the profession
accounting or finarial personnel.

Deleted

Article 4
Quialifications andhe election of
independent directors of the
Company shall comply with the
provisions of the "Regulations
Governing Appointment of
Independent Directors and
Compliance Matters for Listed
Compani elsvant laws dn
decrees.

Article 4

Quialifications andheelection of
independent directors of the
Company shall comply with the
provisions of the "Regulations

Governing Appointment of

Independent Directors and
Compliance Matters for Listed
Comp ani elsvant laws dn
decreesAmong all independent
directors of the Company, there
shall be at least one independer
director is the professional

accounting or financial

personnel.

In accordance with the qualificati
stated in the organization

regulationsof the Audit Committe

established by the Company.

Article 5

After public offering, among the

seats of directors, the Compan

shall set the independent directg
and specify them in the Articles

Association, and the shareholde

Article 5

After public offering, among the

seats of directors, the Compan

shall set the independent directq
and specify them in the Articles

Association, and the shareholde

Wording adjustment made
according to the candidate
nomination system adopted fq
the election system of the
Company.
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will elect the indepeneht directors
according to the List of
Independent Director Candidate

will elect the independent direct
according to the List of
Independent Director Candidate
The Company adopted a
candidate nomination system fol
the election of its Directors,and
the directors shall be elected

from the List of Director
Candidates atthes h ar e h ¢
meeting according to the Articles
of Association.

Article 6
The election of directors and
supervisors of the Company ado
the single ballot cumulative
election method, the name of
elector is replaced by the
sharehol der sbo
unless otherwise prescribed by
Articles of Association, every shg
has the election right of electing
same number of directors or
supenisors, it may elect one pers
intensively, or elect several persg
separately. Board of Directors sh
prepare the number of ballots
equivalent to the number of
directors or supervisors shall b
elected, and fill in the weight
number according to the mber of
certificatesof attendance, distribu
them to shareholders attending
Shareholders' Meeting.

Article 6
The election of directors and
supervisors of the Company ado
the single ballot cumulative
election method, the name of
elector is replaced e
sharehol der so
unless otherwise prescribed by
Articles of Association, every shg
has the election right of electing 1
same number of directors or
supervisors, it may elect one per
intensively, or elect several persg
separatelyBoard of Directors sha
prepare the number of ballots
equivalent to the number of
directors or supervisors shall b
elected, and fill in the weight
number according to the number
certificatesof attendance, distribu
them to shareholders attending
Shaeholders' Meeting.

The Company adopts the candid

nomination system stated in Artig

192-1 of the Company Act for th
election of directors.

The Company has established t
Audit Committee to replace the
function of supervisors.

Article 7
According tothe quota specified i
Articles of Association, directoys
and supervisors of the Compan
will be elected successively an
respectively based on those wh
have won ballots representing m
election rights, if more than twa
candidates are getting the sam
weight number and exceeding t
specified quota, candidates gett
the same weight number will bg
decided by drawing, and the
chairperson will make the draw (¢
behalf of those who fail to atteng

Article 7
According to the quota specified
Articles of Associationfor
directors and supervisors of thg
Companythe election rights for
independent directors and
non-independent directors shall
be calculated separately, and the
will be elected successively an
respectively based on those wh
have won ballotsepresenting moi
election rights if more than two
candidates are getting the san
weightnumber and exceeding th
specified quota, candidates gett
the same weight number will bé
decided by drawing, and the
chairperson will make the draw ¢
behalf of hose who fail to attend

The Company has established t
Audit Committee to replace the
function of supervisors.
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Article 11

After voting, the ballot box shall k
openedand ballots shall be

counted on the spot, and the

chairperson or the host shall
announce the list of elected

directors and supervisors on th

spot.

Article 11
After voting, the ballot box shall I
openedand ballots shall be count
on the spot, and the chairperson
the host shall announce the list
elected directors and superviso
and their weight in the electionon
the spot.

The Company has established t
Audit Committee to replace the
function of supervisors.

Article 12

Board of Directors of the Compal

will issue the notice of election t

the elected directors and
SUpervisors.

Article 12
Board of Directors of the Compa
will issue the notice of election t
the elected directors and
SUpervisors.

The Company has established t
Audit Committee to replace the
function of supervisors.

Article 14:
These Measures will be
implementedafter the approval o
Shareholders' Meeting, and th¢
same shall apply upon amendmg
The first amendment was made

onJune 24 2(20.

Added the date and times of
amendment.
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Attachment 7

EZconn Corporation

Compari son Tabl

e

on ARPRendmdnt s

fort BeainB

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

Article 3
Unless otherwise prescribed by laws ar]
decrees, Shareholders' Meeting of the
Company shall be convened the Board of
Directors.

Upon convening the GeradrMeeting,
meeting handbook shall be prepared ar
each shareholder shall be informed thin

days in advance, shareholders holding I

than one thousand registered shares ma

informed by inputting the announcement
mops.twse.com.tw thirty days in ahce;

upon convening In

Meeting, each shareholder shall be inforr]
fifteen days in advance, and shareholde
holding less than one thousand register
shares may be informed by inputting th

announcement at mops.twse.com.tw fifte

daysin advance.

Notice and announcement shall specify {
subject of convocation; if agreed by the
counterpart, the notice may be served |

electronic way.

Appointment or dismissal of a director g

supervisor; amendment to Articles of

Association; company déslution, merge o
division; or matters prescribed in each
subparagraph of Paragraph 1, Article 18F

Company Act; Article 26lL, Article 436 of

Securities Exchange Act shall be listed in
subject of convocation; and shall not b
proposed as an Ad Haddotion.
Shareholders holding more than one per
of thetotal outstanding shares of the limit
liability company may propose a Gener;

Meeting motion to the Company in writinj

But the motion is limited to one, if there i

more than one motion, all die¢m will not be
included in the proposal. Besides, if thq
motion proposed by a shareholder has ¢
one of the circumstances as prescribed

Paragraph 4, 1 of Article 172 of Compar

Act, theBoard of Directors will not includé

it in the proposal. The Compg shall

announce the accepted motion of
shareholders, acceptance place and

acceptance period before the book closi

Article 3

Unless otherwise prescribed by laws ar]

decrees, Shareholders' Meeting of the

Company shall be convened tiye Board of
Directors.

Upon onvening the General Meeting,
meeting handbook shall be prepared ar
each shareholder shall be informed thirf

days in advance, shareholders holding |

than one thousand registered shares ma
informed by inputting the announcement
mops.twse.com.twhirty days in advance;
upon convening In
Meeting, each shareholder shall be inforn
fifteen days in advance, and shareholde
holding less than one thousand register
shares may be informed by inputting th
announcement at mops.twsattw fifteen

days in advance.

Notice and announcement shall specify {
subject of convocation; if agreed by the
counterpart, the notice may be served

electronic way.

Appointment or dismissal of a director g

supervisor; amendment to Articles of

Assocation;capital decrease; application

for the suspension othe public offering;
permission for the competition inthe

business of Directors; surplus
capitalization, reserve capitalization;
company dissolution, merge or division;

matters prescribed in ela subparagraph o

Paragraph 1, Article 185 of Company Ac
matters in Article 26-1, Article 436 of

Securities Exchange Act shall be listed in
subject of convocatiorg summary shall be
provided; and shall not be proposed as
Ad Hoc Motion.The summary may be
uploaded to the websites designated by t
competent authority for securities affairs
or by the Company, and the link to the
website shall be set out in the notice. Th
reason for conveni
meeting has set out the full re-elecion of

Directors and the date of assuming office

After the completion of re-election at the

sharehol der s mee

Amended
paragraph 3
according to th
amendments t
paragraph 5,
Article 172 of
the Company
Act.
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day before convening General Meeting; ¢
the acceptance period thereof shall not
less than ten days. The motion proposed
sharehdler is limited to three hundred
words, those exceeding three hundred wj
will not be included in proposal; the
proposing shareholder shall personally |
appoint other person to attend the Gene
Meeting, and participate in the discussior
such motion.

The Company shall notify the proposing
shareholder the handlingsultsbefore the
notice day of convening Shareholders]
Meeting, and list the motion conforming |
the provisions of this article in the meetir
notice. For the shareholder's motion ng
listed in the proposathe Board of Directors
shall describe the reasons therefor in tk
Shareholders' Meeting.

assuming office may not be changed
through Ad Hoc Motion or in other
manners at the same meeting.

But the motion is limited to one, if there

included in the prop@s. However, where
the recommendation provided by the
shareholder is to promote the public
benefits or fulfill the social responsibility,
the Board of Directors may include the
recommendation in the proposalBesides
if the motion proposed by a sharehaoltas

it in the proposal.

in writing or el ectronically, acceptance
closure day before convening Genera
shall not be less than ten days. The mot

hundred words, thse exceeding three
hundred words will not be included in
proposal; the proposing shareholder sh

discussion of such motion.

The Company shall notify the proposing
shareholder the handlingsultsbefore the
notice day of convening Shareholders
Meeting, and list the motion conforming
the provisions of this article in the meetir
notice. For the shareholder's motion ng
listed in the proposatheBoard of Directos
shall describe the reasons therefor in t
Shareholders' Meeting.

Shareholders holding more thane percen
of thetotal outstanding shares of the limit

liability company may propose a Gener
Meeting motion to the Company in writin

more than one motion, all of them will not

any one of the circumstances as prescrib
Paragraph 4, 1 of Article 172 of Compar
Act, theBoard of Directors will not includé

The Company shall announce the accep
motion of shareholderacceptance manne

place and acceptance period before the |
Meeting; and the acceptance period ther

proposed by a shareholder is limited to th

personally or appoint other person to atte
the General Meeting, and participate in

Article 6
The Company shall sahautograph book
for attending shareholder or the agent
ertrusted by shareholdgethereinafter
referred to as shareholder) to sign in, or
attending shareholder may submit the si
card instead of sign i.he attending sharg
shall be calculated according to the
autograph book or the sign card submitt
plusthe shares exercisirtge voting right in

Article 6
The Company shall sahautograph book
for attending shareholder or the agent
entrusted by shareholdghereinafter
referred to as shareholder) to sign in, or
attending shareholder may submit the si
card instead of sign iMheattending share
shall be calculated according to the
autograph book or the sign card submitts
plus the shares exercisitige voting right in

writing or electronic way.

Deleted the tery
Asuper
according to th
establishment ¢
the Audit
Committee.

writing or electronic way.
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The said accepted shareholder's reporti
time shall be at least thirty minutes befo
meeting start; the registration location sh
be marked explicitly, and sufficient
competent persmel shall be assigned fo
handling.

The Company shall deliver meeting
handbook, annual report, certificate of
attendance, speech note, vote and oth
meeting materials to the shareholders

attending Shareholders' Meeting; in case
director or supervisalection, the ballot
shall be attached otherwise.
Shareholders shall attend the Sharehold
Meeting with certificate of attendance,
attendance sign card or other attendan
certificates; solicitor of proxy solicitation
shall bring identity supporting doment for
checking.
When a shareholder is the government
legal person, representative attending
Shareholders' Meeting is not limited to o
person. When a legal person is entruste
attend Shareholders' Meeting, it may on
assign one representativedttend.

The Company shall set out theime for
accepting signin for shareholders, venue
for sign-in, and other matters for notice
in the meeting notice.The accepted
shareholder's reporting tinie the
previous paragraphshall be at least thirt
minutes before meeting start; the
registration location shall be marked
explicitly, and sufficient competent
personnel shall be assigned for handlir
The Company shall deliver meeting
handbook, annual report, certificate of
attendance, speech note, vote and oth
meeting materials to the shareholders
attending Shareholders' Meeting; in case
director orsupervisor election, the ballot
shall be attached otherwise.
Shareholders shall attend the Sharehold
Meeting with certificate of attendance,
attendance sign card or other attendan
certificates; solicitor of proxy solicitation
shall bring identity spporting document fo
checking.
When a shareholder is the government
legal person, representative attending
Shareholders' Meeting is not limited to ¢
person.
When a legal person is entrusted to atte
Shareholders' Meeting, it may only assi
one repesentative to attend.

Article 10
If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened
the Board of Directors, its agenda shall |
determined by the Board of Directors, th
meetirg shall be proceeded according to
scheduled agenda, and it shall not be
changed unless by the resolution of
Shareholders' Meeting.

If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened
other entitled convenor other than the Bo
of Directors, the provisions ipreceding
paragraph shall apply.

Before the end of official business discus;
(including ad hoc motion) in the scheduls

agenda as prescribed in preceding tw(
paragraphs, the chairperson may not
arbitrarily declare meeting adjournmen;
without resolutionjf the chairperson
declares the meeting adjournment by
violating procedures, other members o
Board of Directors shall immediately ass
attending shareholders to elect one persq
the chairperson with the consent of majo

attending shareholders Wwivoting rights

Article 10
If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened
the Board of Directorsts agenda shall be
determined by the Board of Directors,the
relevant proposal (ncluding ad hoc
motion and amendments to the original
proposals) shall be determined by vote o
a caseby-case basisthe meeting shall be
proceeded according to the schedulec
agenda, and it shall not be changed unle
the resolution of Shareholders' dtmg.
If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened
other entitled convenor other than the Bg
of Directors, the provisions in preceding
paragraph shall apply.
Before the end of official business discus;s
(including ad hoc motion) in the schedul
agena as prescribed in preceding two
paragraphs, the chairperson may not
arbitrarily declare meeting adjournmen
without resolution; if the chairperson
declares the meeting adjournment by
violating procedures, other members o

Board of Directors shall immedgly assist

To accord with
the evoting
adopted for all
listed companig
from 2018 and
implement the
spirit of voting
ona
caseby-case
basis.

To avoidthe
convenor of the
shareh
meeting overly
limited the
voting time for
shareholders,
affecting
shareh
right to vote du
to not being abl
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pursuant to legal procedure to continue 1
meeting.
For the motion and amendment or ad h
motions proposed by shareholders, thg
chairperson shall give opportunity for
sufficient description and discussion, whe
is suitable for votingd decide, the
chairperson may declare the stop of
discussion and propose for voting to deci

attending shareholders to elect one persc

the chairperson with the consent of majo

attending shareholders with voting right

pursuant to legal procedure to continue {
meeting.

For the motion and amendment or ad h
motions proposed bghareholders, the
chairperson shall give opportunity for

sufficient description and discussion, whe
is suitable for voting to decide, the
chairperson may declare the stop of
discussion and propose for voting to de¢
and sufficient time shall be arranged for
voting.

to vote in time.

Article 13 Every share of shareholders |
the Company has one voting right, excep
the voting right is restricted or voting right
not available pursuant to Paragraph 2, Ar

179 of Company Act.
Upon convening Shareholders' Meeting,
Company may exercise its voting right i
writing or electronic way; when exercisin
voting right in writing or electronic way, th
exercising method thereof shall be specif
in ShareholderdVieeting convening notice
Shareholders exercising voting right in
writing or electronically shall be deemed
attending General Meeting in person. Bu
shall be deemed as waiver regarding t
amendment of ad hoc motion and origin
proposals of such Shae ho |l der s
hence the Company should avoid propos
the amendment of ad hoc motion and
original proposals.

If the voting right in preceding paragraph

exercised in writing or electronic way, th

declaration of intention thereof shall be
served © the company two days before
convening Shareholders' Meeting, in cas|

repeated declarations of intention, the o

served first shall prevail. Except for
announcing the cancellation of previous
declaration of intention.
Omitted below.

Article 13 Everyshare of shareholders (
the Company has one voting right, excep
the voting right is restricted or voting right
not available pursuant to Paragraph 2, Ar

179 of Company Act.
Upon convening Shareholders' Meeting,
Companyshall may exerciseats voting
right in electronic way, and may exercise
its voting right in writing or electronic way

when exercising voting right in writing o
electronic way, the exercising method the

shall be specified in Shareholders' Meet

convening notice. Shdmnelders exercising
voting right in writing or electronically sha
be deemed as attending General Meetin
person. But it shall be deemed as waiv¢
regarding the amendment of ad hoc mot
and original propo

Meeting, hence thed@npany should avoid

proposing the amendment of ad hoc mot

and original proposals.

If the voting right in preceding paragraph

exercised in writing or electronic way, th

declaration of intention thereof shall be
served to the company two days befor
convening Shareholders' Meeting, in cas

repeated declarations of intention, the o

served first shall prevail. Except for
announcing the cancellation of previou
declaration of intention.
Omitted below.

To accord with
the evoting
adopted for all
listed companig

from 2018.

Article 14

In case of director or supervisor election
Shareholders' Meeting, it shall be handls
according to relevant election procedurg
stipulated by the Company, and the elect
results shall be announced on the spo
including the list of elected directors ant
supervisors and their weight in election

The ballot of election matters mentioned

Article 14

In case of director or supervisor election
Shareholders' Meeting, it shall be handl
according to releant election procedureg
stipulated by the Company, and the elect
results shall be announced on the spo
including the list of elected directors an
supervisors and their weight in election

The ballot of election matters mentioned

Delekd the tern
Asuper
according to th
establishment ¢
the Audit
Committee.
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preceding paragraph shall be kept prope
after sealed and signed by scrutinizing
personnel, and it shall be kept for at least|
year. But if the General Meeting files a
lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of Compal|
Act, they shall be kept until the end of

preceding paragréyshall be kept properly
after sealed and signed by scrutinizing
personnel, and it shall be kept for at least
year. But if the General Meeting files a
lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of Compa
Act, they shall be kept until the end of

litigation. litigation.
Article 15
. All resolutions of a Shareholders' Meetir
Article 15

All resolutions of a Shareholders' Meetir
shall be recorded in the minutes signed
sealed by the chairperson of the meeting,
the minutes shall be distribut¢o the

shareholders within twenty days after th
meeting. The record and distribution of
minutes may be made in an electronic fi|
The distribution of minutes mentioned i
preceding paragraph may be announcec
inputting it at mops.twse.com.tw.
The mirutes shall be recorded actually
according to the meeting date, location, n
of chairperson, resolution method, essen
of discussion process and its results, dut
the duration of the Company, it shall be K
permanently.

For the resolution methodentioned in
preceding paragraph, the chairperson h
consulted with shareholders for opinions
shareholders have no objection to the
proposal, "Passed upon the agreement b
attending shareholders per the consultat
of the chairperson” shall be meded; but if
shareholders have any disagreement with
proposal, the voting method, the number
pass voting right and the proportion therg¢

shall be specified.

shall be recorded in the minutesrsg or
sealed by the chairperson of the meeting
the minutes shall be distributed to the
shareholders within twenty days after th
meeting. The record and distribution of
minutes may be made in an electronic fi
The distribution of minutes mentioned
preceding paragraph may be announced
inputting it at mops.twse.com.tw.
The minutes shall be recorded actually
according to the meeting date, location
name of chairperson, resolution metho
essentials of discussion process and it
voting results(including statistical weight);
where there is a director election, it shall
also set out the weigtht of the receiving
vote. During the duration of the Company
shall be kept permanently
For the resolution method mentioned ir
preceding paragraph, the chorson has
consulted with shareholders for opinions
shareholders have no objection to the|
proposal, "Passed upon the agreement b
attending shareholders per the consultat
of the chairperson" shall be recorded; bu
shareholders have any disagment with th
proposal, the voting method, the number,
pass voting right and the proportion ther¢
shall be specified.

To implement
the spirit of
voting on a
caseby-case
basis, with

reference to th
recommendatio
from ACGA.

Article 20: Amendment das of these Rule
of Procedure:
These Rules of Procedure were formulaj
on June 24, 2012.
The first amendment was made on June
2014.
The second amendment was made on J
22, 2017.

Article 20: Amendment dates of these RuU
of Procedure:
These Rulesf Procedure were formulate
on June 24, 2012.
The first amendment was made on June
2014.
The second amendment was made on J
22, 2017.
The third amendment was made on June

24, 2020.

Added the date
and times of
amendment.
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Attachment 8

EZconn Corporation

Compari son Table on Amendments to the
Article/Chapte Before amendment After amendment Basis of
amendment
Procedures for related party Procedures for related party
transaction: transaction:
(Omitted below) (Omitted below)
(V1) Regular evaluabn method, | (VIIl) Regular evaluation method,
abnormal situation handling and| abnormal situation handling and
supervision: supervision:
1. The hedgeurposed transaction 1. The hedgg@urpo®d transaction
shall be evaluated at least twice { shall be evaluated at least twice
month, and the evaluation shall bj month, and the evaluation shall b
submitted to the President. submitted to the President.
2. Board of Directors shall designa] 2. Board of Directors shall designa
the President to supervisadaevaluat{the President to supervise and eval
whether the risk management meajwhether the risk management mea
currently used is appropriate, whetl currently used is appropr&atwhethe
the engagement in derivatives the engagement in derivatives
transaction is handled as require¢ transaction is handled as require
whether the performance of whether the performance of
engagement in derivatives transact engagement in derivatives transact
is confirming to the existing operatjiis confirming to the existing operati
strategy, and whether the risk born¢ strategy, and whether the risk born
within the scope tolerated by the|  within the scope tolerated by the
Amended
company. If any abnormal company. If any abnormal .
. ) i - ‘ : .| according to
circumstance is found in transactioricircumstance is found in transactior the
Article 8 profit and loss, necessary solutior] profit and loss, necessary solutior .
: ; establishmen
shall be taken, and it shall be repor| shall be taken, and it shall be repor of the Audit
to the Board of Directors immediatgto the Board of Directors immediate Committee

3. The evaluation report on
hedgepurposed transaction shall K
proposed upon Board of Directors
Meeting. If any abnormal
circumstance is found in transactior
profit and lossyhen the independel
director has already been s
independent directashall attend the
Board of Directors Meeting to expre
opinions.
(IX) For the engagement in derivatiy
transaction, the Company shall rec|
in detail the type and amount of
derivatives transaction, the date pa
by Board of Directors, matters sha#
evaluated prudently as stated in
Paragraph (VIII) of this article, anc
whether it is handled pursuant to th
Procedures an
Governing the Acquisition and

3. The evaluation report on
hedgepurposed transaction shall g
proposed pon Board of Directors
Meeting. If any abnormal
circumstance is found in transactior
profit and loss, the independent
director shall attend the Board of]
Directors Meeting to express opinig
(IX) For the engagement in
derivatives transaction, the Conmya
shall record in detail the type ang
amount of derivatives transaction, {
date passed by Board of Directors
matters shall be evaluated prudentl
stated in Paragraph (VIII) of this
article, and whether it is handled
pursuant to these Procedures a
ARegul ati ons G
Acquisition and Disposal of Assets
Listed Companyo

Disposal of Assets by Listed

derivatives transaction for future
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Basis of

Article/Chapte Before amendment After amendment
amendment
Companyo i n t hreference, unless otherwise prescri
derivatives transaction fduture by other laws, the transaction
reference, unless otherwise prescri certification shall be kept for at leas
by other laws, the transaction years.
certification shall be kept for at leas (X) Internal auditors of the compar
years. shall regularly learn about the
(X) Internal auditors of the compar|  adequacy of internal control of
shall regularly learn about the derivatives transaction, audit the
adequacy of internal control of | compliance of transaction departm
derivatives transaction, aithe in engaging in the procedures fol
compliance of transaction departm( derivatives transaction on a month
in engaging in the procedures forbasis, and @pare the audit report; g
derivatives transaction on a month written notice shall be served tiue
basis, and prepare the audit report;| Audit Committeen case of major
written notice shall be served to eg violation is found.
supervisor in case of major violatior|
found.
If the indep@dent director has bee
set pursuant to Securities Exchani
Act, the written notice served to ea|
supervisor as mentioned in preced
paragraph shall be served to the
independent director as well.
If the Audit Committee has been s;
pursuant to SecuritieExchange Act
the provisions on the supervisor il
paragraph 1 shall apply to the Aug
Committee.
Procedures for related party Procedures for related party
transaction: transaction:
(I) For assets acquin or disposal| (I) For assets acquisition or dispos
between the Company and the relg between the Company and the relg
party, relevant resolution procedur| party, relevant resolution procedur
as stipulated in this article and as stipulated ihis article and
assessment on the rationality off assessment on the rationality of
transaction conditions etc. shall b| transaction conditions etc. shall b
carried out pursuant to Article 4 arnl carried out pursuant to Article 4 an
this article. When juging whether th(this article. When judging whether f Amended
transaction object is the related pal transaction object is the related pa| according to
Article 9 apart f_rom paying_attentiqn to i_ts le¢apart f_rom paying_ attenti_on to .its leg the
form, its substantial relationship sh| form, itssubstantial relationship shi establishmen
also be considered. also be considered. of the Audit
(1) For the Company's acquisition { (II) For the Company's acquisition { Committee.

disposal of real estate or its
right-of-use assets fromefrelated
party, or the acquisition or disposal
other assets other than real estate (
right-of-use assets with the relateq
party, if the transaction amount is |
excess of twenty percent of paig
capital of the company, ten percent

total asset or NT$300 million, excey

disposal of real estate or its
right-of-use assets from the relate
party, or the acquisition or disposal
other assets other than real estate
right-of-use asets with the related
party, if the transaction amount is
excess of twenty percent of paig
capital of the company, ten percent

total assets or NT$300 million, excs
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Article/Chapte

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

for transactions of purchase or sale
domestic government bonds or bor
with repurchase/reverse repo
agreement or subscription or
repurchase of money market func
issued by domestic securities
investment trust enterprise, the
documents mentioned below shall
presented to the Board of Directdos
approval and to the supervisor fo

for transactions of purchase or sale
domestic government bonds or bor
with repurchase/reverse repo
agreement or subscription or
repurchase of money market fung
issued by domestic securities
investment trust enterprise, the
documents mentioned below shall
presented tthe Audit Committee fo
approval and submitted tbe Board

ratification before signing transactig
contract and making payments:

1. The purpose and necessity of, g
expected benefit from the acquisitig

or disposal of such assets.
2. The reason for selecting the rela|
party as transaction object.
3. For the acquisition of real estate
its rightof-use assets from the relat
party, assess relevant materials on
rationality of expected transactior|
conditions pursuant to the provisiot
of Paragraph (I1l) and (IV) of this
article.
4. Related party's original acquisitig
date and price, transaction object, i
relations between the company ar
related party etf.
5. The cash flow forecast of the ne
twelve months after the month whg
the contract is expected to be sign|
as well as assessment on the nece|
of transaction and rationality of funt
utilization.

6. The appraisal report issued by
professional apgiser or opinion of
accountant obtained in accordand

with the previous paragraph.
7. Restrictions and other importan
terms of the transaction.

The calculation of the transaction
amount in this paragraphs shall b

subject to the provisions of Article 1
andthesee al | ed fone
defined to be counting back for on
year from the date of event of suc
transaction, but the part that has b
passed byoard of Directorand
acknowledged by supervispursuant
to these Procedures may be excluc
For the following transactions

engaged between the Company a

of Directors forresolutionbefore
signing transaction contract and
making payments:
1. The purpose and necessity of, g
expected benefit from the acquisiti
or disposal of such assets.
2. The reason for selecting the rela
party as transaction object.
3. For the acquisition of real estate
its rightof-use assets from the relaf
party, assess relevant materials on
rationality of expected transactior
conditions pursuant to the provisio
of Paragraph (lIl) and (V) of this
article.

4. Related pay's original acquisitior
date and price, transaction object,
relations between the compaayd
related party etf.

5. The cash flow forecast of the ne
twelve months after the month whg
the contract is expected to be sign
as well as assessment on the nece
of transaction and rationality of fun
utilization.

6. The appraisal report issd by
professional appraiser or opinion ¢

accountant obtained in accordang
with the previous paragraph.
7. Restrictions and other importar
terms of the transaction.

The calculation of the transaction
amount in this paragraphs shall b

subject to the mvisions of Article 11
andthesee al | ed MfAone
defined to be counting back for on
year from the date of event of suc
transaction, but the part that has b
agreed by the Audit Committee an
submitted to the Board of Director|
for resoluion pursuant to these

Procedures may be excluded.
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Article/Chapte

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

parent company, subsidiaries, or tl
subsidiaries in which the Compan
directly or indirectly holds one
hundred percent of outstanding she
or total capital, Board of Directors
may authorie the Chairman to make
decision in advance within a certal
guota, and then propose to the mg
recent Board of Directors Meeting f
subsequent recognition:
(1) Acquisition or disposal of

equipment or its rightf-use assets f

business use.

(2) Acquistion or disposal of real
estate righbf-use assets for busing
use.

When the Company has set the
independent director and proposed
Board of Directors for discussion
pursuant to provisions of this articl
opinions of each independent direc
shall ke fully considered, and any
adverse opinion or qualified opinio
of the independent director shall b
specified in the Minute Book of Boa
of Directors Meeting.
When the Company has set the Au
Committee, mattershall be

acknowledged by the supervisor
according to the provisions of this
paragraplshall be agreed by more
than one second of all members ¢
Audit Committee, if not, it may be
agreed by more than two thirds of
directors, and the resolution of th¢

Audit Committee shall be specified

theMinute Book of Board of
Directors Meeting. All members of
Audit Committee and all directors
referred to in preceding paragraph
calculated based on the actual
appointment.

(1) For acquisition of real estate or
right-of-use assets from the relate
party, the Company shall assess

rationality of transaction cost
according to the following methods
1. Rel ated part
plus necessary funds interest and
cost borne by the buyer pursuant |
law. The secalled necessary funds

interest cost is calculated according

For the following transactions
engaged between the Company a
parent company, subsidiaries, or t
subsidiaries in which the Compan

directly or indirectly holds one

hundred percent of outstanding sha
or total capital, Board of Directors|
may authorize the Chairman to malk
decision in advance within a certa
guota, and then propose to the mc
recent Board of Directors Meeting f
subsequent recognition:

(1) Acquisition or disposal of

equipment or itsight-of-use assets f
business use.

(2) Acquisition or disposal of real
estate righbf-use assets for busine
use.

When the Company has set the

independent director and proposec
Board of Directors for discussion
pursuant to provisions of this arggl
opinions of each independent direg
shall be fully considered, and any
adverse opinion or qualified opinig
of the independent director shall
specified in the Minute Book of Boa
of Directors Meeting.
When the Company has set the AU
Committee matters shall be agreed
more than one second of all memb
of Audit Committee, if not, it may b
agreed by more than two thirds of
directors, and the resolution of thy
Audit Committee shall be specified
the Minute Book of Board of
Directors Meahg. All members of
Audit Committee and all directors
referred to in preceding paragraph
calculated based on the actual
appointment.
(1) For acquisition of real estate g
its right-of-use assets from the relat
party, the Company shall assess t
rationality of transaction cost
according to the following methods
1. Rel ated part
plus necessary funds interest and
cost borne by the buyer pursuant
law. The secalled necessary funds
interest cost is calculated according

theweighted average interest rate
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Article/Chapte

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

the weighted average interest rate
the money borrowed by the compa|
in the year of assets acquisition, by

shall not be higher than the highe!
lending rate for notfinancial
enterprises announced by the Minig
of Finance.

2. If the related party once used sy

subject matter to set mortgage fo
borrowing from a financial institutiol
the total value in loan evaluation
conducted by the financial institutic
on such subject matter, but the
financi al actuah st
accumulated loan value for such
subject matter shall reach to ovel
seventy percent of the total value
loan evaluation and the period of |0
has been more than one year.

However, such stipulations shall n
apply if the financial institution ishe

related party to a transaction part
For combined purchase or lease |
land and house of the same subjg
matter, assessment on transaction
may be conducted according to af
method listed in preceding paragra]
for the land and house respectivel
For acquisition of real estate or it
right-of-use assets from the relate
party, apart from assessing on the |
estate or its righof-use assets cos
according to the provisions of this
paragraph, the Company shall als
appoint the accountant to rew and
give specific opinions.
Provided any one of the following
circumstances, for acquisition of re
estate or its rightf-use assets from
the related party, the Company sh;
handle according to preceding
paragraphs, and provisions of
preceding subpagraphs of this
paragraph shall not apply:

1. The related party acquires rea
estate or its rightf-use assets due |
inheritance or bestowal.

2. The related party has acquired {
real estate or its righdf-use assets b
contract conclusion for over #vyears
according to the contract date of tH

transaction.

the money borrowed by the compa
in the year of assets acquisition, by

shall not be higher than the highe

lending rate for noiffinancial
enterprises announced by the Minis
of Finance.

2. If the related party @e used suck

subject matter to set mortgage fo

borrowing from a financial institutio
the total value in loan evaluation
conducted by the financial institutig
on such subject matter, but the
financi al i nst
accumulated loan value for such
subject matter shall reach to ove
seventy percent of the total value
loan evaluation and the period of Ig
has been more than one year.

However, such stipulations shall n
apply if the financial institution is th

related party to a transaction part

For combined purchase or lease
land and house of the same subje

matter, assessment on transaction
may be conducted according to ar
method listed in preceding paragra
for the land and house respective

Provided any one of the following
circumstances, for acquisition of re
estate or its righof-use assets from
the related party, the Company sh

handle according to preceding
paragraphs, and provisions of
preceding subparagraphs of thig
paragraph shall not apply:

1. The related party aages real
estate or its righof-use assets due

inheritance or bestowal.

2. The related party has acquired {
real estate or its righaf-use assets [
contract conclusion for over five ye;i

according to the contract date of t

transaction.

3. Signjoint construction contract
with the related party, or acquire th
real estate by appointing the relats
party for real estate construction kg
means of consigned construction

the owned land or consigned
construction on the leased land et
4. The acqugition of real estate

right-of-use assets for business u
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Article/Chapte

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

3. Sign joint construction contract
with the related party, or acquire th
real estate by appointing the relate
party for real estate construction b
means of consigned construction (

the ownedand or consigned
construction on the leased land et

4. The acquisition of real estate

right-of-use assets for business uj

between the Company and parer|
company, subsidiaries, or the
subsidiaries in which the Compan
directly or indirectly holds one
hundred percent of outstanding sha
or total capital.

(IV) If the results of appraisal as
stipulated in preceding paragraph i
lower than the transaction price, th

Company shall handle pursuant t
Paragraph (V). Except for under th

following circumstanes, and

objective evidences have been
proposed and specific rational
opinions of professional real estat
appraiser and accountant have be
obtained:
1. If the related party acquires the r

land or leases the land for
construction, it shall prove the
corformance to any one of the

following conditions:

(1) The raw land is assessed accor
to the method stipulated in precedi
paragraph, and t
construction cost plus reasonablg
construction profit of the house
exceeds the actual treaction price.
The sacalled reasonable constructi
profit shall be the average operatir

margin of the
construction department in the las
three years or the most recent gro

margin in construction industry
published by the Ministry dfinance,

whichever is lower.

(2) The transaction cases of othe
nonrelated parties on other floors {

the same real estate or in adjacel
regions within one year, with similg
area and equivalent conditions aft|

assessment according to the dug

reasonabl@oors or regional price

between the Company and parer

company, subsidiaries, or the

subsidiaries in which the Compan

directly or indirectly holds one

hundred percent of outstanding sha
or total capital.

(IV) If the results of appraisal as
stipulated in preceding paragraph {
lower than the transaction price, th

Company shall handle pursuant t
Paragraph (V). Except for under th
following circumstances, and
objective evidences have been
proposed and specific ratidna
opinions of professional real estat
appraiser and accountant have be
obtained:
1. If the related party acquires the 1
land or leases the land for
construction, it shall prove the
conformance to any one of the
following conditions:
(1) The raw lands assessed accord
to the method stipulated in precedi
paragraph, and t
construction cost plus reasonablg
construction profit of the house
exceeds the actual transaction pri
The sacalled reasonable constructi
profit shallbe the average operatin
margin of the
construction department in the las
three years or the most recent grg
margin in construction industry
published by the Ministry of Financ
whichever is lower.

(2) The transaction cases of othe

nonrelated parties on other floors
the same real estate or in adjace
regions within one year, with similg
area and equivalent conditions aft
assessment according to the dug
reasonable floors or regional pricg
differences in real estate transactio
lease practice.
2. For the real estate purchased fr
the related party or the real estat
right-of-use assets acquired by leg
as proved by the Company, its
transaction conditions are equivale
to the transaction cases with othe

nonrelated parties iadjacent region
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Article/Chapte

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

differences in real estate transactiol
lease practice.
2. For the real estate purchased frg
the related party or the real estat;
right-of-use assets acquired by leas
proved by the Company, its
transaction conditions are @galent
to the transaction cases with othe
nonrelated parties in adjacent regiq
within one year and the area is simi
In principle, the transaction cases
adjacent regions mentioned in thi
paragraph take the cases transactg
the same or adjaat street and withi
500 meters away from the transact
object or those cases with similal
announced present value; thecsdled
similar area means the area in
transaction case of other noglated
party is not lower than fifty percent
the area ofrainsaction object; and tf
so-called within one year is defined
be counting back for one year from
date of acquiring real estate or itg
right-of-use assets this time.
(V) For the Company's acquisition
real estate or its righif-use assets
from the related party, if the results
assessment as prescribed in Parag
(111 and (V) are lower than the
transaction price, the following
matters shall be handled:
1. For the price difference betwee
real estate or its righdf-use assets
transaction pce and assessment cd
allocate special surplus reserve
pursuant to Paragraph 1, Article 41]
Securities Exchange Act, and it shi
not be distributed or transferred tc
capital increase and shares allotmg
If the investor adopting Equity
Method forap r ai si ng t
investment is a public company, i
shall also allocate the special surp|
reserve from such allocation amou
according to the investment proport
and the provisions of Paragraph ]
Article 41 of Securities Exchange A
2. Supenisor shall handle pursuant
Article 218 of Company Actf Audit
Committee has been set pursuant

within one year and the area is sim
In principle, the transaction cases
adjacent regions mentioned in thi
paragraph take the cases transactg
the same or adjacent street and wif
500 meters away from the transact|
object @ those cases with similar
announced present value; thecsdled
similar area means the area in
transaction case of other noglated
party is not lower than fifty percent
the area of transaction object; and
so-called within one year is defined
be counting back for one year fror
the date of acquiring real estate or
right-of-use assets this time.
(V) For the Company's acquisition
real estate or its righdf-use assets
from the related party, if the results
assessment as prescribed inaigaaph
(1) and (1V) are lower than the
transaction price, the following
matters shall be handled:
1. For the price difference betwee
real estate or its righdf-use assets
transaction price and assessment ¢
allocate special surplus reserve
pursuanto Paragraph 1, Article 41
Securities Exchange Act, and it sh
not be distributed or transferred t
capital increase and shares allotmg
If the investor adopting Equity
Met hod for appr g
investment is a public company, i
shall al® allocate the special surplt
reserve from such allocation amou
according to the investment
proportion and the provisions of
Paragraph 1, Article 41 of Securitig
Exchange Act.
2. Independent Directors who are
members of the Audit Committee
shall handlgoursuant to Article 218 ¢
Company Act.
3. Handling circumstances pursuan
Item 1 and 2 shall be reported tg
Shareholders' Meeting, and details
transaction contents shall be disclo
in the annual report and public
prospectus.
If special surplus resee is allocated

Securities Exchange Act, the

pursuant to this paragraph, the
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Basis of

Article/Chapte Before amendment After amendment
amendment
preceding paragraph of this item| Company shall wait until the asse
applies to independent director |purchased or leased at a high price
members of Audit Committee. been recognized in the loss from
3. Handling circumstances pursmo failing price, or is disposed or
Item 1 and 2 shall be reported tof  terminated of lease contract or
Shareholders' Meeting, and detail¢ properly compensated or reinsthter
transaction contents shall be disclo| if it is not unreasonable as confirm
in the annual report and public by other evidences, such specia
prospectus. surplus reserve may only be emplo
If special surplus reserve is allocat with the consent of competent
pursuant to this paragraph, the authority.
Company shall wait untthe assetsfsFor t he Companyq(
purchased or leased at a high price estate or its righof-use assets from
been recognized in the loss from the related party, iftere are other
failing price, or is disposed or evidences indicating that the
terminated of lease contract or transaction is not conforming to
properly compensated or reinstated regular business practice, it shall a
if it is not unreasonable as confirm(be handled pursuant to this paragrg
by other evidences, such s
surplus reserve may only be emplo]
with the consent of competent
authority.
For the Companyd
estate or its rightf-use assets from|
the related party, if there are othe
evidences indicating that the
transaction is not conforngnto
regular business practice, it shall a
be handled pursuant to this paragra
Announcement and decétion
procedures (applicable when the . . .
: . Information disclosur@rocedures:
. Company is a public company ; Amended
Article 11 . (Omitted below) )
pursuant to the laws of the Republic wordings.
China):
(Omitted below)
Procedures for controlling the Procedures for controlling the
acquisition o disposal of assets of acquisition or disposal of assets ¢
subsidiaries subsidiaries
(I) The Company shall urge (I) The Company shall urge
subsidiaries to formulate the subsidiaries to formulate the
Procedures for Acquisition or Dispo Procedures for Acquisition or
: Amended
of Assets pur sua Disposalof Assets pursuant to th .
: L A - according to
Governing the Acquisition and ARegul at iingthe ¢ the
Article 15 Disposal of Assets by Listed |Acquisition and Disposal of Assets lish
Companyo. Listed Compaestablsm_en
(I) For acquigtion or disposal of (1) For acquisition or disposal of of the A.‘Ud't
Committee.

assets, subsidiaries of the Compal
shall formul at e
systemod and @
Acqui sition or
respectively for handling, and sha

make a written summary and repor,

assets, subsidiaries of the Compa
shall formul at e
systemo and il
Acqui sition or
respectively for handlinggnd shall

make a written summary and repor

-61-




Article/Chapte

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

the Company on the single acsjtion
or disposal of assets or the cumula|
amount of transaction of the sam|
nature is in excess of NT$10 millio
as well as the derivatives transacti
engaged as at the end of last mor]
before the fifth day of every calend

month. Audit Departmerof the
Company shall list the acquisition {
disposal of assets by subsidiaries
one of the monthly audit items, an
the auditing circumstances thered
shall be listed as the necessary ite
for reporting audit business to Boa

of Directors andupervsors

(111) If the subsidiaries of the
Company are a nepublic company,
and its acquisition or disposal of as{
meets the standards required to K
announced and declared, it shall nc
the Company on the date of event,

the Company will make an
anrouncement pursuant to Article ]

the Company on the single acquisit
or disposal of assets or the cumula]
amount of transaction of the sam
nature is in excess of NT$10 millio
as well as the derivatives transacti
engaged as at thae of last month
before the fifth day of every calend
month. Audit Department of the
Company shall list the acquisition
disposal of assets by subsidiaries
one of the monthly audit items, an
the auditing circumstances therec
shall be listed as theecessary item
for reporting audit business to Boa
of Directors andndependent
directors
(1) If the subsidiaries of the

Company are a nepublic company,
and its acquisition or disposal of
assets meets the standards require
be announced and dactd, it shall
notify the Company on the date o
event, and the Company will make
announcement pursuant to Article |

Article 16

Amendment to procedures:
Upon formulating these Procedure
after it is passed by Board of
Directors,it shall be sent to each
supervisor andubmitted to
Shareholders' Meeting for approvil
any director raises objection and w|
record or written statement, the
Company shall also submit its
objection to eachupervisor and
submit to Shareholders' Meeting ft
discussionand the same shall app
upon amendmen®¥hen the Compar
has set the independent director a
when submitting these Procedures
Board of Directors Meeting for
discussionopinions of each
independent director shall be fully
considered, and any adverse opini
or qualified opinion of the
independent director shall be specil
in the Minute Book of Board of
Directors Meeting.

Amendment to procedures:
Upon formulating these Procedure
afterbeing resolved by the Audit
Committee and thBoard of
Directors, it shall be implemented
upon being submitted to Sharehold
Meeting for approval, and the san
shall apply upon amendment.
Opinions of each independent direg
shall be fully considereduring-the
diseussionand any adverse opinion
gualified opinionshall be specified i
the Minute Book of Board of
Directors Meetinglf any director
raises objection and with record g
written statement, the Company sh
also submit its objection to each
supervisor and submit to Sharehold
Meeting for discussion.

Amended
according to
the
establishmen
of the Audit
Committee.

Article 17

Amendment dates of these
Procedures:

These Procedures were formulatec

June 24, 2012.

The first amendment was made o

Amendment dates of these
Procedures:

These Procedures were formulateg

June 24, 2012.

The first amendment was made @

Added the daf
and times of
amendment.
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Article/Chapte

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

June 30, 2014.

The second amendment was made
May 29, 2018.

The third amendment was made (¢
June 10, 2019.

June 30, 2014.

The secondmendment was made
May 29, 2018.

The third amendment was maoie
JunelO, 2019.

The fourth amendment was made
June 24, 2020.
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Attachment 9

EZconn Corporation

Compari son Tab

| e on
Guaranteeo

A mefiMdkneg Entdossentert and h e

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendment

Article 7

Il.
Internal audit personnel shall audit the
Procedures of Making Endorsement an
Guarantees and its execution situation at
every quarter, and makenaitten record, in
case of any signification violation is foun
written notice shall be served to each
supervisor immediately. Written notice
served to each supervisor shall be serve
the independent director as well.

V.

If the object of endorsemema@ guarantee
meets the requirement originally but fails
meet the requirement subsequently, or t
amount of endorsement and guarantes
exceeds the stipulated limit due to the cha
in the base for limit calculation, the amou
of endorsement and guaraatto such objec
or the exceeding part shall be eliminate
upon the expiry of period stipulated in
relevant contract, or the financial unit shi
make a plan and have it approved by th
President, and then send the improvemg
plan to each supervisor amtlependent
director, and eliminate all of it within a
certain period and report to the Board @
Directors.

If the Company has set the Audit Commit

the provisions on the supervisor in preced

paragraph shall apply to the Audit
Committee.

Article 7
.
Internal audit personnel shall audit the
Procedures of Making Endorsement an
Guarantees and its execution situation at
every quarter, and make a written record
case of any signification violation is foun
written notice shall be served tiee Audit
Committeeimmediately. Written notice
served tahe Audit Committeeshall be
served to the independent director as wg
\Y
If the object of endorsement and guaran
meets the requirement originally but fails
meet the requirement subsequerdhthe
amount of endorsement and guaranteg
exceeds the stipulated limit due to the cha
in the base for limit calculation, the amou
of endorsement and guarantee to such ol
or the exceeding part shall be eliminate
upon the expiry of period stipuéd in
relevant contract, or the financial unit shi
make a plan and have it approved by th
President, and then send the improvem¢
plan tothe Audit Committeend independe
director, and eliminate all of it within a
certain period and report to the&d of
Directors.

Deleted the paragraph.

The Company
has establishe
its Audit

Committee.

Article 12

Upon formulating these Procedures, after
passed by Board of Directors, it shall be §
to each supervisor and submitted to
Shareholders' Meetg for approval before
implementation; if any director raises

objection and with record or written
statement, the objection thereof shall be §
to each supervisor and submitted to
Shareholders' Meeting, and the same sk
apply upon amendment.

If the Company has set the Audit Committ
upon formulation or amendment of the
Procedures of Making Endorsement an
Guarantees, it shall be agreed by more t
one second of all members of Audit
Committee, and proposed to Board of

Directors Meeting for resolun, and the

Article 12

Upon formulatingor amendinghese
Procedurest shallreceivethe consent fron
the majority of the members of the Audi
Committee and submitted to the Board (
Directors for resolutionafter it is passed b
Board of Directors, it shall be sent to ea
supevisor and submitted to Shareholder
Meeting for approval before implementati
In the absence of the consent from the
majority of the members of the Audit
Committee, it may proceed subject to th

consent from more the twihirds of the

directors and tle resolution of the Audit

Committee shall be specified in the Minu

Book of Board of Directors Meeting.

Deleted the paragraph.

The Company
has establishe
its Audit

Committee.
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provisions in Paragraph Il shall not appl
If it is not agreed by more than one secon
all members of Audit Committee as
mentioned in preceding paragraph, it may
agreed by more than two thirds of all
directors, and the resolution of Audi
Committee shall be specified in the Minu
Book of Board of Directors Meeting.
All members of Audit Committee referred
in Paragraph Il and all directors referred
in preceding paragraph are calculated ba
on the actual appointment.

Deleted the paragraph.

Deleted the paragraph.

Article 13: Amendmendates of these
Procedures:
These Procedures were formulated on J
24, 2012.
The first amendment was made on May
2013.
The second amendment was made on J
30, 2014.
The third amendment was made on June
2019.

Article 13: Amendment dates of thes

Procedures:
These Procedures were formulated on J
24, 2012.
The first amendment was made on May
2013.
The second amendment was made on J
30, 2014.
The third amendment was made on June
2019.
The fourth amendment was made on Junt
2020.

Added the dateg
and times of
amendment.
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Attachment 10

EZconn Corporation

Compari son

Tabl

e on Amendment s

to t

Before amendment

After amendment

Basis of
amendmen

Article 5
VII.

When the loan object is not conforming be
regulations of these Procedures or laws g

decrees or the balance exceeds the limit di
the change of circumstances, the Compa
shall make improvement plans and subn

relevant improvement plans to each superv
and complete the improvement aatiag to

the planned schedule.

VIII.

Internal audit personnel of the Company sl
audit the Procedures of Granting of Loans
its execution situation at least every quart
and make a written record, in case of an
signification violation is found, witen notice
shall be served to each supervisor and
independent director immediately.

IX.

(V) Internal audit personnel of subsidiarie
shall also audit the Procedures of Granting
Loans and its execution situation at least e|
quarter, and make a writtegecord, in case 0

any signification violation is found, writter

notice shall be served to the audit unit of {

Company immediately, and audit unit of tk

Company shall submit written materials tj

each supervisor and independent directd

If the Companyhas set the Audit Committeq
the provisions on the supervisor in preced
paragraph shall apply to the Audit Committ

Article 5
VII.

When the loan object is not conforming to
regulations of these Procedures or laws g
decrees or the balance exceéuk limit due t(
the change of circumstances, the Compa
shall make improvement plans and subm
relevant improvement plans tioe Audit
Committee and complete the improvemer
according to the planned schedule.

VIII.

Internal audit personnel of the Cpany shall
audit the Procedures of Granting of Loans
its execution situation at least every quart
and make a written record, in case of an
signification violation is found, written notig
shall be served tthe Audit Committeend
independent dir¢or immediately.

IX.

(V) Internal audit personnel of subsidiarie
shall also audit the Procedures of Granting
Loans and its execution situation at least e
guarter, and make a written record, in cast

any signification violation is found, written

notice shall be served to the audit unit of t

Company immediately, and audit unit of tf
Company shall submit written materialsthe

Audit Committeeand independent director

Deleted the paragraph.

The
Company
has
establishe(
its Audit
Committee

Article 8

Upon formulating these Procedures, after |
passed by Board of Directors, it shall be s
to each supervisor and submitted to
Shareholders' Meeting for approval befor
implementation; if any director raises
objection and with record or writterasément
the objection thereof shall be sent to eac
supervisor and submitted to Shareholder
Meeting, and the same shall apply upor
amendment.

Article 8

Upon formulatingor amendinghese

Proceduregt shallreceivethe consent from
the majority of the members of the Audit

Committee and subritéed to the Board of
Directors for resolutionafter it is passed by
Board of Directors, it shall be sent to eac
supervisor and submitted to Shareholder
Meeting for approval before implementatia
In the absence of the consent from the maj

of the members of the Audit Committee, it

may proceed subject to the consent from n
the twothirds of thedirectors and the

resolution of the Audit Committee shall be

The
Company
has
establishe(
its Audit
Committee
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If the Company has set the Audit Committ
upon formulation or amendment of thesg
Procedures, it shall be i@gd by more than
one second of all members of Audit
Committee, and proposed to Board of
Directors Meeting for resolution, and the
provisions in Paragraph Il shall not apply

If it is not agreed by more than one secon
all members of Audit Committee agentione(
in preceding paragraph, it may be agreed
more than two thirds of all directors, and t
resolution of Audit Committee shall be
specified in the Minute Book of Board of
Directors Meeting.

All members of Audit Committee referred tg
Paragraphll and all directors referred to in
preceding paragraph are calculated basec

the actual appointment.

specified in the Minute Book of Board of
Directors Meeting.

Deleted the paragraph.

Deleted the paragraph.

Deleted the paragraph.

Article 9: Amendment dates of these
Procedures:

These Procedures were formulated on Jun
2012.

The first amendment was made on June |
2014.

The second amément was made on June |
2016.

The third amendment was made on June
20109.

Article 9: Amendment dates of these

Procedures:
These Procedures were formulated on Jun
2012.
The first amendment was made on June
2014.
The second amendment was madelune 21
2016.
The third amendment was made on June
2019.
The fourth amendment was made on June
2020.

Added the
date and time
of
amendment
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Attachment 11
EZconn Corporation
Procedures for Share Buyback and Transfer to Employees
Formulated on March 20, 2020

Article 1 Tomoti vate employees and i mprove fmdated the | o
Procedures for Share Buyback and Transfer
according to the Regulations Governing Share RepuechgsExchangédisted and OTEListed
Companies and relevant requirements promulgated by the Financial Supervisory Commissic
Except for otherwise required by laws and regulations, the share buyback and transfer
employeesnadeby the Company shall compiyith the Procedures.

Article 2 Type, content of rights and the restriction on rights for the transferred shares

The sharedransferto employees are ordinary shar&xcept for otherwiseequired byrelevant
laws and regulations and the Procedures,ighkts and obligations are the same as the other
outstanding ordinary shares.

Article 3 Transferperiod

The Chairman is authorized to transfer steares bought badk employees at once or in batches
within three years from the date of share buyback daogto the requirements of the Procedures.

Article 4 Qualification of transferees

The full-time employee of the Company took office before the basis date for the share subscriptic
or employees of the Company who had special contribution to the Compdniiaae been
reported to the Chairman and received consents are entitled to the subscription according to
number of subscription stipulated in Article 5 of the Procedures.

Article 5 Stipulation for the number of shares to be subscribed by employees

The number of shares may be subscribed by employees shall be subject to the weighting factor
transferred share®r employeesdetermined by the Company with reference to the years of
experience, duty, level of duty, performance, overall contribution,iapachievement of the
employees or other conditions required for managenasnivell aghe considerations to the total
number of buyback shares held by the Company and the maximum number of shares may
subscribed by a single employee on the basisafatbare subscription, and shall be submitted to
the Chairman for approvahny employee who failed to pay the fees for subscription at the expiry
of the payment term shall be deemed as abstention. The Chairman is authorized to communic
with other emplgees for the subscription of the remaining balances of the undersubscription.

Article 6 Procedures for buyback and transfer to employees

. Carry out the buyback of the Company6s she
resolution, announcementareport of the Board of Directors.

II.  The Board of Directors authorized the Chairman to announce and determine matters regarding
number of shares being transferred in batc
standards for number of shai@vailable for subscriptigrthe period of subscription payment, the
content of rights, and the restrictiomscording to the Procedures.
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lll. The Company shall calculate the actual number of subscriptions paid and carry out the trans
registration for thelsare certificates.

Article 7 Agreed transfer price per share

For the shares buyback and transfers to employees, the transfer price is the average price of
actual buyback price, and the transfer price is unconditionally rounded up to NT$0.1. Howeve
before the transfer, where there is any increase or decrease in the numbeeddrdinary shares

of the Companypr any adjustment made according to the increase/decrease ratio of the issue
shares, or the shares may be transferred to employees e foprer than the average price of the
actual buyback according to the requirements of the Articles of Association of the Company, th
Company shall propos&i ch matters at the most recent s
representing the majorityf the total issued shares attending and receive the consent from more th
two-thirds of the attendinghareholders, and the process of such matters shall also be subject to tf
Company for setting out the reason stated in Articld Lder the RegulatioriSoverning Share
Repurchase by Exchangested and OTEListed Companies in theonveningreason for the
sharehol dersd meeting.

Transfer priceadjustingformula:

Transfer price after adjustment = average price for actual buyback shares x (total nunsusdof is
shares when reporting the buyback of shares/total number of issued ordinary shares before tran:
the buyback shares to employees)

Article 8 Rights and obligations after theansfer

After the share buyback and transfer to employees and the tramgistration, except for
otherwise required, the remaining rights and obligations shall be the same as the original shares.

Article 9 Other obligations related to the Company and employees

I.  The taxes and expense incurred due to the shares transferrediractm the Procedures shall be
subject tothe laws and regulations and the relevant procedures of the Company at the time
transfer.

II. The Company reserves the right to adjust or suspend the implementation according to the ovet
operations and profitgn and the receiving employees shall be responsible for the confidentiality.

Article 10 The Procedures become effective upon passing the resolution at the Board meeting, and may
amended after being reported to aesolvedby the Board meeting.

Article 11  The procedures shall be submitted to the Shareholders' Meeting, and the saappshafion
amendment.
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Appendix 1

Article 1:

Article 2:
1.

8.
9.

10.
11.

Article 3:

Article 4:
Article 5:

Articles of Association of EZconn
Corporation

Chapter 1: General Principles

The Company is incorporated pursuant to the regulations of Company Act and
named as EZconn Corporation.

Businesses opated by the Company are as follows:

Manufacturing, assembly, processing and buying and selling of all kinds o
optical fibers, optical fiber lead, jumper wire, fiber optic connector, socket,
optical fiber splice closure and distribution cabinet.

Proessing and assembly businesses of communication optoelectronic interfa
products and communication network equipment.

Processing, manufacturing and assembly of precision metal parts and electror
products for use as electronic components

Processingof all kinds of electronic, plastic parts, automobile parts and
motorcycle parts.

Buying and selling, import and export of all kinds of telecommunications
(electronic) equipment (including radio transceiver and the motor with
launching performance).

Import and export trading businesses regarding the products in precedin
paragraphs.

Import and export trading businesses of direct broadcast satellite televisio
receiver.

CC01080 Electronic Parts and Components Manufacturing.
F119010 Wholesalef Electronic Materials.
F219010 Retail Sale of Electronic Materials.

2799999 All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by law, excep
those that are subject to special approval.

The company sets parent company in Taipé&y,Gvhen necessary; the branch
may be incorporated both at home and abroad with the board resolution ar
approval of competent authority.

The Company may provide guarantee externally according to business needs.

The Company may makereign reinvestment according to business necessity,
and may become the limited partner of other companies per board resolutiol
and the total investment amount thereof may not be restricted by relevar
reinvestment quotas as provided in Article 13 of @any Act.
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Chapter 2 Shares

Article 6: The capital on stock of the Company is NT$1 billion in 200 million shares with
nominal amount par value of NT$10 per share. The Board of Directors is
authorized to issue them in batches.

NT$100 million is reserved fra the total capital on stock in preceding
paragraph for the exercise of stock option when issuing the stock optior
certificate, warrant bond and preferred shares with warrants etc., totally te
million shares with NT$10 per share, and it may be issuedtheb.

Article 7: Where the Company plans to transfer the shares bought back pursuant to law to
employees, and it is planned to transfer them to employees at the price low
than the average price in actual shares buyback pursuant to relevant laws a
decrees, then it shall only be handled after the resolution by the las
Sharehol ders6é6 Meeting.

Pursuantto Article54 of A Gui del i nes for | ssue
Securitieso, when the issuing sudsc
by the employee stock option certificate as stipulated in Article 53 of
AGui delines for | ssuer to Raise and

handled after the resolution by the last Shareholders' Meeting.

The objects of transferring the sha bought back by the Company pursuant to
law, objects of issuing employee stock option certificate and restricted employe
stock awards, and objects for subscribing the new shares issued may include t
employees of affiliated companies who have metagerconditions, and the
Board of Directors may be authorized to resolve the conditions and distributiot
methods thereof.

The shares of the Company are registered shares signed or sealed by the dire
representing the company, and they will be issued efteification by the bank
may act as the stock issue certifier pursuant to law. The shares issued by t
Company may be exempted from printing share certificate, but they shall b
registered in centralized securities depository enterprise.

Provisions inpreceding paragraph are applicable to the production and issue c
corporate bonds.

Measures for handling stock affairs of the Company are subject to relevant lan
and decrees and the regulations of competent authority.

Article 8: The registration of shateansfer shall not be carried out within thirty sixty days
before General Meeting, within fifteen thirty days before Interim Shareholders
Meeting, or within five days before the base date on which the Compan)
decides to distribute dividend and bonus dtreotbenefits.
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Chapter 3 Sharehol ders

Article 9: Shareholders' Meeting is divided into general meeting and interim meeting, th
general meeting shall be convened once a year and convened within six mont
after the end of every accounting yeandathe interim meeting may be
convened pursuant to relevant laws and decrees when necessary.

After public offering, the date, location and subject of convocation of the
meeting shall be notified to each shareholder thirty days before convenin
General Meet n g and fifteen days before
Meeting of the Company.

Article 10: When a shareholder cannot attend the Shareholders' Meeting for a reason, s
shareholder may issue the power of attorney printed by the Company to speci
thescope of authorization to appoint the proxy to attend.

Article 11: Apart from the shares without voting right as prescribed in Article 179 Compan:
Act, shareholders of the Company have one voting right for each share.

Article 12: Unless otherwise prescribdy relevant laws and decrees, the resolution of
Shareholders' Meeting shall be agreed by more than half of the voting rights ¢
the shareholders attending in person or by proxy and representing more than h
of the total shares issued.

According to theregulations of competent authority, shareholders of the
Company may also exercise the voting right electronically, shareholder:
exercising the voting right electronically will be deemed as attending in person
and relevant matters thereof shall be carryong selfassessment pursuant to
laws and decrees.

Article 13: The Shareholders' Meeting shall be convened by the Chairman and the Chairn
Is the chairperson, when the Chairman is absent, the Chairman may design:
one director as the proxy, if not, ditecs may elect one person as the proxy; if
the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by other entitled convenor other than ftl
Board of Directors, such entitled convenor shall act as the chairperson, whe
there are more than two entitled convenors, one of tekeall be mutually
designated to preside.

Article 14: All resolutions of a Shareholders’ Meeting shall be recorded in the minute
signed or sealed by the chairperson of Shareholders' Meeting, and the minut
shall be distributed to the shareholders witiaenty days after the meeting. The
distribution of minutes in preceding paragraph may be made by announcement
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Chapter 4 Directors and Supervisors

Article 15: The Company sets five to nine directors and two to three supervisors with thre

years of term boffice, and the candidate nomination system as prescribed in 1
of Article 192 of Company Act will be adopted for the election of directors and
supervisors. And they will be elected by the Shareholders' Meeting from the
persons with disposing capacity dareappointment is acceptable ifelected.

Among the aforesaid seats of directors, the number of independent directo
shall be at least two and no less than one fifth of the total seats of director:
Regarding independent directors' professional quatifin, shareholding,
parttime restriction, nomination and election method, and other matters shall b
complied with; it shall be handled pursuant to relevant regulations of competer
authority in charge of securities. Independent directors andn@pendent
directors shall be elected concurrently, and election quota will be calculate
separately.

The total shareholding ratio of all directors and supervisors of the Company ar
subject to the regulations of securities regulatory authority.

Article 151:

For the election of directors and supervisors, every share shall have the right to
vote equivalent to the number of directors and supervisors should be elected, it
may elect one person intensively or elect several persons respectively, and the
ones represéimg votes will be elected.

Article 16: When the director's number of vacancies reaches to one third of the total numt

Article 17:

or all supervisors are removed, the Board of Directors shall convene the Interir
Sharehol dersd Meeti ng -electioh iand the termrmoft y
office thereof is limited to make up the term of office of the original directors or
supervisors.

The Company may buy liability insurance for the directors and supervisors
within their term of office for the compensation liabilgpall be borne within
their scopes of business execution.

Directors may establish the Board of Directors, and one Chairman and or
Deputy Chairman may be mutually elected with the consent of the majority o
attending directors in the meetingteamded by more than two thirds of the
directors, and the Chairman acts on behalf of the Company externally. When tf
Chairman cannot exercise its function and power when on leave or for a reaso
its proxy shall be handled pursuant to Article 208 of Camgpfsct.

Each director and supervisor may be notified in writing, by email or fax when
convening the Board of Directors Meeting.

When a director cannot attend the Board of Directors Meeting for some reasol
he/she may issue the proxy statement and listatliborization scope in the
subject of convocation to appoint other director to attend, but one director ca
only represent one other director.
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Article 18:

If a director attends the meeting via video, it shall be deemed as attending |
person.

Unless otherise prescribed by Company Act, the resolution of Board of
Directors shall be agreed by the majority of attending shareholders in a meetir
attended by the majority of shareholders.

Article 19: The supervisor set by the Company is responsible for supgrail$inusinesses

Article 20:

of the Company pursuant to laws and decrees. But when the Company is setti
the AAudit CommitteeoO pursuant to 4
there is no need to set the supervisor; if the supervisor has been set, he/she \
be removed certainly upon the est
provisions on the supervisor hereof will also lose effect immediately.

Regarding the headcount, term of office, function and power, rules of procedur
etc. of Audit Committee, it shall éb otherwise formulated in the Audit
Committee Organizational Regulations pursuant to the Public Company Audi
Committee Authority Exercising Measures.

Functions and powers of the supervisor are as follows:
1. Supervise the execution of corporate business.
2. Investigate business and financial conditions of the company.

3. Audit all kinds of book of tables or forms prepared by Board of Directors
and proposed to the Shareholders' Meeting.

4. Other functions and powers granted in accordance with the provisions o
CompanyAct.

For execution of duties of the Company by directors and supervisors of th
Company, regardless of operating profit or loss, the Company shall pay regul:
compensations such as transportation allowance and remuneration etc., a
Board of Drectors is authorized to determine the their remuneration based o
their degree of participation in and value of contribution to the company
operation and by referring to normal standard of the industry. When surplus i
available, compensation will be otiagse distributed according to the
provisions of Article 24 hereof.

Chapter 5 Managerial Officer

Article 21: The company may set the managerial officer, whose appointment, dismissal a

remuneration will be subject to the regulations of Article 29 of GomgAct.

Article 22: The Company may employ a consultant through board resolution.
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Chapter 6 Accounting

Article 23: At the close of each fiscal year, the Board of Directors of the Company sha

Article 24:

prepare the following book of tables or forms and forward $lame to
supervisors for auditing thirty days before convening the General Meeting
and submit the same to the General Meeting for acknowledgment.

(1) Business report;
(2) Financial statements; and
(3) Surplus distribution or loss effetting proposals.

If profits are available upon final settlement every year, the Company shal
allocate no | ess than five percent
than five percent as director and
per resolution of the Bod of Directors, taxes shall be paid pursuant to law,
and then ten percent shall be allocated as the statutory surplus reserve, bu
may be exempted if the statutory surplus reserve has already reached the tc
paidup capital of the company; after thalance thereof has been allocated or
revolved as special surplus reserve pursuant to laws and decrees
regulations of competent authority, then it will be accumulated into the
undistributed surplus, and Board of Directors may prepare surplus distmibutio
proposal to propose to Shareholders' Meeting for distribution of reservatior
per resolution.

If the Company had accumulated losses in previous year, if profits are
available in the current year and before allocating employee's compensatic
and director ad supervisor's compensation, the losses shall be covered firs:
and the balance thereof will be allocated according to the proportions
mentioned in preceding paragraph;
Is distributed by stock or in cash, the objeofsdistribution include the
employees of affiliated companies meeting certain conditions.

The dividend policy of t he Compan
interests as the biggest foundation, and give considerations to factors such
industry condions faced by the company currently or in the future, stage of
growth, future financial planning, capital needs and planning of satisfying
shareholders in cash etc., under the principle of dividend equalization
sharehol der sé cash werithan tére petent soh tatal |

sharehol dersdé dividend, and the a
subject to the amount determined i

The Company authorizes the Board of Directors to pass a resolution agree
by the majority of attending directors in a meeting attended more than twc
thirds of directors to, in whole or in part, distribute the dividend and bonus in
cash, and propose it to the last Shareholders' Meeting.

When there is no loss, the Company authgribe Board of Directors to pass
a resolution agreed by the majority of attending directors in a meeting
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attended more than two thirds of directors to, in whole or in part, distribute
the statutory surplus reserve (limited to the part of exceeding tMieety
percent of the patdp capital) and the capital reserve conforming to the
regulations of Company Act in cash, and propose it to the last Shareholder
Meeting.

Chapter 7 Supplemental Provisions

Article 25: The articles of organization and working sutd the Company shall be otherwise
formulated by Board of Directors.

Article 26: Matters not covered herein shall be handled pursuant to the Company Act a
relevant laws and decrees.

Article 27: The conclusion or amendment of these Articles of Associatiall be carried
out with the approval of competent authority.

Article 28:
These Atrticles of Association was concluded on August 21, 1996.
The first amendment was made on December 9, 2002.
The second amendment was made on December 24, 2002.
The third anendment was made on June 30, 2003.
The fourth amendment was made on June 30, 2004.
The fifth amendment was made on August 1, 2005.
The sixth amendment was made on September 3, 2007.
The seventh amendment was made on November 15, 2012.
The eighth amendmentas made on December 7, 2012.
The ninth amendment was made on May 13, 2013.
The tenth amendment was made on May 15, 2015.
The eleventh amendment was made on June 21, 2016.
The twelfth amendment was made on June 10, 2019.

EZconn Corporation
Chairman: ChenSteve
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Appendix 2

Article 1:

EZconn Corporation

Director and Supervisor Election Measures
Passed in Shareholders' Meeting on November 15, 2012

Unless otherwise prescribed by laws and decrees or Articles of Association, the election
directors and supeisors of the Company be handled according to these Measures.

Article 2: The election of director of the Company shall give consideration to the overall allocation of Boar

of Directors. Members of Board of Directors shall generally possess the knowsédigeand
accomplishments necessary for duty execution, overall abilities shall be possessed by them are
follows:

1. Operation judgment ability.
Accounting and financial analysis ability.
Operating management ability.

Industryknowledge.

2

3

4. Crisis management ability.

5

6. International market opinion.
7

Leadership.

oo

Decisionmaking ability.

Article 3: The supervisor of the Company shall meet the following conditions:

Article 4:

Article 5:

1. Integrity and dependability.

2. Unbiased judgment.

3. Professional knowledge.

4. Rich experience.

5. Ability of reading financial statements.

Apart from meeting the conditions mentioned in preceding paragraph, among all supervisors
the Company, there shall be at least one supervisor is the professional accounting or financ
personnel.

Qualifications and election of independent directors of the Company shall comply with the
provisions of the "Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Complianc
Matters for Listed Companieso and relevant

After public offering, among the seats of directors, the Company shall set the independer
directors and specify them in the Articles of Association, and the shareholders will elect th
independent directors according to the List of Independent Director Candidates.

Before convening the Shareholders’ Meeting, the Company shall announce the accepte
nomination period of independent director candidates, quota of independent director, place
acceptance and other necessary matters before the book closure day; and thecaqoeptah
shall not be less than ten days.

Board of Directors of the Company or the shareholders holding more than one percent of tot
outstanding shares may recommend the list of independent directors for the next session as
reference for electing dependent directors. But the number of nominations shall not exceed the
quota of independent directors; and the same shall apply for the number of independent direc
candidates nominated by Board of Directors.
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Article 6:

Article 7:

Article 8:

Article 9:

Independent directors and nromependentirectors shall be elected concurrently, and votes will
be counted separately, and appointment shall be made separately.

When recommending the list of independent directors as stated in preceding paragraph, Board
Directors may also provide relevant nrébs such as the candidate's education background,
experience, number of shareholdings, the name of representing government or legal person, «
independence compliance etc. for the sake of reference by shareholders.

The election of directorsnd supervisors of the Company adopts the single ballot cumulative
el ection method, the name of el ector i's r
otherwise prescribed by Articles of Association, every share has the election right of elexting t
same number of directors or supervisors, it may elect one person intensively, or elect seve
persons separately. Board of Directors shall prepare the number of ballots equivalent to tl
number of directors or supervisors shall be elected, and thleinveight number according to the
number ofcertificatesof attendance, distribute them to shareholders attending Shareholders
Meeting.

According to the quota specified in Articles of Association, directors and supervisors of the
Company willbe elected successively and respectively based on those who have won ballo
representing more election rights, if more than two candidates are getting the same weight numt
and exceeding the specified quota, candidates getting the same weight numbededided by
drawing, and the chairperson will make the draw on behalf of those who fail to attend.

Before the start of election, the chairperson shall designate several scrutinizing and countir
personnel of shareholders identity to execlit&iads of relevant duties. The ballot box shall be
prepared by Board of Directors and opened by scrutinizing personnel for verification in public
before voting.

If the candidate of the election is of shareholder identity, elector shall fileimccount name and
sharehol der 6s account number of such candi
shareholder identity, the name and ID document number of the candidate shall be filled in. B
when the candidate is government or legaison shareholder, the candidate name column in
ballot shall be filled in the name of such government and legal person, or the name c
representative of such government or legal person; when there are several representatives,
names of representativelall be filled in respectively.

Article 10: The ballot will be invalid in case of any one of the following circumstances:

Not use the ballot prepared by Board of Directors;

Input the blank ballot into ballot box.

The handwriting is illegible and unidefiible or has been altered.

If the filled in candidate is of shareho

account number is not consistent with those in shareholders list; if the filled in candidate i

not of shareholder identity, its namB, document number is not conforming per checking.

5. Apart from filling i n t he account name
document number) of the candidate and the allocated election weight number, other texts &
written.

6. The name of the filé in candidate is the same as other shareholders’ name, but the

shareholder account name or ID document number has not been filled in for identification.

hrwpE

Article 11: After voting, the ballot box shall be opened and ballots shall be counted on the spibie and

chairperson or the host shall announce the list of elected directors and supervisors on the sf

Article 12: Board of Directors of the Company will issue the notice of election to the elected directors an

supervisors.

Article 13: These Measures wille implemented after the approval of Shareholders’ Meeting, and the sam

shall apply upon amendment.
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Appendix 3

Article 1:

Article 2:

Article 3:

Article 4:

EZconn Corporation

Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' Meetings
In order to establish good Shareholders' Meeting governance sgsiraound supervision
function of the Company, and strengthen management function, it is hereby formulated the:
Rules pursuant to Article 5 of Listed Company Governance Best Practice Principles of th
Republic of China to comply with. The laws and desmeeentioned in these Rules are the laws
and decrees of the Republic of China.

Unless otherwise prescribed by laws and decrees or regulations, the rules of procedure 1
Shareholders' Meetings of the Company shall be formulated accordingegdiihes.

Unless otherwise prescribed by laws and decrees, Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company st
be convened by Board of Directors.

Upon convening the General Meeting, meeting handbook shall be prepared and ea
shareholder shall be informethirty days in advance, shareholders holding less than one
thousand registered shares may be informed by inputting the announcement :
mops.twse.com.tw thirty days in advance; u
shareholder shall be infoed fifteen days in advance, and shareholders holding less than one
thousand registered shares may be informed by inputting the announcement :
mops.twse.com.tw fifteen days in advance.

Notice and announcement shall specify the subject of convocatiomgddy the counterpart,

the notice may be served in electronic way.

Appointment or dismissal of a director or supervisor; amendment to Articles of Association
company dissolution, merge or division; or matters prescribed in each subparagraph «
Paragraph, Article 185 of Company Act; Article 26, Article 436 of Securities Exchange Act
shall be listed in the subject of convocation; and shall not be proposed as an Ad Hoc Motion.
Shareholders holding more than one percent of total outstanding sharesliofitiad liability
company may propose a General Meeting motion to the Company in writing. But the motion i
limited to one, if there is more than one motion, all of them will not be included in the proposal
Besides, if the motion proposed by a sharedolths any one of the circumstances as prescribed
in Paragraph 4, 1 of Article 172 of Company Act, Board of Directors will not include it in the
proposal. The Company shall announce the accepted motion of shareholders, acceptance pl
and acceptance peddefore the book closure day before convening General Meeting; and the
acceptance period thereof shall not be less than ten days. The motion proposed by a shareho
is limited to three hundred words, those exceeding three hundred words will not loedniciu
proposal; the proposing shareholder shall personally or appoint other person to attend tl
General Meeting, and patrticipate in the discussion of such motion.

The Company shall notify the proposing shareholder the handling results before the aytice d
of convening Shareholders' Meeting, and list the motion conforming to the provisions of thi:
article in the meeting notice. For the shareholder's motion not listed in the proposal, Board ¢
Directors shall describe the reasons therefor in the Sharesiditkseting.

Upon every General Meeting, a shareholder may issue the proxy statement printed by tt
Company to specify the scope of authorization, so as to entrust the proxy to attend the Gene
Meeting.

A shareholder is limited to issue oneoyy statement to appoint one proxy, and the proxy
statement shall be served to the Company five days before convening Shareholders' Meeting.
case of repeated proxy statement, ahe served first shall prevagxcept for announcing the
cancellation oprevious appointment.
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Article 5:

Article 6:

Article 7:

Article 8:

After the proxy statement has been served to the Company, if a shareholder intends to attend
Shareholders' Meeting in person, such shareholder shall serve written notice on canceling t
proxy statement to the Company one dafoke convening the Shareholders' Meeting; or voting
right exercised by the attending entrusted proxy shall prevail.

The convening place of Shareholders' Meeting shall be at the place where the Company loca
in or convenient for shareholdeis attend and suitable for convening Shareholders’ Meeting,
and the meeting start time shall not be earlier than 9:00am in the morning, nor later than 3:00¢
in the afternoon; full consideration shall be given to the opinions of independent directol
regardng the convening place and time.

The Company shall set autograph book for attending shareholder or the agent entrusted
shareholder (hereinafter referred to as shareholder) to sign in, or the attending shareholder n
submit the sign card stead of sign inThe attending shares shall be calculated according to the
autograph book or the sign card submitted, plus the shares exercising voting right in writing c
electronic way.

The said accepted shareholder's reporting time shall be at legstimutes before meeting
start; the registration location shall be marked explicitly, and sufficient competent personne
shall be assigned for handling.

The Company shall deliver meeting handbook, annual report, certificate of attendance, spee
note, wte and other meeting materials to the shareholders attending Shareholders' Meeting;
case of director or supervisor election, the ballot shall be attached otherwise.

Shareholders shall attend the Shareholders' Meeting with certificate of attendaesigret

sign card or other attendance certificates; solicitor of proxy solicitation shall bring identity
supporting document for checking.

When a shareholder is the government or legal person, representative attending Sharehold:
Meeting is not limitedd one person. When a legal person is entrusted to attend Shareholder:
Meeting, it may only assign one representative to attend.

If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by Board of Directors, the Chairman shall preside tt
meeting, and the Degy Chairman shall preside the meeting when the Chairman is on leave ot
unable to preside. If there is no Deputy Chairman or the Deputy Chairman also is on leave
unable to preside, the Chairman shall designate one managing director to preside; if t
managing director is not available, designate one director to preside, if the Chairman fails t
designate the agent, the managing director or directors will mutually designate one person
preside.

If the chairperson mentioned in preceding paragraph isreagiag director or director, such
managing director or director shall have taken office for over six months and understand tr
financial and business condition of the company. The same shall apply if the chairperson is t
representative of juridical penmsdalirector.

It is better that the Shareholders' Meeting convened by the Board of Directors is attended by t
majority of directors. If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by other entitled convenor othe
than the Board of Directors, such entitled cororeshall preside the meeting, when there are
more than two entitled convenors, one of them shall be mutually designated to preside.

The Company may assign the appointed lawyer, accounting or relevant personnel to attend t
Shareholders' Meeting.

Starting from accepting shareholders' registration, the Company shall take sound and vide
recording the whole course of shareholder's registration process, meeting process, voting a
counting process, and keep them for at least one year. But if ehslder files a lawsuit
pursuant to Article 189 of Company Act, they shall be kept until the end of litigation.
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Article 9:

Article 10:

Article 11:

The attendance of Shareholders' Meeting shall be subject to the calculation of shares. T
attending shares shall be calculatedoading to the autograph book or the sign card submitted,
plus the shares exercising voting right in writing or electronic way. When it is time for meeting,
the chairperson shall immediately make opening address, but if the attending shareholders
not regresenting the majority of total outstanding shares, the chairperson may announce
postpone the meeting, and its times of postponing is limited to two times, and the total tim
postponed shall not exceed one hour. If attending shareholders are stdprestenting more
than one third of the total outstanding shares after postponing for two times, the chairperson w
announce that the meeting fails to be convened for lack of a quorum.

If there is still lack of a quorum but attending shareholders aresepting more than one third

of the total outstanding shares after postponing for two times as stated in preceding paragrapk
tentative resolution may be made pursuant to Paragraph 1, Article 175 of Company Act, and ti
tentative resolution shall be motd to each shareholder to further convene Shareholders'
Meeting within one month.

Before the end of the current meeting, if the attending shareholders are representing tl
majority of total outstanding shares, the chairperson will make a tentativeiti@soland
propose it again pursuant to Article 174 of Company Act to Shareholders' Meeting for voting

If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, its agenda shall b
determined by the Board of Directors, the meetihgllsbe proceeded according to the
scheduled agenda, and it shall not be changed unless by the resolution of Shareholders' Meeti
If the Shareholders' Meeting is convened by other entitled convenor other than the Board
Directors, the provisions in preding paragraph shall apply.

Before the end of official business discussion (including ad hoc motion) in the schedule
agenda as prescribed in preceding two paragraphs, the chairperson may not arbitrarily decl:
meeting adjournment without resolution;tife chairperson declares the meeting adjournment
by violating procedures, other members of Board of Directors shall immediately assist attendin
shareholders to elect one person as the chairperson with the consent of majority attendi
shareholders withoting rights pursuant to legal procedure to continue the meeting.

For the motion and amendment or ad hoc motions proposed by shareholders, the chairper:
shall give opportunity for sufficient description and discussion, when it is suitable for voting to
decide, the chairperson may declare the stop of discussion and propose for voting to decide.

Before giving a speech, an attending shareholder shall first fill in speech note to specify th
speech topic, shar ehol dageoféaiendarce rmmhber) and aceolne |
name, and the chairperson will decide its speech order.

If an attending shareholder only submits speech note but does not give a speech, it shall
deemed as unspoken. In case of any discrepancy between speechs amdetiite record in
speech note, the speech contents shall prevail.

For the same motion, the speech of every shareholder shall not exceed two times and no lon
than five minutes per time unless with the consent of the chairperson; if the speech of
shaeholder violates the regulation or is beyond scope of motion, the chairperson may stop i
speech.

When an attending shareholder is giving a speech, unless agreed by the chairperson &
speaking shareholder, other shareholders shall not interrupt théhspeecviolator shall be
stopped by the chairperson.

When a legal person shareholder assigns more than two representatives to attend
Shareholders' Meeting, the same motion can only be spoken by one representative.

After the speech of an attending sttaslder, the chairperson shall personally or designate
relevant personnel to reply.
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Article 12:

Article 13:

Article 14:

The voting of Shareholders' Meeting shall be subject to the calculation of.shares

For the resolution of Shareholders' Meeting, the number of shares ohadars without
voting right will not be calculated into the total number of outstanding shares.

In respect of meeting matters, if a shareholder itself has interested relationship and thereby
suspected of damaging the interests of the Company, suckhelthar shall not join in the
voting, nor exercise voting right on behalf of other shareholders.

The number of shares cannot exercise voting right as prescribed in preceding paragraph will r
be calculated into the number of voting rights of attendinge$izdders.

Except for trust enterprise or the stock affairs agency approved by competent authority i
charge of securities, when one person is appointed by more than two shareholders, the age
voting right thereof shall not exceed three percent of tted tmtstanding shares with voting
right, and the exceeding voting right will not be calculated.

Every share of shareholders of the Company has one voting right, except for the voting right
restricted or voting right is not available pumnstito Paragraph 2, Article 179 of Company Act.
Upon convening Shareholders' Meeting, the Company may exercise its voting right in writing
or electronic way; when exercising voting right in writing or electronic way, the exercising
method thereof shall bepscified in Shareholders’ Meeting convening notice. Shareholders
exercising voting right in writing or electronically shall be deemed as attending Genera
Meeting in person. But it shall be deemed as waiver regarding the amendment of ad hoc moti
and orig n a | proposal s of such Sharehol der sbo
proposing the amendment of ad hoc motion and original proposals.

If the voting right in preceding paragraph is exercised in writing or electronic way, the
declaration of intentiorthereof shall be served to the company two days before convening
Shareholders' Meeting, in case of repeated declarations of intention, the one served first sh
prevail. Except for announcing the cancellation of previous declaration of intention.

After ashareholder has exercised voting right in writing or electronic way, if intends to attend
the Shareholders' Meeting in person, such shareholder shall cancel the preceding declaratior
intention on exercising voting right in the same way as exercisitiggvaght two days before
convening Shareholders' Meeting, or the voting right exercised in writing or electronic way
shall prevalil. If a shareholder exercises voting right in writing or electronic way and entrusts
proxy through proxy statement to attethe Shareholders' Meeting, the voting right exercised
by the attending entrusted proxy shall prevail. Afterwards,stiereholdershall vote on a
caseby case basis. The results for the consent, objectionabsigntionof shareholders of
shareholdershall beuploaded o t he MOPS on the date after
When there is an amendment or replacement for the same proposal, the chairperson will dec
its voting order together with the original proposal. If one of the proposals has dsseu pthe
other proposals will be deemed as overruled, and voting therefor will no longer be necessary.
The scrutinizing and counting personnel of proposal voting will be designated by the
chairperson, but the scrutinizing personnel shall be of sharehdégity.

The vote counting for the voting or election proposal in Shareholders' Meeting shall be carrie
out openly in the site of Shareholders' Meeting, and after the completion of vote counting, th
voting right results including statistical weightedbe announced on the spot, and records shall
be kept.

In case of director or supervisor election in Shareholders' Meeting, it shall be handled accordir
to relevant election procedures stipulated by the Company, and the election resulie sha
announced on the spot, including the list of elected directors and supervisors and their weight
election.
The ballot of election matters mentioned in preceding paragraph shall be kept properly afte
sealed and signed by scrutinizing personnel,iasdall be kept for at least one year. But if the
General Meeting files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of Company Act, they shall be kept unti
the end of litigation.
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Article 15:

Article 16:

Article 17:

Article 18:

Article 19:

All resolutions of a Shareholders' Meeting shall be recorded in thatesisigned or sealed by
the chairperson of the meeting, and the minutes shall be distributed to the shareholders witk
twenty days after the meeting. The record and distribution of minutes may be made in a
electronic file.

The distribution of minutes nméioned in preceding paragraph may be announced by inputting it
at mops.twse.com.tw.

The minutes shall be recorded actually according to the meeting date, location, name
chairperson, resolution method, essentials of discussion process and its results,tree
duration of the Company, it shall be kept permanently.

For the resolution method mentioned in preceding paragraph, the chairperson has consull
with shareholders for opinions, if shareholders have no objection to the proposal, "Passed up
the agreement by all attending shareholders per the consultation of the chairperson” shall t
recorded; but if shareholders have any disagreement with the proposal, the voting method, t
number of pass voting right and the proportion thereof shall be specified

For the number of shares obtained by solicitor and the number of shares represented
entrusted proxy, the Company shall prepare statistical table according to the prescribed form:
the date of convening Shareholders' Meeting, and it &lealtlearly revealed in the place of
Shareholders' Meeting.

For the resolution matter of Shareholders' Meeting, if it is significant information pursuant tc
the provisions of laws and decrees and the provisions of Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporatic
(Juridial ROC GreTai Securities Market), the Company shall transmit the contents ta
mops.twse.com.tw within the specified time.

Meeting affairs personnel handling Shareholders' Meeting shall wear ID draaige.

The chairperson may command picketersecurity guard to assist to maintain meeting place
order. When assisting in maintaining order on the spot, picketer or security guard shall wear tf
armbadge with "Picketer" character or ID.

If the meeting place is equipped with amplification systelmemwa shareholder does not use the
equipment configured by the Company to give a speech, the chairperson may be stop it.

If a shareholder violates rules of procedure and disobeys the correction by chairperso
interrupting the proceeding of meeting andobisying after being stopped, the chairperson may
command picketer or security guard to ask such shareholder to leave the meeting place.

During the meeting, the chairperson may announce the rest at appropriate time, in case of fo
majeure cicumstance, the chairperson may judge to temporarily stop the meeting, an
announce the time for meeting continuation as the case may be.

Before the end of official business discussion (including ad hoc motion) in the agend:
scheduled by Shareholders' Meegitiif the meeting place is not available for continuous use at

that time, Shareholders' Meeting may make a resolution to find another place to continue tt
meeting.

Shareholders' Meeting may make a resolution to postpone or continue the assemblywsithin fi
days pursuant to Article 182 of Company Act.

These Rules will be implemented after the approval of Shareholders’ Meeting, and the san
shall apply upon amendment.

Article 20: Amendment dates of these Rules of Procedure:

These Rules of Predure were formulated on June 24, 2012.
The first amendment was made on June 30, 2014.
The second amendment was made on June 22, 2017.
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Appendix 4

EZconn Corporation

Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets
Article 1: Purpose:

The acquisition oridposal of assets by the Company shall be handled according to the provision

of

these Procedures or ARegul ations Governi

Companyo. Other matters not coveredeeherein

Article 2: Application scope of assets:

(1

(1
()

Investment in stock, government bonds, corporate bonds, financial bonds, negotiabl
securities in recognition of funds, depository receipt, call (put) warrant, beneficial securities
and assebacked securitgeetc.

Real estate (including land, house and building, investment property, land use right, inventot
in construction industry) and equipment.

Membership certificate.

(IV) Intangible assets such as patent right, copyright, trademark right and chartereid right e

(V)

Right-of-use assets.

(VI) Creditor's rights to financial institution (including receivables, negotiations and discounts,

(V1)

loan, overdue receivables).
Derivatives.

(Vi Assets acquired or disposed through merger, division, acquisition or assignment of sha

pursuat to law.

(IX) Other important assets.

Article 3: Terms definitions:

(1

(I

(1)
(V)

V)

Derivatives: means the forward contract, option contract, futures contract, leverage contra
and exchange contract whose values are derived from specific interest rate, price of financi
instruments, commodity price, exchange rate, price or rate index, credit rating or credit inde:
or other variables; the portfolio of aforesaid contracts, or the combined contract or structure
notes embedded with derivatives etc. Thecalbed forward comaict excludes the insurance
contract, performance contract, aftales service contract, lotgrm lease contract and
long-term purchase (sales) contract.

Assets acquired or disposed through merger, division, acquisition or assignment of sha
pursuant tolaw: means the assets acquired or disposed through merger, division o
acquisition pursuant to Enterprises Mergers and Acquisitions Act, Financial Holding
Company Act, Law Governing the Mergers of Financial Institutions or other laws, or
assignment of sha of other company (hereinafter referred to as assignment of share) by
issuing new shares pursuant to 3 of Article 156 of Company Act.

Related party, subsidiaries: shall be determined according to the provisions of Securitie
Issuer Financial Report Prepéion Standards.

Professional appraiser. means the real estate appraiser or other practitioners engaged in
appraisal of real estate and equipment pursuant to law

Date of event: means the transaction signing day, payment day, commission day, tegnsfer d
date of board resolution or other days sufficiently confirming the transaction object anc
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transaction amount etc., whichever is earlier. But if the investment needs to be approved |
competent authority, it means the aforesaid days or the day of ingceipproval from
competent authority, whichever is earlier.

(V1) Investment in mainland region: means the investment engaged by Investment Commission
Ministry of Economic Affairs in mainland region or the investment engaged in mainland
pursuant to Measurdsr Technical Cooperation Licensing.

(Vi) Professional investor: means the financial holding company, bank, insurance compan
securities financial company, trust enterprise, securities dealer running own or underwritin
business, futures trader running own ihass, securities investment trust enterprise,
securities investment consulting enterprise and fund management company that establish
pursuant to law and under the administration of local financial competent authority.

(Vi Stock exchange: domestic stock exehe, means the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation; foreign stock exchange, means any organized stock exchange market under 1
administration of competent authority in charge of securities in such country.

(IX) Business place of securities dealer: businesepaomestic securities dealer, means the
place in which securities dealer sets counter for transaction pursuant to Administrativ:
Measures for Securities Transaction in Business Place of Securities Dealer; business place
foreign securities dealer, mea the business place of the financial institution running
securities business and under administration of foreign competent authority in charge
securities.

(X) Laws and decrees or competent authority: means the laws and decrees of the Republic
China orthe government agency of the Republic of China.

(XI) Thesecal | ed Arecent financi al statement o ir
audited certified or approved by the accountant publicly pursuant to law before the company
acquisition or dispsal of assets.

(1) Net value: means the shareholders' equity certified or approved by the accountant |
recent financial report of the Company. If the financial report of the Company is preparec
according to International Financial Reporting Standards, thmlfed net value means the
equity attributable to owners of parent company recorded in the balance sheet as stipulated
the Securities Issuer Financial Report Preparation Standards.

(X1 Regarding the stipulation of ten percent of total assets, it shallddatad according to
the total assets amount in the recent individual financial report as stipulated in the Securitie
Issuer Financial Report Preparation Standards.

Article 4 Procedures for assessment on the acquisition or disposal of assets:

() For the aquisition or disposal of real estate, equipment or its 1ojhise assets, apart from
those transacted with domestic government agency, built on private land or leased land,
acquisition or disposal of equipment or its rigituse assets for businesseuy if the
transaction amount thereof reaches to twenty percent ofupadhpital of the Company or
over NT$300 million, the appraisal report issued by professional appraiser shall be firs
acquired before the date of event, and shall comply with theafiolg rules:

1. When the limited price, specified price or special price is taken as reference for the
transaction price due to special reasons, such transaction shall first be proposed to a
passed by board resolution; thereafter, the same shall applysén afachange of
transaction conditions.

2. Appraisals by at least 2 professional appraisers shall be required for transaction wit
amount in excess of NT$1 billion.
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3. If the appraisal results of professional appraiser have any one of the following
circumstancesexcept that all appraisal results of acquired assets are higher than thi
transaction amount, or all appraisal results of disposed assets are lower than tf
transaction amount, accountants shall be appointed to handle according to No. 2
regulations of ftement of Auditing Standards issued by the Accounting Research and
Development Foundation of the Republic of China, and express specific opinions on th
reasons for difference and the appropriateness of transaction price:

(1) The difference between apmal results and transaction amount reaches to over
twenty percent of the transaction amount.

(2) The difference between the appraisal results of two or more professional appraise
reaches to over ten percent of the transaction amount.

4. The date of reportssuing by professional appraiser shall not be over three months later
than the contract date. However, the opinion of the original appraiser may be acceptab
when the opinion is based on the same officially value published within 6 months.

(I For the acquision or disposal of negotiable securities, before the date of event, the subjec
companyb6s recent financial statement audi
obtained as the reference for appraising transaction price, furthermore, tiitisaction
amount reaches to twenty percent of the pgidcapital of the company or over NT$300
million, the accountant shall be appointed to give opinion on the rationality of transactior
price prior to the date of event, if expert's report is adoptexl, accountant shall handle
pursuant to No. 20 regulations of the Statement on Auditing Standards issued by th
Accounting Research and Development Foundation. However, the -atsmt®ned
requirements do not apply to transactions of negotiable securdiesacted actively on the
open market, or those regulated by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

(1) If the transaction amount of acquisition or disposal of intangible assets or itofrge
assets or membership certificate reaches to twenty percpatdadp capital of the company
or over NT$300 million, except for the transaction with domestic government agency, the
accountant shall be appointed to give opinions on the rationality of transaction price befor
date of event, and the said accountant|dmahdle pursuant to No. 20 regulations of the
Statement on Auditing Standards issued by the Accounting Research and Developme
Foundation of the Republic of China.

(IV) The calculation of the transaction amounts mentioned in preceding 3 subparagraphs shall
subject to the provisions of Article 11, and thecsal | ed fone year o pe
counting back for one year from the date of event of such transaction, but the part for whic
the appraisal report issued by professional appraiser or the acaonnt 6 s opi ni o
obtained pursuant to these Procedures may be excluded.

(V) For the acquisition or disposal of assets through the auction procedures of the court, tl
apprai sal report or accountantéds o pissuédon
by the court.

(VI) For the obtained appraisal report or opinion of accountant, lawyer or securities underwrite
the concerned professional appraiser and its appraising personnel, accountant, lawyer
securities underwriter shall comply with the followirules:

1. Has not been sentenced to a set term of imprisonment for over one year due to tt
violation of Securities Exchange Act, Company Act, Banking Act, Insurance Act,
Financial Holding Company Act, Business Accounting Act, or due to fraud, breach of
faith, embezzlement, forging documents or criminal behaviors in business. Except fo
three years after the imprisonment has completed, expiry of probation or pardon.

2. Must not be the related party or substantial related party to the transaction party.

If apprasal reports issued by more than two professional appraisers shall be obtainec
different professional appraisers or appraising personnel shall not be the related parties
substantial related parties mutually.
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(v For assets acquisition or disposal betwdenrelated party, apart from going through
relevant resolution procedures as stipulated in this article and Article 9 and assessment on 1
rationality of transaction conditions etc., if the transaction amount thereof in excess of twent
percent of totahssets of the company, appraisal report issued by professional appraiser ¢
accountant's opinion shall also be obtained pursuant to this article. The calculation c
so-called transaction amount shall be subject to the provisions in Subparagraph 4 of thi
article.

Article 5: Procedures for acquisition or disposal of negotiable securities and authorization:

) The acquisition or disposal of negotiabl e
cycl eo.

(I Total investment amount and individual limitatiayf the negotiable securities of the
Company and each subsidiary:

Upper limit, subject to the ratio of net value i

ltem recent financial statement
Individual investment| Lump sum investment
Eqwty. investment by adqptlng 100% 100%
equity method evaluation
Investment in other negotiable 20% 50%

securities

(1) Decisionmaking and authorization hierarchy

Delegation of authority
ftem President| Chairman B.O ard of
Directors
Acquisition or disposal of equity investment by 5
adopting equity method evaluation
Acquisition or disposal | Below NT$20 million (inclusive) 0
of other negotiable  |"From NT$20 million (exclusive) td o
securities negotiable NT$50 million (inclusve) 0
securities traded in the
centralized trading . ) .
market or business plac Over NT$50 million (exclusive) o
of securities dealer.
Acquisition or disposal |  Below NT$2 million (inclusive) 0
of other negotiable [~ From NT® million (exclusive) to -
securities negotiable NT$5 million (inclusive) 0
securities not traded in
the centralized trading - . o«
market or business plac Over NT$5 million (exclusive) 0
of securities dealer.

: Means decisiomaking, similarly hereinafter.
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Article 6: Procedures for acquisition or disposal of real estate and equipment:
() Acquisition or disposal of real ede:

1. The acquisition or disposal of real estate shall be assessed by the execution unit a
agreed by the President, and then submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.

2. The real estate of the Company and esdbsidiaryused not for business purgoshall
not exceed 20% of the net value in the last financial statement.

(I Decisionmaking and authorization hierarchy

Delegation of authority

Item President Chairman B.O ard of
Directors

Acquisition or disposal of real estate 0
Acquisition or disposal of the
equipment below NT$20 million o]
(inclusive)
Acquisition or disposal of the
equipment from NT$20 million o}
(exclusive) ~ NT$50 million (inclusive
Acquisition or disposal of the
equipment over NT$50 million o]
(exclusiveg
Acquisition or disposal of rightf-use -
assets

Article 7: Procedures for acquisition or disposal of membership certificate, copyright, trademark
right and franchise:

() The acquisition or disposal of membership certificate, copyright, trattemght and
franchise shall be assessed by the execution unit and agreed by the President, and then
execution unit will handle matters regarding signing contracts according to the procedure.

(I Decisionmaking and authorization hierarchy
Deleation of authority

Item President Chairman B.O ard of
Directors

Acquisition or disposal of membersh
certificate, copyright, trademark righ
and franchise below NT$5 million
(inclusive)
Acquisition or disposal of membersh
certificate, copyright, trademark righ
and franchise from NT$5 million
(exclusive) to NT$10 million
(inclusive)
Acquisition or disposal of membersh
certificate, copyright, trademark righ
and franchise over NT$10 million
(exclusive)

O«

O«

O«
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Article 8: Procedures for acquisition or disposal of derivatives:

() Transaction type:

1.
2.

Non-transactional: the hedgrurposed transaction not for the purpose of transaction.

Transactional: noedgepurposed transactidior the purpose of transaction. The Company
does not engage in transactional operation.

(I) Operating or risk strategy:

The Company takes risk averse as the principle for engaging in derivatives transaction, and tak
the receivables and payables generatewoh frompany businesses, or the net position offsetting the
date, amount and currency in balance sheet for risk averse. It must be confirmed as t
hedgepurposed operation before transaction.

(1l1) Power and responsibility division:

1.
2.

3.

The transaction personnel aaffirmation personnel will be designated by the President.

No one can concurrently act as the transaction personnel, affirmation personnel and delive
personnel.

Written notice shall be served to the transaction object for the assignment or dismissal
transaction personnel and affirmation personnel.

(IV) Transaction amount and loss ceiling of all and individual contracts:

1.

2.

The overall hedging contract of the Company takes the receivables and payables genera
from company businesses within six months, orrteeposition offsetting the date, amount
and currency in balance sheet as the limit for risk averse.

The loss ceiling of contract shall not exceed 20% of the contract amount, which is applicabl
to individual contract and all contracts.

(V) Performance evaltian: it will be measured and evaluated based on the hedging strategy, and |
will be approved by the President every month.

(V1) Operating procedure:

1.
2.

Approve the responsible transaction personnel.

After transaction personnel have been approved for makingattams, it shall be submitted

to the affirmation personnel immediately for handling affirmation matters regarding
derivatives transaction.

Relevant documents on the completed transaction will be submitted to the delivery personn
for archiving for futuraeference.

Decisionmaking and authorization hierarchy (Rtvansactional): handle according to the
following table, if approved by the President or Chairman, thereafter, it shall be proposed t
the most recent Board of Directors Meeting.

Board of

ltem President Chairman )
Directors

Total accumulated
amount is below o
USD15 million

(inclusive)

Total accumulated
amount is over USD]]
million (exclusive) an( o}
below USD25 million

(inclusive)

Total accumulated
amount is over USD?2 o]

million (exclusive)
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(V1)

Risk management measure:

1. Credit risk managementin principle, the transaction object shall be the domestic or foreign
financial institution with good credit record, and is capable of providing professional
information.

2. Market risk managementselectthe market which can sufficiently disclose the quotation
information.

3. Liquidity risk managementin order to ensure liquidity, the transacting financial institution
must possess sufficient equipment, information and transaction ability, and is capable ¢
making transaction in any market.

4. Cash flow risk management the Company shall maintain sufficient quick assets and

financing limit in respond to the needs in delivery of funds.
5. Operating risk managementhe authorized limit, operating procedure andeotfegulations
stipulated by the Company shall be actually complied with, so as to avoid operating risk.
6. Legal risk managementany document signing with the financial institution must go through
internal contract signing procedures before signing icialfy, so as to avoid the legal risk.

(Vi Regular evaluation method, abnormal situation handling and supervision:

1. The hedgegurposed transaction shall be evaluated at least twice a month, and the evaluatic
shall be submitted to the President.

2. Board of Diretors shall designate the President to supervise and evaluate whether the ris
management measure currently used is appropriate, whether the engagement in derivati\
transaction is handled as required, whether the performance of engagement in derivativ
transaction is confirming to the existing operating strategy, and whether the risk borne i
within the scope tolerated by the company. If any abnormal circumstance is found ir
transaction or profit and loss, necessary solutions shall be taken, andbesfegibrted to the
Board of Directors immediately.

3. The evaluation report on hedgerposed transaction shall be proposed upon Board of
Directors Meeting. If any abnormal circumstance is found in transaction or profit and loss
when the independent directoas already been set, the independent director shall attend the
Board of Directors Meeting to express opinions.

(IX) For the engagement in derivatives transaction, the Company shall record in detail the type a

amount of derivatives transaction, the date @asby Board of Directors, matters shall be
evaluated prudently as stated in Paragraph (VIII) of this article, and whether it is handled pursua
to these Procedures and fARegul ations GovVée
Li sted Co memahivyg ofderivatives kransaction for future reference, unless otherwise
prescribed by other laws, the transaction certification shall be kept for at least 5 years.

(X) Internal auditors of the company shall regularly learn about the adequacy of intertral ob

derivatives transaction, audit the compliance of transaction department in engaging in th
procedures for derivatives transaction on a monthly basis, and prepare the audit report; and writt
notice shall be served to each supervisor in case jof wialation is found.

If the independent director has been set pursuant to Securities Exchange Act, the written noti
served to each supervisor as mentioned in preceding paragraph shall be served to the indepen
director as well.

If the Audit Commitee has been set pursuant to Securities Exchange Act, the provisions on th
supervisor in paragraph 1 shall apply to the Audit Committee.
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Article 9: Procedures for related party transaction:

U]

(1

For assets acquisition or disposal between the Companyhancelated party, relevant
resolution procedures as stipulated in this article and assessment on the rationality
transaction conditions etc. shall be carried out pursuant to Article 4 and this article. Whe
judging whether the transaction object is takted party, apart from paying attention to its
legal form, its substantial relationship shall also be considered.

For the Company's acquisition or disposal of real estate or itsafigige assets from the
related party, or the acquisition or disgal of other assets other than real estate or its
right-of-use assets with the related party, if the transaction amount is in excess of twent
percent of paidip capital of the company, ten percent of total assets or NT$300 million,
except for transacti@nof purchase or sale of domestic government bonds or bonds with
repurchase/reverse repo agreement or subscription or repurchase of money market fu
issued by domestic securities investment trust enterprise, the documents mentioned bel
shall be presenteto the Board of Directors for approval and to the supervisor for
ratification before signing transaction contract and making payments:

1. The purpose and necessity of, and expected benefit from the acquisition or disposal
such assets.

2. The reason foselecting the related party as transaction object.

3. For the acquisition of real estate or its rigituse assets from the related party, assess
relevant materials on the rationality of expected transaction conditions pursuant to th
provisions of Pamgraph (Ill) and (IV) of this article.

4. Related party's original acquisition date and price, transaction object, and relation:
between the company and related party etc.

5. The cash flow forecast of the next twelve months after the month when the centract
expected to be signed, as well as assessment on the necessity of transaction &
rationality of funds utilization.

6. The appraisal report issued by professional appraiser or opinion of accountant obtained
accordance with the previous paragraph.

7. Restrictions and other important terms of the transaction.

The calculation of the transaction amount in this paragraphs shall be subject to th
provisions of Article 11, andthesoal | ed fAone year o period i
for one year fromhe date of event of such transaction, but the part that has been passed
Board of Directors and acknowledged by supervisor pursuant to these Procedures may
excluded.

For the following transactions engaged between the Company and parent compan
subsidaries, or the subsidiaries in which the Company directly or indirectly holds one
hundred percent of outstanding shares or total capital, Board of Directors may authorize tt
Chairman to make a decision in advance within a certain quota, and then piplose t
most recent Board of Directors Meeting for subsequent recognition:

(1) Acquisition or disposal of equipment or its rigiftuse assets for business use.
(2) Acquisition or disposal of real estate rigiftuse assets for business use.

When the Company has gkt independent director and proposed to Board of Directors for
discussion pursuant to provisions of this article, opinions of each independent director she
be fully considered, and any adverse opinion or qualified opinion of the independen
director slall be specified in the Minute Book of Board of Directors Meeting.
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(1)

(V)

When the Company has set the Audit Committee, matters shall be acknowledged by tt
supervisor according to the provisions of this paragraph shall be agreed by more than ol
second of almembers of Audit Committee, if not, it may be agreed by more than two thirds
of all directors, and the resolution of the Audit Committee shall be specified in the Minute
Book of Board of Directors Meeting. All members of Audit Committee and all directors

referred to in preceding paragraph are calculated based on the actual appointment.

For acquisition of real estate or its righftuse assets from the related party, the Company
shall assess the rationality of transaction cost according to the fajjomethods:

1.Rel ated partyds transaction price plus
buyer pursuant to law. The-salled necessary funds interest cost is calculated according
to the weighted average interest rate for the money borrbwéide company in the year
of assets acquisition, but it shall not be higher than the highest lending rate fo
nonfinancial enterprises announced by the Ministry of Finance.

2. If the related party once used such subject matter to set mortgage for hgrfoomn a
financial institution, the total value in loan evaluation conducted by the financial
institution on such subject matter, but
value for such subject matter shall reach to over seventy percinat twital value in loan
evaluation and the period of loan has been more than one year. However, suc
stipulations shall not apply if the financial institution is the related party to a transaction

party.
For combined purchase or lease of land and houttee&ame subject matter, assessment on

transaction cost may be conducted according to any method listed in preceding paragrap
for the land and house respectively.

For acquisition of real estate or its rigiftuse assets from the related party, apamfro
assessing on the real estate or its r@fhise assets cost according to the provisions of this
paragraph, the Company shall also appoint the accountant to review and give specif
opinions.

Provided any one of the following circumstances, for acgorsitbf real estate or its
right-of-use assets from the related party, the Company shall handle according to precedi
paragraphs, and provisions of preceding subparagraphs of this paragraph shall not apply:

1. The related party acquires real estate or ightiof-use assets due to inheritance or
bestowal.

2.The related party has acquired the real estate or its-afgige assets by contract
conclusion for over five years according to the contract date of this transaction.

3. Sign joint construction contcha with the related party, or acquire the real estate by
appointing the related party for real estate construction by means of consigne
construction on the owned land or consigned construction on the leased land etc.

4. The acquisition of real estate righf-use assets for business use between the Company
and parent company, subsidiaries, or the subsidiaries in which the Company directly c
indirectly holds one hundred percent of outstanding shares or total capital.

If the results of appraisal asmiiated in preceding paragraph are lower than the transaction
price, the Company shall handle pursuant to Paragraph (V). Except for under the followin
circumstances, and objective evidences have been proposed and specific rational opinions
professionateal estate appraiser and accountant have been obtained:

1. If the related party acquires the raw land or leases the land for construction, it shall prov
the conformance to any one of the following conditions:
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(V)

(1) The raw land is assessed accordingtie method stipulated in preceding
paragr aph, and t he rel ated partyos
construction profit of the house exceeds the actual transaction price. The
so-called reasonable construction profit shall be the average opemnzigin of
the related partyds construction de
recent gross margin in construction industry published by the Ministry of
Finance, whichever is lower.

(2) The transaction cases of other fwretated parties on othéoors of the same real
estate or in adjacent regions within one year, with similar area and equivalen:
conditions after assessment according to the due reasonable floors or region
price differences in real estate transaction or lease practice.

2. For the real estate purchased from the related party or the real estatefHigbtassets
acquired by lease as proved by the Company, its transaction conditions are equivalent
the transaction cases with other frefated parties in adjacent regions witloine year
and the area is similar.

In principle, the transaction cases in adjacent regions mentioned in this paragraph take t
cases transacted in the same or adjacent street and within 500 meters away from t
transaction object or those cases with am@nnounced present value; thecatied similar

area means the area in transaction case of otheretaind party is not lower than fifty
percent of the area of transaction object; and thealed within one year is defined to be
counting back for ongear from the date of acquiring real estate or its 1afhise assets

this time.

For the Company's acquisition of real estate or its-offuse assets from the related party,
if the results of assessment as prescribed in Paragraph (Ill) and @\pveer than the
transaction price, the following matters shall be handled:

1. For the price difference between real estate or its-offase assets transaction price and
assessment cost, allocate special surplus reserve pursuant to Paragraph 141Adicle
Securities Exchange Act, and it shall not be distributed or transferred to capital increas
and shares allotment. If the investor adopting Equity Method for appraising the
companyo6s investment i's a publ i c umlimp a
reserve from such allocation amount according to the investment proportion and thi
provisions of Paragraph 1, Article 41 of Securities Exchange Act.

2. Supervisor shall handle pursuant to Article 218 of Company Act. If Audit Committee has
been set prsuant to Securities Exchange Act, the preceding paragraph of this item applie
to independent director members of Audit Committee.

3. Handling circumstances pursuant to Iltem 1 and 2 shall be reported to Shareholder
Meeting, and detailed transaction tamts shall be disclosed in the annual report and
public prospectus.

If special surplus reserve is allocated pursuant to this paragraph, the Company shall we
until the assets purchased or leased at a high price has been recognized in the loss fr
failing price, or is disposed or terminated of lease contract or properly compensated ¢
reinstated, or if it is not unreasonable as confirmed by other evidences, such special surpl
reserve may only be employed with the consent of competent authority.

FortheCompanyd6s acqui si t i oeoftuseassets feom the relatad party
if there are other evidences indicating that the transaction is not conforming to regula
business practice, it shall also be handled pursuant to this paragraph.
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Arti cle 10:
(1

(1

(1)

Procedures for enterprise merger, division, acquisition and assignment of share:

For handling of merger, division, acquisition or assignment of share, before convening th
Board of Directors Meeting for resolution, the Company shall appoiouatant, lawyer or
securities underwriter to give opinions on the rationality of equity swap proportion,
acquisition price or the cash or other properties of shareholders distributed to, and propose
to the Board of Directors for discussion and approBalt for the Company's merger of
subsidiaries in which it directly or indirectly holds one hundred percent of outstanding
shares or capital sum, or the merger between the subsidiaries in which it directly o
indirectly holds one hundred percent of outstagdshares or capital sum, the rationality
opinions issued by the foregoing experts may be exempted.

For the participation in merger, division or acquisition, regarding important agreement
contents and relevant matters of merger, division or acquisitihe Company shall prepare
open documents to the shareholders before convening the Shareholders’ Meeting, a
deliver them to sharehol ders together wi
paragraph and meeting notice of Shareholders' Meetind they will be taken as the
reference for whether or not to agree on such merger, division or acquisition case. Exce
that the matters of merger, division or acquisition may be exempted from the resolution o
Shareholders' Meeting pursuant to the tatijons of other laws.

When the Company participates in the merger, division or acquisition of a company, if the
Shareholders' Meeting of either party cannot be convened for resolution due to short
attendance or voting rights or other legal restriction, the motion is denied by
Shareholders' Meeting, the Company shall immediately explain the reason for occurrenc
subsequent handling operation and expected date of convening Shareholders' Meeting to 1
public.

For t he Company 0 ®rgerp diviston oriapgaisitiory mnless rotherwise
prescribed by law or it must be reported to competent authority for approval in advance du
to a special factor, the Company shall convene the Board of Directors Meeting ant
Shareholders' Meeting on the sanhy to resolve matters related to merger, division or
acquisition.

For the Companyés participation in assig
or it must be reported to competent authority for approval in advance due to a special factc
the Company shall convene the Board of Directors Meeting on the same day.

When the stock of the Company is traded in stock market, OTC, or business place
securities dealer, in case of participation in merger, division, acquisition or assignment @
share,the Company shall make the following materials into complete written records and
keep them for five years for future reference:

1. Personnel basic information: including all persons participated in the plan of merger
division, acquisition or assignment share, or the plan executor before disclosing the
information, and their title, name, ID Card No. (Passport No. if such person is a
foreigner).

2. Date of important event: including the date of signing letter of intent or memorandum,
date of appointing fiancial or legal adviser, date of signing contract, and date of Board of
Directors Meeting etc.

3. Important documents and minute book: including the plan of merger, division, acquisition
or assignment of share; letter of intent or memorandum, importatracts, and minute
book of Board of Directors Meeting etc.
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(V)

(V)

(V1)

When the stock of the Company is traded in stock market, OTC, or business place
securities dealer, in case of participation in merger, division, acquisition or assignment @
share, within twodays after the date of resolution in Board of Directors Meeting, the
Company shall report the personnel basic information and date of important event a
required in this paragraph for future reference to the Internet information system in &
prescribed fan to report to the competent authority for future reference.

When the stock of the Company is traded in stock market, OTC, or business place
securities dealer, if the company participated in merger, division, acquisition or assignmer
of share is not &sted company or its stock is not traded in the business place of securities
dealer, the Company shall sign an agreement with it and handle according to the provisiol
of this paragraph.

All personnel participated in or know about the plan of compargrger, division,
acquisition or assignment of share shall issue written confidentiality undertaking, before
information disclosure, they shall not disclose the plan contents to the public, nor voluntaril
buy or sell the stock and other negotiable séiesrof equity nature of all companies related

to the case of merger, division, acquisition or assignment of share, nor doing so in the nan
of others.

For the Companyds participation in mer ge
except forthe following circumstances, the equity swap proportion or acquisition price shall
not be changed arbitrarily, and their change circumstances shall be stipulated in the merg
division, acquisition or assignment of share contract:

1. Handling cash capitahcrease, issuing convertible bonds, stock grants, issuing warrant
bonds, preferred shares with warrants, stock option certificate and other negotiabl
securities of equity nature.

2. Disposal of major company assets or other actions affecting finamesahess of the
company etc.

3. Occurrence of major disaster, major technical change etc. that affecting the shareholde
equity of company or security price.

4. For the companies participated in merger, division, acquisition or assignment of share
eithea party adjust the buyback of treasury share pursuant to law.

5. Change in the subject of merger, division, acquisition or assignment of share, or change
the number of participants.

6. Other conditions for the change as stipulated in the contract,hdcenditions have
been disclosed to the public.

For the Companyds participation in merge
rights and obligations of the companies participated in merger, division, acquisition ot
assignment of shashall be specified in the contract, and the following matters shall also be
specified:

1. Handling for breach of contract.

2. Principle of handling the outstanding negotiable securities of equity nature or the treasur
share already bought back before ¢benpany is eliminated or divided due to merger.

3. After calculating the base date for equity swap proportion, the quantity of treasury shar:
may be bought back by the participating company pursuant to law and the handlin
principle thereof.

4. Handling nethod for the change in the subject or the number of participants.
5. Expected plan implementation progress and expected completion date.
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6. When the plan fails to be completed in due time, relevant handling procedures such as tl
expected convention daté Shareholders' Meeting shall be convened pursuant to law etc.

(Vi) For the Companyds participation i n mer ge
after the information has been disclosed to the public, if either party plans to carry ou
merger division, acquisition or assignment of share with other company, except that the
number of participants is reduced, and Shareholders' Meeting has resolved and authoriz
Board of Directors to change the authority, the Company may be exempted from ngnveni
Shareholders' Meeting for resolution again, in the original case of merger, division,
acquisition or assignment of share, the completed procedures or legal actions shall be carr
out again.

(V) If there is a nofpublic company participated in theenger, division, acquisition or
assignment of share, the Company shall sign an agreement with it and handle according
the provisions of Paragraph (lIl), Paragraph (IV) and Paragraph (VII).

Article 11: Announcement and declaration procedures (applicablevhen the Company is a public
company pursuant to the laws of the Republic of China):

() If the acquisition or disposal of assets is under the following circumstances, the Compan
shall announce and declare relevant information at the website designatédahgial
Supervisory Commission within two days as of the date of event:

1. Acquire or dispose real estate or its rigftuse assets from a related party, or acquire or
dispose other assets other than real estate or itsofigise assets from a reldtparty
and the transaction amount thereof reaches to twenty percent efipampital or ten
percent of total assets of the company, or over NT$300 million. However, the transaction
of the purchases or sales of domestic government bonds, or bonds with
repurchase/reverse repo agreement, or subscription or repurchase of money market fu
issued by domestic securities investment trust enterprise are excluded.

2. Merger, split, acquisition or assignment of share.

3.The loss in derivatives transactions rescho the amount of loss ceiling of all or
individual contract as stipulated in handling procedures.

4. The acquisition or disposal of equipment or its Aghtise assets for business use, and
the transaction object thereof is a frretated party, and theansaction amount meets one
of the following provisions:

(1) If the paidup capital of the Company is less than NT$10 billion, the transaction
amount is in excess of NT$500 million.

(2) If the paidup capital of the Company is in excess of NT$10 billibe, transaction
amount is in excess of NT$1 billion.

5.The Company acquires or disposes the real estate or itsofigse assets for
construction use by running construction business and the transaction object thereof is
nonrelated party, and theamsaction amount is not in excess of NT$500 million; among
them, the paidip capital reaches to over NT$10 billion, the disposal of the completed
real estate constructed by itself is in amelated party transaction and with transaction
amount in excessf NT$1 billion.

6. For the real estate acquired by means of construction on private or leased land, or hou
distribution, sharing or sales in joint construction, and the transaction object is &
nonrelated party, the transaction amount expected to hé Impthe company is not in
excess of NT$500 million.

7. For the assets transaction other than those mentioned from Item 1 to Item 6, or disposal
creditor's rights by a financial institution or the investment in Mainland China, the
transaction amount #neof is in excess of twenty percent of pa capital of the
company or NT$300 million. Except for the following circumstances:
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(1) Purchase or sale of domestic government bonds.

(2) For professional investors, the transaction of negotiable securitiestook
exchange or business place of securities dealer; or the ordinary corporate bonc
subscribed, raised or issued in primary market and the general financial bonds nc
involved in stock right (subordinated bonds excluded); or subscription or
repurchaseof securities investment trust funds or futures trust funds, or the
negotiable securities subscribed according to the regulations of Taipei Exchange &
recommended by a securities dealer acting as the adviser of public company due
underwriting businesseeds.

(3) Purchase or sale of bonds with repurchase or reverse repo agreement,
subscription or repurchase of money market fund issued by domestic securitie
investment trust enterprise.

(I The transaction amounts stated in Paragraph (I) shall belatald according to the
following methods:

1. The amount of each transaction.

2. The cumulative amount of acquisition or disposal of similar assets with the same
counterparty within one year.

3. The cumulative amount of acquisition or disposal (separdtelythe acquisition and
disposal) of real estate or its righftuse assets under the same development plan within
one year.

4. The cumulative amount of acquisition or disposal (separately for the acquiaition
disposal) of the same negotiable securitighinwone year.

5. Thesec al | ed fAone year o period is defined
of transaction. However, the part that has been announced pursuant to these Procedure:
relevant laws and decrees may be excluded.

() The Compny shall declare the derivatives transacted by the company and its domesti
nonpublic subsidiaries as at the end of previous month on a monthly basis, and suc
declaration shall be input at the information declaration website designated by Financie
Supevisory Commission in a specific form before the 10th day of every calendar month.

(IV)  When the items due to be announced by the Company as required should be supplemen
and corrected due to the mistake or omission upon announcement, all items shall |
announced and declared again within two days as of the day of knowing such mistake ¢
omission.

(V) In case of acquisition or disposal of assets by the domestipuidit subsidiaries of the
Company, and it shall be announced and declared pursuant poothsions of Article 11,
the Company shall make announcement and declaration instead; for the require
announcement and declaration standards applicable to the subsidiaries as stipulated
Paragraph (I) of Article 11, regarding the stipulations on-ppidapital or total assets, it
shall be subject to the paig capital or total assets of the Compjny.

Article 12: The Company shall retain the relevant contracts, minutes, memoranda, appraisal reports, &
opinions from CPA/attorney/securities broker related to the acquisition or disposal of assets fi
at least 5 years, unless otherwise prescribed ley tdtvs.

Article 13: After the Company has announced and declared the transaction according to the provisions
Article 11, provided any one of the following circumstances, the Company shall announce an
declare relevant information at the website dedgphdy Financial Supervisory Commission
within two days as of the date of event:

() The changes, termination or release of the original contracts.

(I The merger, split, acquisition, or assignment of share are not completed according to tf
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schedule spédfted in contracts.
(1 The changes in contents of the previous announcement and declaration.

Article 14. Where managerial officer or undertaker violates the regulations of these Procedures, it shall
handled according to relevant punishment and reweasures of the company.

Article 15: Procedures for controlling the acquisition or disposal of assets of subsidiaries

() The Company shall urge subsidiaries to formulate the Procedures for Acquisition ol
Di sposal of Asset s p uvesingahe tAcquisdion tard ®ispodaleofy u
Assets by Listed Companyo.

(M For acquisition or disposal of asset s, S
control systemo and fAMeasures for Acqui
handing, and shall make a written summary and report to the Company on the single
acquisition or disposal of assets or the cumulative amount of transaction of the same natt
is in excess of NT$10 million, as well as the derivatives transaction engageti@eiad tof
last month before the fifth day of every calendar month. Audit Department of the Compan:
shall list the acquisition or disposal of assets by subsidiaries as one of the monthly auc
items, and the auditing circumstances thereof shall be listeatieasecessary item for
reporting audit business to Board of Directors and supervisors.

(1) If the subsidiaries of the Company are a-paiblic company, and its acquisition or disposal
of assets meets the standards required to be announced and déckiratl, notify the
Company on the date of event, and the Company will make an announcement pursuant
Article 11.

Article 16: Amendment to procedures:

Upon formulating these Procedures, after it is passed by Board of Directors, it shall be sent
each spervisor and submitted to Shareholders' Meeting for approval; if any director raises
objection and with record or written statement, the Company shall also submit its objection t
each supervisor and submit to Shareholders' Meeting for discussion, ssairi@eshall apply
upon amendment. When the Company has set the independent director and when submitt
these Procedures to Board of Directors Meeting for discussion, opinions of each independe
director shall be fully considered, and any adverse opimiorgualified opinion of the
independent director shall be specified in the Minute Book of Board of Directors Meeting.

Article 17: Amendment dates of these Procedures:
These Procedures were formulated on June 24, 2012.
The first amendment was made on JuBe2®14.
The second amendment was made on May 29, 2018.
The third amendment was made on June 10, 2019.
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Appendix 5

EZconn Corporation
Procedures of Making Endorsement and Guarantee

Article 1: Purpose:

These Procedures are formulated pursuanttothéragui ons of A Gui delines fo
of Loans and Making Endorsement and Guarantee. 0

Article 2:In order to strengthen financial management on making endorsement and guarantee and red
operating risk, it is hereby formulated these Procesl

Article 3: Scope of endorsement and guarantee:
() Endorsement and guarantee for financing:
1. Ticket discount financing.
2. Make endorsement or guarantee for the purpose of financing for other company.

3. Otherwise issue the notes to the +limancial enterprise as the guarantee for the
purpose of financing for other company.

(I)  Customs duties endorsement and guarantee mean the endorsement or guarantee made
the Company or other company regarding the matters of customs duties.

(1)  Other endomment and guarantee mean the endorsement or guarantee matters cannot
classified in to the previous two paragraphs.

If the Company provides movable property or immovable property to set pledge right ol
mortgage right as t he garwirgnit shal alfoobe haadlell e 1
according to the regulations of these Procedures.

Article 4: Objects the Company may make endorsement and guarantee for:
() The company with business contact.

(I The company in which the Company directly and indiyebtllds more than fifty percent of
the voting shares.

(I The company directly and indirectly holds more than fifty percent of the voting shares of the
Company.

Among the companies in which the Company directly and indirectly holds more than ninet)
percent of voting shares, endorsement and guarantee may be made, and the amount thereof s
not exceed ten percent of net value of the Company. But for the endorsement and guaran
between and among the companies in which the Company directly and indireltisy one
hundred percent of voting shares, the amount of thereof is limited to fifty percent of net value c
the Company.

Mutual guarantee between and among the Company and the enterprise of the same business dt
the needs of engineering contractingtlte mutual guarantee between and among the Company
and the joint constructors according to contract provisions, or making endorsement and guaran
for the invested company by all contributing shareholders according to their shareholding ratio dt
to joint investment relationship, endorsement and guarantee may be made without being restrict
by the provisions in preceding two paragraphs. Theafled contribution in preceding paragraph
means the contribution directly made by the Company or the comntnbuiade via the company

in which the Company holds one hundred percent of the voting shares.
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The secalled subsidiaries and parent company in these Procedures shall be determined accord
to the provisions of Securities Issuer Financial Report Prepar@tandards.

Thesecal | ed net value means the sharehol ders
report audited, certified or approved by the accountant. If the financial report of the Company i
prepared according to International Financiagp&¢éng Standards, the ®alled net value in these
Procedures means the equity attributable to owners of parent company recorded in the balat
sheet as stipulated in the Securities Issuer Financial Report Preparation Standards.

Article 5:Limit of exterral endorsement and guarantee of the Company and subsidiaries:

Object of endorsement and guarante Ratio of upper limit subject to the
percentage of current net value
Total 40%
Single enterprise 20%
Single enterprise company with direct| 20% of net value or the amount of busin
business retaonship contact in the last year, whichever is low

Notes: Net value is subject to the one recorded in most recent financial statement audited
approved by the accountant.

Article 6: Decisionrmaking and auttrization hierarchy:

() When handling endorsement and guarantee, it shall be passed by the resolution of Board
Directors first. But Board of Directors may authorize the Chairman to make a decision withir
a certain amount, and report to Board of Diresfor subsequent recognition thereafter.

(I When the Company is handling endorsement and guarantee, when it is necessary to exce
the limit stipulated in these Procedures due to business needs and it is conforming to tl
conditions stipulated in thesedeedures, it shall be agreed by Board of Directors, and the
majority of directors shall affix their names for joint guarantee for the loss of the Company
might be generated from exceeding the limit, and make amendments to these Procedures
propose to Bareholders' Meeting for subsequent recognition; when the Shareholders
Meeting disagrees, a plan shall be made to eliminate the exceeding part within a certa
period.

(1 If the object of endorsement and guarantee is the subsidiaries whose nes Vauer ithan
one second of the paith capital, apart from detailed examination according to the
provisions of Article 7 hereof, subsidiaries shall also be asked to provide sufficient collateral
Finance unit and dedicated personnel designated by then@@maghall specifically assess the
impact degree of such endorsement and guarantee on the operating risk, financial conditi
and shareholders' equity of the Company and subsidiaries, after it is submitted to th
President and Chairman for approval, it sl first passed by the resolution of Board of
Directors before execution, and propose to the Shareholders' Meeting for future referenc
thereafter. If the stock of the subsidiaries has no par value or the par value is not NT$10 p
share, the amount ofawlup capital calculated according to the provisions of this paragraph
shall be the total of share capital plus capital reselssiing premium.

(IV) Opinions of each independent director shall be fully considered when making endorsement al
guaranteedor others, and any adverse opinion or qualified opinion of the independent
director shall be specified in the Minute Book of Board of Directors Meeting.

Article 7: Procedures of the Company for handling endorsement and guarantee are as follows:

I.  When hadling endorsement and guarantee, based on the application of the object c
endorsement and guarantee, finance unit shall examine its qualifications one by on
whether the limit is conforming to the regulations of these Procedures, and whether there
arny circumstances shall be announced and declared, and analyze the operating, financ
and credit conditions etc. of the object of endorsement and guarantee, so as to assess
risks of endorsement and guarantee and make records, and collateral shalifeel athen

- 100-



Article 8:

necessary. After specifying the contents, reasons and results of risk assessment of relev
endorsement and guarantee, it shall be preceded after it is submitted to the Chairman 1
approval or agreed by the resolution of Board of Directoceraing to the provisions of
Article 6.

Finance unit shall establish the register book regarding the matters of endorsement al
guarantee. After the endorsement and guarantee have been approved by the Chairmar
agreed by the resolution of Board ofr@itors, apart from applying for the seal according to
the required procedures, matters such as the date passed by Board of Directors or decic
by the Chairman, matters of guarantee, name of enterprise for endorsement and guarant
risk assessment ressiitamount of endorsement and guarantee, contents of collateral
acquisition and the conditions of releasing endorsement and guarantee responsibility e
shall be recorded in detail for future reference, and documents such as relevant notes a
agreementste. shall also be photocopied and kept properly.

Internal audit personnel shall audit the Procedures of Making Endorsement and Guarante
and its execution situation at least every quarter, and make a written record, in case of al
signification violation is found, written notice shall be served to each supervisor
immediately. Written notice served to each supervisor shall be served to the independe
director as well.

Finance unit shall prepare the detailed statement regarding the occurrence alatioance

of guarantee matters in every month for the sake of tracking control and making
announcement and declaration according to the required standards, periods and contel
and shall assess and recognize the possible loss of endorsement and guarantee o
quarterly basis according to the regulations of Securities Issuer Financial Repor
Preparation Standards, and shall disclose endorsement and guarantee information in |
financial report and provide relevant materials to the certified public accotmtzantry out
necessary auditing procedures.

IV. If the object of endorsement and guarantee meets the requirement originally but fails to me

the requirement subsequently, or the amount of endorsement and guarantee exceeds
stipulated limit due to the hange in the base for limit calculation, the amount of
endorsement and guarantee to such object or the exceeding part shall be eliminated uf
the expiry of period stipulated in relevant contract, or the financial unit shall make a plar
and have it approek by the President, and then send the improvement plan to each
supervisor and independent director, and eliminate all of it within a certain period anc
report to the Board of Directors.

Before the expiry of endorsement and guarantee period, financghaflitake the initiative
to notify the guaranteed enterprise to take back the guaranteed notes kept by the bank
creditordéds institution, and cancel the d

If the Company has set the Audit Committee, the pronssan the supervisor in preceding
paragraph shall apply to the Audit Committee.

Custody of special seal used for endorsement and guarantee of the Company and procedure
seal using are as follows:

The Company shall apply to the Ministry BEonomic Affairs to register the company seal
as the special seal for endorsement and guarantee, the custodian of such seal shall be ag
by Board of Directors, and list the seal under custody in handover.

After the endorsement and guarantee have beeroved by the Chairman or agreed by the
resolution of Board of Directors, financ
President along with seal using documents such as the approval records, contracts relatec
endorsement and guarantee guaranteed notes etc., and then go to the place of seal
custodian for seal using.
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lll. Upon seal using, seal custodian may only use the seal after checking whether there is a
approval record, whether the 0sewhHetheathepr o
seal using application documents are consistent.

IV. Upon making guarantee for a foreign company, the letter of guarantee or guarantee relat
contract issued by the company shall be signed by the Chairman with the authorizatio
from Board ofDirectors.

Article 9: Announcement and declaration procedures:

(1)
Q)

(Il1)

(V)

Article 10:

Article 11:

The Company shall announce and declare the balance of endorsement and guarantee of
Company and subsidiaries in the last month before the tenth day of each calendar month.

If the erdorsement and guarantee meet any one of the following standards, it shall b
announced and declared within two days as of the date of event:

1. The balance of endorsement and guarantee of the Company and subsidiaries reaches
over fifty percent of the netale in the most recent financial statement of the
Company.

2. The balance of endorsement and guarantee of the Company and subsidiaries to a sin
enterprise reaches to over twenty percent of the net value in the most recent financi
statement of the Compgan

3. The balance of endorsement and guarantee of the Company and subsidiaries to a sin
enterprise reaches to over NT$10 million, and the total balance of endorsement ar
guarantee, book amount of investment by adopting Equity Method and granting of
loansto such enterprise reaches to over thirty percent of the net value in the most recel
financial statement of the Company.

4. The newly added amount of endorsement and guarantee of the Company or subsidiari
reaches to NT$30 million and over five percent lnd net value in the most recent
financial statement of the Company.

If the subsidiaries of the Compaayenot a domestic public company and there are matters
shall be announced and declared by such subsidiaries pursuant to laws and decrees or
provisions of Subparagraph 4 of preceding paragraph of these Procedures, the Company st
make the announcement and declaration instead.

The secalled date of event in this paragraph means the signature date, payment date, date
board resolution ortber days sufficiently confirming the object and amount of endorsement
and guarantee etc., whichever is earlier.

If subsidiaries of the Company plans to make endorsement and guarantee for others, it sh
formulate the measures for making ersdonent and guarantee for others pursuant to

AGui delines for Publ i c Compani es o Grantii

Guaranteeo before making endorsement and ¢
shall submit the detail of endorsement apdrantee to the Company every month, and the

Company will carry out relevant audit on the execution situation of handling endorsement an
guarantee.

Among the companies in which the Company directly and indirectly holds more than ninety
percent of votinghares, endorsement and guarantee may be made, and the amount thereof st
not exceed ten percent of net value of the Company. Except for the endorsement and guarar
between and among the companies in which the Company directly and indirectly holds on
hundred percent of voting shares.

Where managerial officer or undertaker of the Company violates the regulations of thes
Procedures, it shall be handled according to relevant punishment and reward measures of
company.
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Article 12: Upon fomulating these Procedures, after it is passed by Board of Directors, it shall be sent 1
each supervisor and submitted to Shareholders' Meeting for approval before implementation;
any director raises objection and with record or written statementpjbetion thereof shall be
sent to each supervisor and submitted to Shareholders' Meeting, and the same shall apply u
amendment.

When the Company has set the independent director and when submitting the Procedures
Making Endorsement and Guarantee8t@rd of Directors Meeting for discussion pursuant to
the provisions of preceding paragraph, opinions of each independent director shall be full
considered, and any adverse opinion or qualified opinion of the independent director shall k
specified in theMinute Book of Board of Directors Meeting.

If the Company has set the Audit Committee, upon formulation or amendment of the Procedur
of Making Endorsement and Guarantees, it shall be agreed by more than one second of
members of Audit Committee, ampdoposed to Board of Directors Meeting for resolution, and
the provisions in Paragraph Il shall not apply.

If it is not agreed by more than one second of all members of Audit Committee as mentioned
preceding paragraph, it may be agreed by more thanttwds of all directors, and the
resolution of Audit Committee shall be specified in the Minute Book of Board of Directors
Meeting.

All members of Audit Committee referred to in Paragraph Ill and all directors referred to in
preceding paragraph are caldathbased on the actual appointment.

Article 13: Amendment dates of these Procedures:
These Procedures were formulated on June 24, 2012.
The first amendment was made on May 13, 2013.
The second amendment was made on June 30, 2014.
The third amendment wasaae on June 10, 2019.
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Appendix 6

EZconn Corporation
Procedures of Granting of Loans

Article 1: Purpose:

These Procedures are formulated pursuant to
Granting of Loans and Making Endorsement and Guaganté

Article 2: Object of granting of loans:

Except for under the following circumstances, no loans shall be granted to shareholders
any other person:

(1
(I

()

(V)

Has business contact with the Company.

With shortterm (means one year, but if the company's operatyale is longer than one
year, subject to the operating cycle) needs in financing. The financing amount shall nc
exceed forty percent of the net value of the company.

The financing amount stated in Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 1 means the cumulati

balanes of shot er m fi nancing of the Company. F
the foreign company in which directly and indirectly holding one hundred percent of
voting shares, or such foreign company?od:

loan thereof is limited to fifty percent of the net value.

The loan period is limited to one year or the operating cycle, whichever is longer, in cas
of granting of loans due to the relationship of business contract, the period of granting c
loans may beextended if passed by the resolution of Board of Directors, but every
extension is limited to one year.

If responsible person of the Company violates the provisions of Paragraph 1 or relevar
proviso, he/she shall bear the joint and several responsgifdrerepayment with the
borrower; in case of any damage to the Company, he/she shall also bear the dama
compensation responsibility.

Article 3:Limit of granting of loans:

Object Limit - company net value %
Total 40%
Individual 20%

Individual - company with direct

20% (limited to 100% of total sales or
purchase amount in the business contrag
previous year, if the transaction is less th

one year, calculate according to the
cumulative amount of previous month)

business relationship

Notes: Net vaue means the net value in the Company's most recent financial statement audite
certified or approved by the accountant.

Article 4: Decisionmaking and authorization hierarchy, terms definition:

The Companyds granti ng asfpasked layrhe resolatiarl of Bodrce
of Directors, except for the parent company and subsidiaries of the Company, it is nc
allowed to authorize other person to make a decision.
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For the Companyds granting of | 0 angsto theo p
resolution of Board of Directors, the Company may authorize the Chairman to grant a certai
limit (no more than 10% of company net value) to the same granting object and separate lo:
appropriation or circulated employment within the period fleaa one year.

When the Company has set the independent director, opinions of each independent direc
shall be fully considered upon discussion in Board of Directors Meeting, and any advers
opinion or qualified opinion of the independent director dhalspecified in the Minute Book

of Board of Directors Meeting.

The socalled subsidiaries and parent company in these Procedures shall be determine
according to the provisions of Securities Issuer Financial Report Preparation Standards.

The socalled netval ue means the sharehol der s’ e cC
financial report audited, certified or approved by the accountant. If the financial report of the
Company is prepared according to International Financial Reporting Standardsc#iledo

net value means the equity attributable to owners of parent company recorded in the balan
sheet as stipulated in the Securities Issuer Financial Report Preparation Standards.

Article 5: Procedures of handling granting of loans:

Application:

()  When the Comany is handling granting of loans matters, the application unit shall
propose the AApplication for Granting
application, the Finance Department shall evaluate the risks and make records, ar
submit it to theChairman for approval after passing the examination, and then submit it
to Board of Directors for approval and determination, and it shall be handled accordin
to the resolution of Board of Directors.

(I Contents of evaluation for examining granting of loéysthe undertaker of Finance
Department shall include the following:

1. Necessity and rationality of granting of loans.
2. Credit and risk assessment on the object of granting of loans.

3. The i mpact on companyos operating' r
equity.

4. Whether the collateral is acquired and the evaluated value of collateral.
Sign loan contract, collateral or guarantee:

() Contract shall be signed for granting of loans, and the interest rate shall not be lowe
than the maximum interest rate for tBempany to borrow sheterm borrowing from
the financial institution.

(I When the Company is granting of loans to others, per evaluation or if the Board of
Directors thinks it is necessary, the financing object shall provide the collateral of
equivalent fimncing limit or ask a guarantor to provide guarantee, and guarantee the
completeness of its rights.

Appropriation

() After the applicant has filled in the Request Payout Form attached with the copy of loatr
contract and submitted them for approval, they walldnbmitted to the accounting unit
to confirm the correct entry, and then forward them to the finance unit for appropriation.

(I Undertaker of the finance unit shall register the matters of granting of loans into the log
book for granting of loans, and recdtte name of enterprise in granting of loans, the
object of granting of loans, amount, the date passed by Board of Directors, the date

- 105-



VI.

loan appropriation, and the matters shall be assessed prudently pursuant to laws a
decrees and these Proceduresetaitifor future reference.

Extension:

Before the maturity of loan case, notify the borrower to make repayment according to th
contract, in case of engagement in granting of loans due to business contract relationship, if
is still needed, its period @ranting of loans may be extended if passed by the resolution of
Board of Directors, but every extension is limited to one year.

Repayment:

() After loan appropriation, the finance unit shall always pay attention to the financial,
business and credit conditis etc. of the borrower and guarantor, if collateral is
provided, the changes in its collateral value shall also be paid attention to, three befor
the maturity of loan, the company shall notify the borrower to repay the principle and
interest upon matusi or go through extension formalities.

(I Upon repayment when the loan becomes mature, the borrower shall first calculate th
accrued interest, after it is repaid together with the principal; the promissory note may b
canceled and returned to the borravdpon the borrower's application for cancellation
of mortgage right, the finance unit shall first find out whether there is any loan balance
and then decide whether or not to agree upon cancellation of mortgage right.

(1) Undertaker of the finance unit shadlgister the matters of loan repayment into the log
book for granting of loans for future reference.

Bad debt assessment:

Pursuant to the provisions of generally accepted accounting principles, the accounting ur
shall assess the circumstances of grgntihloans and allocate sufficient allowance for bad
debts, and properly disclose relevant information in financial report, and provide relevan
materials to the certified public accountant to carry out necessary audit procedures.

VII. When the loan object isoh conforming to the regulations of these Procedures or laws and

VIII.

decrees or the balance exceeds the limit due to the change of circumstances, the Comp:
shall make improvement plans and submit relevant improvement plans to each supervisc
and complete thimprovement according to the planned schedule.

Internal audit personnel of the Company shall audit the Procedures of Granting of Loans ar
its execution situation at least every quarter, and make a written record, in case of ar
signification violation § found, written notice shall be served to each supervisor and
independent director immediately.

Procedures of controlling subsidiariesdo g

() If the subsidiaries of the Company plans to grant loans to others, the Company sha
ordersuch subsidiaries to formulate the Procedures of Granting of Loans according t
the regulations of AGui del ines for Pub
Endor sement and Guaranteeo promulgated
handle accordg to the formulated procedures.

(I When the subsidiaries of the Company plans to grant loans to others, it may only b
proceeded with the approval of the Company; finance unit of the Company anc
designated dedicated personnel shall specifically assessdéssity, rationality and risk
of such granting of loans to others, the operating risk to the parent company an
subsidiaries, as well as the impact on the financial condition and shareholders' equit
and submit to the President and Chairman for approval.
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)

(V)

(V)

(Vi)

VIl

At the beginning of every mont h, finan
statement on granting of loans to others of the last month.

Finance uni t of t he Company shall re
subsequent control measurex the loans already granted and the procedures for
handling overdue loans are appropriate.

Internal audit personnel of subsidiaries shall also audit the Procedures of Granting ¢
Loans and its execution situation at least every quarter, and make a vadted, in

case of any signification violation is found, written notice shall be served to the audit
unit of the Company immediately, and audit unit of the Company shall submit written
materials to each supervisor and independent director.

Internal auditper sonnel shall regul arly audi t
AProcedures of Granting of Loanso and
findings and suggestions of audit report for approval, internal audit personnel shal
notify the audited @bsidiaries to make improvement, and regularly prepare tracking
report, so as to confirm they have taken appropriate improvement measures in time.

) If the Company has set the Audit Committee, the provisions on the supervisor ir
preceding paragraph shall &ppo the Audit Committee.

Article 6: Declaration and announcement

() The Company shall announce and declare the balance of granting of loans of the Company &
subsidiaries in the last month before the tenth day of each calendar month.

(I If the granting of lans meets any one of the following standards, it shall be announced anc
declared within two days as of the date of event:

1.

The balance of granting of loans to others of the Company and subsidiaries reaches
over twenty percent of the net value in the mupstent financial statement of the
Company.

The balance of granting of loans of the Company and subsidiaries to a single enterpric
reaches to over ten percent of the net value in the most recent financial statement of tl
Company.

The newly added amounf granting of loans of the Company or subsidiaries reaches to
over NT$10 million and over two percent of the net value in the most recent financial
statement of the Company.

(1N If the subsidiaries of the Company are a not a domestic public company, andlssidreges
has the matters shall be announced and declared as stipulated in Subparagraph 3 of prece
paragraph, the Company shall make the announcement and declaration instead.

(IV) The secalled date of event in this paragraph means the signature dateeniajate, date of
board resolution or other days sufficiently confirming the object and amount of granting of
loans etc., whichever is earlier.

Article 7: Punishment principle:

Where company personnel violate the regulations of these Procedures ondadeceees, it shall
be handled according to pursuant punishment and reward measures of the company.
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Article 8:

Article 9:

Amendment:

Upon formulating these Procedures, after it is passed by Board of Directors, it shall be sent to ez
supervisor and submitted tdh&eholders' Meeting for approval; if any director raises objection
and with record or written statement, the Company shall also submit its objection to eac
supervisor and submit to Shareholders' Meeting for discussion, and the same shall apply up
amendanent.

When the Company has set the independent director and when submitting these Procedures
Board of Directors Meeting for discussion, opinions of each independent director shall be full
considered, and any adverse opinion or qualified opinion ofnthependent director shall be
specified in the Minute Book of Board of Directors Meeting.

If the Company has set the Audit Committee, upon formulation or amendment of these Procedur
it shall be agreed by more than one second of all members of Audit @emmand proposed to
Board of Directors Meeting for resolution, and the provisions in Paragraph Il shall not apply.

If it is not agreed by more than one second of all members of Audit Committee as mentioned
preceding paragraph, it may be agreed byentban two thirds of all directors, and the resolution
of Audit Committee shall be specified in the Minute Book of Board of Directors Meeting.

All members of Audit Committee referred to in Paragraph Il and all directors referred to in
preceding paragrapre calculated based on the actual appointment.

Amendment dates of these Procedures:

These Procedures were formulated on June 24, 2012.
The first amendment was made on June 30, 2014.
The second amendment was made on June 21, 2016.
The third amedment was made on June 10, 2019.
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Appendix 7

1. As at April 26,202Q total outstanding shares of the Company is 69,300,000 shares, pursuant to tt
i | maultyePereentaga of iDoestorsRand Sugervisors rof Pablic
statutory

regul ations
Compani es

EZconn Corporation
Shareholdings of All Directors and Supervisors

of
and

Audi tingo,

t he

the statutory number of shares held by all supervisors is 554,400 shares.

2. As at the book closurday of this General Meeting, the shareholdings of individual and all directors

and supervisors recorded in the register of shareholders are as follows:

Book closure day: April 26, 2020

Term

Shareholdings upon

Shareholdings in registe
of shareholders as at th

Title Name a Dg;[r?t%fen of appontment book closure day
PP office | Number of|Proportiol Number of | Proportion
shares (%) shares (%)
SHC CONSOLIDATED
Chairman INVESTORS LLC 106.06.22| '€ 2.072,202| 314 | 21m812 | 3.14
Representative: CHEN, years
STEVE
DURAL HOLDINGS
Director LIMITED 106.06.22| '€l 1 546,382 1.89 | 1,308,701 | 1.89
Representative: LI, years
SHIH-CHENG
Jia Jiu Investment Co., Ltd Three
Director Representative: CHANG, | 106.06.22 ears 800,000 1.21 840,000 1.21
YING-HUA Y
TRANSNATIONAL
Director | 'NVESTMENTLIMITED | ;¢ 56 o) ThI€€| 4 4ag 193] 225 | 1,562,602 | 2.25
Representative: CHOU, years
WAN-SHUN (Notes 1)
Director CHEN, HSIAG-YUN 106.06.22 Ilzgerg 3,111 0 3,266 0
Independer) | cHiEN-PING 106.06.22| T8 g 0 0 0
Director years
Independer PENG, XIERU 108.06.10| 1 TV€€| g 999 0.01 9,683 0.01
Director years
Total shareholdings of all directors 5,619,110 8.50 5,900064 8.50
Supervisor KO, YUAN-YU 106.06.22 )T/zgerg 14,222 | 0.02 14,933 0.02
Supervisor LAI, WEN-HSIEN 106.06.22| '€ ¢ 0 0 0
years
EGTRAN CORPORATION Three
Supervisor Representative: CHIEN, | 106.06.22 ears 3,395,944 5.15 3,565,741 5.15
CHIH-CHENG y
Total shareholdings of all supervisors 3,410,166| 5.17 3580674 5.17
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